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Note |[:
Note 2:

Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:

Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on | August 2018

Resigned as Chief Executive Officer and re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director with effect from | August 2018

Retired with effect from 31 August 2018

Appointed on |3 September 2018

Appointed on 24 July 2018

Resigned with effect from | August 2018

Resigned with effect from |13 September 2018

Appointed as Chairman on 24 July 2018

Retired as Chairman with effect from 24 July 2018 and resigned as a member with

effect from | August 2018

Note 10: Appointed as a member on 24 July 2018 and appointed as Chairman on | August 2018

Note [ I:

Resigned on 6 December 2018
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Mr. Li Yuguo, aged 65, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on |6 August 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of the
board of directors on 22 September 2017. He was also appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

Since |19 September 2018, Mr. Li has been an executive director of Future
Bright Mining Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange™)
(Stock Code: 2212) (“Future Bright”) which Mr. Yang Xiaogiang (a Non-
Executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (an
Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) are
a non-executive director and the chief executive officer of Future Bright
respectively. He has been a non-executive director of Shengjing Bank Co,,
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 2066)(*"Shengjing Bank”) since July 2013 and the vice chairman of
the board of directors of that bank from June 2014 to February 2018. He
has been the chairman of Liaoning Huibao International Investment Group
Co., Ltd.* (REEEEEREKNEEE BRG] since June 2013 and the
chairman of Beijing Jiutai Group Co., Ltd.* (dt RN & KB BR A 7)) since
May 1993. Prior to that, he successively worked at the planning bureau of
the China Association for Science and Technology (FEIRIZ2 T HE) as
principal staff, deputy chief and chief of the accounting division from August
1983 to October 1992.

Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics

(formerly known as Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics* (/L P8 81 4%

EBT)) (Jiangxi, PRC) in July 1983, majoring in industrial accounting.
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Mr. Liu Yan Chee James, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 26 April 2017 and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on | August 2018.

He has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Since 8
March 2018, Mr. Liu has been an executive director of Mindtell Technology
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 861 1). Since 26 October 2018, he has appointed as the chief
executive officer of Future Bright (Stock Code: 2212), which Mr. Li Yuguo
(an Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company) and Mr. Yang
Xiaogiang (a Non-Executive Director of the Company) are an executive
director and a non-executive director of Future Bright respectively. He was
an independent non-executive director of Luen Wong Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8217) between March 2016 and December 2017. He was the sales director
and licensed representative of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers) Limited from
September 2010 to October 2015, and KGI Asia Limited and KGI Futures
(Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to September 2010.

In February 1994, he graduated from Dalhousie University in Canada with

a Bachelor of Commerce.

Ms. Guo Yumei, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 18 April 2018. She was also appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

She has been an executive director and legal representative of Beijing
Qiaofeng Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd* (it?ﬁ%% & %\E@@ﬁj), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since February 2018. Ms. Guo
currently also serves as director of (i) Guangxi Huatai Mining Industries Co.,
Ltd* (BFAZEREFEABMRAAD, (i) Shenzhen Zhongke Jiutai Resources
Usage Technology Industries Co., Ltd* (RYITERE N & B IRFIARH
EFERM B AR and (i) Shenzhen Zhongke Jiutai Resources Usage
Research Institute Co., Ltd* CRIIFRINEBRFNABAREABR AR,

Ms. Guo graduated from Party School of CPC Beijing Municipal Committee*
(LR ZER) in July 2008,

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Yang Xiaoqiang, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive

Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company on |3 September 2018.

Mr. Yang has been a non-executive director of Future Bright (Stock
Code: 2212) since 19 September 2018, which Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company) and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
(an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company)
are an executive director and the chief executive officer of Future Bright

respectively.

Mr. Yang has been appointed as director and general manager of Shenyang
Tairong Property Development Company Limited* (/&% 2= 48 5 HhZE 7
B HPR/AF]) since September 2010. He held similar positions in other

companies for more than 20 years.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree in industrial automation from the
Shenyang Mechanical Engineering University* (BRZH#M T KE) in
1994 and obtained a master degree in civil and commercial laws from the

Shenyang Normal University in 2001.

Mr. Huang Yilin, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 23 January 2015 and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer on 16 August 2017. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was
re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director of the

Company with effect from | August 2018.

Mr. Huang graduated from The Institute of Finance and Economics of Radio
and Television* (BEARBI4EZT) in 1992 and is engaged in management
related works since graduation. During the past years, Mr. Huang was the
general manager of Shantou Sanye Plastic Company Limited* (IIZET =
EBEBRAR]), Shenzhen China Investment Company Limited* (&3]
MHEEE AR A7), Shenzhen Rihuisheng Group Company Limited* (%
Pt BER LB B A R]) and Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Company
Limited* ORIITIIEFIRE AR A F]), and has extensive theoretical

knowledge and practical experience in corporate modern management.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Ba Junyu, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.
He was appointed as the chairman of Remuneration Committee of the

Company on | August 2018.

Mr. Ba is an external supervisor of Shengjing Bank (Stock Code: 2066)
since February 2018. He was an independent non-executive director of
that bank from June 2010 to February 2018. Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company) is a non-executive director
of that bank. Mr. Ba has been a professor at Shenyang Ligong University*
(P53 T KE) since September 2001, and served as principal, professor
and researcher of the social economy research institute of Shenyang Ligong
University from September 2001 to May 2009. He serves as a professor at
the School of Law and Ideology of Shenyang Ligong University since May
2009. Prior to that, he served as an associate professor and the head of
the economic research institute at Shenyang University from April 1996 to
August 2003. From August 1985 to April 1996, he served as a vice dean,
deputy principal and associate professor of the market economy research
institute at Shenyang Institute of Finance and Economics. He used to work
at the teaching and research office at Shenyang Accounting School* (&5
MBI EE4R) as deputy director, director and lecturer from August 1982 to
August 1985.

Mr. Ba graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(formerly known as Liaoning Institute of Finance and Economics* (3 2§}
#EB3)) (Liaoning, PRC) in July 1982, majoring in commercial enterprise
management. He has been a researcher as accredited by the Personnel

Office of Liaoning Province since August 2008.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhu Xueyi, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee on |3 September 2018.

Currently, Mr. Zhu is a professor and the head of the Research Institute
of Resource Economics and Financial Accounting at Nantong Institute of
Technology and a guest professor at the University of Jinan. After working
in journalism from 1974 to 1976, Mr. Zhu embarked on his education
career at the School of Management at China University of Mining and
Technology. Mr. Zhu was gradually promoted to the position of vice dean
of the School of Management at China University of Mining and Technology
from 1999 to 2007. In 2007, he became the head of the Research Institute

of Finance and Accounting at China University of Mining and Technology.

Mr. Zhu obtained an accountancy degree at Jiangsu University of Finance
and Economics in 1983 and obtained a master’s degree at Renmin
University of China in 1992.

Mr. Zhu has been an independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company,
Jiangsu Wuyang Parking Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (ITERFFIEEES
LB BRAR]) (Stock Code: 300420) and the chief financial expert
of Huai Hai Holding Group* (E/EIZERR &™) since 2017. He was an
independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company, Saimo Electric Co.,
Ltd. (BEERHBR AT (Stock Code: 300466) from 201 | to 2016

Mr. Zhu has been a vice chairman of Xuzhou Auditing Society* (fR/1THE&

§+$—@) and a vice chairman of Xuzhou City Accountant Association® (?%
MR ETAIHE) since 2000.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhu has published more than 500 articles on accounting. He was
appointed by various units above provincial level, such as Jiangsu Province
Social Science Fund, Ministry of Education, Ministry of Finance to host
nearly 30 significant national projects including national natural science
fund and national social science fund. In recognition of his contribution,
provincial departments awarded him with nearly 30 prizes, e.g. Science
Advancement Prize, Philosophy Society Achievement Award, Excellent
Teaching Achievement Award, etc. He was also awarded as a national
excellent teacher in 1989 and the “Excellent Accounting Worker” in Jiangsu
Province in 2006.

Mr. Wong Chung Man, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and members of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on
24 July 2018.

Mr. Wong worked as a marketing manager in Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited during the period between 1986 and 1990 and as a
general manager of Anju Jewelry Ltd. between 1990 and 1992. Mr. Wong
was the director and president of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (China) Ltd.
during the period between 1992 and 2001 and was the director of Fullnew
International Ltd. during the period between 2001 to 2008. Thereafter, Mr.
Wong worked as the general manager of Enzo Jewelry Holdings Limited
from 2008 to 2009 and then as a consultant at Shenyang Success Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd.* (E[5A TN E B EF AR 2 7)) between
2009 and 2017.

Mr. Wong graduated from Waseda University of Tokyo, Japan in 1985.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance with an aim to protect the interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix |4 (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules™). During the year ended 3| March
2019, the Company complied with all applicable provisions of the Code

except for the deviation as stated below:

Code Provision A.1.3

Under Code provision A.1.3, notice of at least 14 days should be given for
a regular Board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notice should be given. Due to the
practical reasons, 14 days’ advanced notifications have not been given to
all meetings of the Board. Reasons have been given in the notifications in
respect of those meetings of the Board where it is not practical to give 14
days’ advanced notification. The Board will use its best endeavours to give

|4 days’ advanced notifications of Board meeting to the extent practicable.

Code Provision A.1.8

Under Code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action which may be taken against its
directors. The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by
the Company has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet
reached an agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance
premium of new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal
action which may be taken against the Directors of the Company has not
been in place since 21 May 2018. The Company will continue to liaise with

the insurer on the same.
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should give
the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their
skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They should also attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Due to other business engagement, an Independent
Non-executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting

of the Company held on 31 August 2018.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company

and oversees the Group’s business strategic decisions and performances.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 3 Executive Directors,
Mr. Li Yuguo, Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Ms. Guo Yumei; 2 Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Yang Xiaoqiang and Mr. Huang Yilin; and 3
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Ba Junyu, Mr. Zhu Xueyi and
Mr. Wong Chung Man.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are persons
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and
appropriate expertise. They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company and the Company considers these directors to be

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and as an essential
element in maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development of
the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be based on merits
against objective criteria and with due regards for benefits and balance of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity will be considered in terms of,
among other things, gender, age, professional experience and qualifications
and educational and cultural background, and any other factors that the
Nomination Committee may consider relevant and applicable from time
to time towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how and

experience of the Board.

Meetings
Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out

below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Yuguo FEELE

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2B B EE

Ms. Guo Yumei REERt

Mr. Huang Yilin BRMEE
(re-designated as Non-executive Director (R=FE—-N\FNA—H
on | August 2018) BERFDTESE)

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith REFBELE

(retired on 31 August 2018)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang BREAELAE

(resigned on 6 December 2018)

(R=F-NFNA=t—RHEME)

(RZF-N\F+ZARBEE)

EFEHEZTILHE
ARBIERNEFTENELZTERR(TES
BB ZITCBE]) - ARRHBLREE
FEREZTERARARARERER
% WARSEARBEEDERE RIS
AREERVERRE EFEMEZREY
URARS BRA - XRDEEEFE2F
sMREBZT T ERE T  BEEES
Zlelit ke REBE(EFeE)ER -
Fik  FXLERRER HERXLEER
ARREHEZEEINRR/E BN MIER
EXeme  MELER 2 EMEMBAR[L
EARE -

==
BEERHE_T-NF=ZA=1+T—HLF
EEEERHENARARRAE HE L8
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang

(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Huang Yilin

(re-designated on | August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ba Junyu
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhu Xueyi
(appointed on 13 September 2018)
Mr. Wong Chung Man
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
(resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
(resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu
(resigned on |3 September 2018)

FUTES
TN ¥ s
(MR- N\FAAT=BEZME)
RRMELE
(R=Z-N\FNA—BHE)

N

b7

VYHPTES
EFEAE
R=F-NFLtA-+HREZMT)
BEEE
(RZZ-NFRLAT=HEZT)
IR AL
R=F-NFLtA-+HREZMT)
REMEE
(RZZ-NFENA—BEHT)
PERFE
(RZZ-NFENA—BEHT)
iy St
(R=ZZ-NFNAT=HEHT)

B

>HF
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Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board of Directors will
meet on other occasions when a board level decision on a particular matter
is required. The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision
and minutes of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.
The Board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, Directors’
appointment, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board of Directors to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board of
Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory

requirements, rules and regulations.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms of
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Annual General Meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of

the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting; and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following Annual General

Meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with legal

and regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to

facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective

training records pursuant to the Code.

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in

appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of

attending seminars or self-reading set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Yuguo
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Ms. Guo Yumei
Mr. Huang Yilin
(re-designated as Non-executive Director
on | August 2018)
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
(retired on 31 August 2018)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang
(resigned on 6 December 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang

(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Huang Yilin

(re-designated on | August 2018)

BITES
FRELAE
BB EE
REIR+
ERWEAE
(R=ZF-NFENA—H
BERFDITES)
BREBELEE
(RZZF
BREEEE
(R=ZF

—NENA=T—HBEE)

—N\E+ZAARBEEHE)

FHTES

Hhaak
(RZZ

ERMWEE
(R=ZF
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ba Junyu
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhu Xueyi
(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Wong Chung Man
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
(resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
(resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu
(resigned on |13 September 2018)

BYKGITES

BEFiE
R=Z-NFLtA-+HREZMT)

REHEFE
(RZZ-NFNAT=HEZT)

B E
R=ZZ-NFLtA-+HREZMT)

REMEE
(RZZ-NFENA—AEHT)

BESFE
(RZZ-NFNA—AEHT)

i it
(R=ZF-NFNAT=HET)

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, Directors
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Li Yuguo. Its primary duties include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters

relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee held five (5) meetings during the year ended

31 March 2019. The attendance of each member of the Nomination

Committee at the meetings during the year is set out below:

Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman)

FEESE(EE)

ARBIRBZBERBH=RBUIFNTE
ER—BRTERAR  REHFEESLLE
BEXR REZEGZIZBASERN
EXeB REREK RRBREZEKE
ZHICBRRNEABREERURIEFS
REZAL FEBINNTEEZEY
 REERENEZEEEF 2 HBEEERE
FERHEERR

REBEE_Z—hAhFZA=+—HILFE &
HEZBEBEE 553‘{735(5)//22% c BIREZETEE
MERAFEGH L FBLENT

(appointed on 24 July 2018) (RZE-—N\FLAZTHBREZF) 212
Mr. Ba Junyu (appointed on 24 July 2018) BEFrs
RZF-\FLtAZTHREZRT) 212
Mr. Zhu Xueyi (appointed on |13 September 2018)  KEF 4
RZF-N\FLAT=RERT) 0/0
Mr. Wong Chung Man (appointed on 24 July 2018) =X %4
(RZF-NFLAZTHAERT) 22
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned on | August 2018) REMEE(RZE—N\F/N\A—HET) 2/4
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse FERTE
(resigned on | August 2018) (RZZE—N\FNA—BEE) 2/4
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (retired on 31 August 2018) [R:FE 4
(R=ZF-NFNA=T—REME) 3/4
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (resigned on |3 September 2018)  {HAREA(R=ZZT— N\EHLA+=BEHE) 4/5
During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure FERN - IBXEEeRTEEe Y RERAE
and composition of the Board, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, B miEEeR 82T bBE - SRET
discussed the causal vacancies for the resigned Directors, assessed EEMTH  SABYERTEE VB

the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and made

recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from
Board members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
The factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for
director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company'’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board member and other
directorships and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Ba Junyu. Its primary duties include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management, reviewing the
remuneration package and recommending salaries, bonuses, including the
incentive awards for Executive Directors and senior management, and
ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration etc.

The Remuneration Committee held five (5) meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2019. The attendance of each member of the
Remuneration Committee at the meetings during the year is set out below:

REEBER
REAZBEUHBFEFTERERBREA
MREZEEEE - REZEENARS
WIHABFEXEBRBZIKEA - RBERE
ERAEESREAR  AEZEZERE
B(EBEE)EE BARTAEHREEE
BXARRAR BT - BREXREE - Kk - A#
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MRE - REZESAFHEBEZRAHES
SEB LA -

ARBlzHMEZBEREGEIE=2B IR
TEFR—BRTES ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%i
BEXR FHEEGZ2IERERENRA
MARBIMEESENSREEABHM 2K
RERRBREESELES '@ﬁﬁﬁ%%

Mr. Ba Junyu (Chairman)
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Ms. Guo Yumei
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhu Xueyi
(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Wong Chung Man
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
(resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
(retired on 31 August 2018)
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (resigned on |3 September 2018)

&%%&EEAEZ%@H FBYRBEEZHH
B (BIESESEHEE  RERINE
%%&EEﬂﬁﬁA/ﬂ EEAGFHH -
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XLt
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KEERSLE
(R=—Z—\FALA+ZBEZD) 0/0
B E
(RZB—-N\FLA-THEEZE) 212
REMAELER-_Z—N\ENA—BEDT) 2/4
BERLE
(R=—Z—)\FNA—HET) 2/4
PREFESE
(R=Z— ) \FNA=Z+—HEMD 3/4
HAREER—_ZE—N\FALA+=ZB&HT) 4/5
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of the appointment letters of the Directors
with reference to the factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of the
Executive and Independent Non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable. Details of the remuneration policy of the Directors are set out

on page 60 of this report.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
(3) Independent Non-executive Directors and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhu Xueyi. Its primary duties are to review and supervise the financial

reporting system, risk management and internal control system of the

FR - FHEZEEC2ERBEAIELTRAT
rftz#e BEENHZERRERE A
REEMBN Z BRIGRTRESRREEE
FHERER EEARRNEFRTRZIREA
R - HFHEEERE T RBILIERTT
SRR TR RERTBAFEE BF 2
IR RAFIBHNAREFC0R °

RRBIZEREECBEEBE=ZQ)RB I
BITES  HRBARERLEETER - &
REEBGZFEREATHREELRER
BISHRER BREERASDETHES -

Group etc.
The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the year ended 31 EREZEeREBE_E—NF=A=+—H
March 2019. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at LEFEBRITRQREE - SEZEZEENE
the meetings during the year is set out below: RAFEGHLFLEHENT
Mr. Zhu Xueyi (Chairman) KRERLEE(EE)
(appointed on |3 September 2018) (RZZE-N\FNLAT=AEZE) /1
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE
(appointed on 24 July 2018) (RZZE-N\FLtAZ+HAEZET) o/
Mr. Wong Chung Man |mHXEE
(appointed on 24 July 2018) (RZE-N\FtAZ+HBEEZE) /1
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REBMEE
(resigned on | August 2018) (RZZE—-N\FNA—HBBEE) 1/1
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse FERLE
(resigned on | August 2018) (RZZE—-N\FNA—BEE) 1/1
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu IR S &
(resigned on |3 September 2018) (RZZE—N\FNAT=HFT) /1
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During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
including the Group's audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 3| March 2018 and the unaudited financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2018 respectively. In June 2019, the Audit
Committee reviewed the Group's audited financial statements for the
year ended 3| March 2019 prior to recommending them to the Board for

approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 under review, the remuneration paid
to the Company's auditors, Messrs. Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited, is set

out as follows:

ZERH
FERRBIRTS (HTaz)

Audit services

Non-Audit services (Note)

Note: The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors’ independence was not affected by

the provision of these non-audit related services during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 3| March 2019, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems. To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
the Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound risk management
and internal control systems which are also indispensable for mitigating the
Group's risk exposures. The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of

failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The risk management and internal control system are reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present risk

management and internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with its business activities and has implemented a
practical and effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system and
periodic review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and

the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has engaged an external
professional firm to conduct the annual review of the risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 March 2019. The
review has covered financial, operational and compliance control and some
recommendations were provided in the internal control review report. All
recommendations are properly followed up by the Group. Therefore, the
Board considered that the risk management and internal control systems

are effective and adequate.
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During the year ended 3| March 2019, Mr. Wu Ho Wai has received over
fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional training to refresh his skills and

knowledge.

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings can send a written
request to the Board or the Secretary of the Company to request a Special

General Meeting (“SGM”).

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 2601, 26/F., West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written request must state the
resolution(s), accompanied by a statement of the matters referred in the

proposed resolution(s) and signed by the shareholders concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the request.
The actual SGM shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

the written request.

Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholder can send a written request to the Board or the Secretary of

the Company to make proposal(s) at a shareholders’ meeting.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and signed

by the shareholder concerned.

The written request should be deposited with the Company at its principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 2601, 26/F., West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, at least

fourteen (14) clear days before the date of the shareholders’ meeting.
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The request will be verified with the Company's share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the proposed resolution(s) in the

agenda for the shareholders’ meeting.

Procedures for Nomination of Directors for Election
The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at

http://www.asiaresources899.com.hk.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no significant changes to

the Company's constitutional document.

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, the interim report,
as well as the Annual General Meeting (“AGM"). The AGM allows the

directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.
To further promote effective communication, the corporate website is

maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other relevant

financial and non-financial information electronically on a timely basis.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | present
herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and audited

consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

For the year ended 3| March 2019, the consolidated revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$32,760,000 (2018: Nil) from continuing
operations and HK$269,000 (2018: HK$7,343,000) from discontinued
operations respectively. Accordingly, the Group’s recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$ 1,297,000 for the year (2018: HK$7,343,000).

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$ 158,640,000 for the year ended 3| March
2019 (2018: HK$123,989,000). The increase in loss was mainly due to (i)
the impairment losses on properties under development and completed

properties held for sale; and (ii) share of losses of associates.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 3| March 2019 was HK$0.022 (2018:
HK$0.021).

The Group has continuously focused its effort on our core business the
water business, property development and property investment business.
For the water mining business in Hunan, the production facilities are
currently under construction and expected to commence production in
2020. For the property development business in Dalian, construction of the
first phase has been completed and the Group commenced to handover
the properties to the buyer from April 2019 onwards. Therefore, revenue
will be recognised in the coming years. The Group also endeavours to seek
profitable trading business as to enhance the diversity of our business and

increase revenue.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$32,760,000 (2018: Nil) from continuing operations. The

revenue was mainly derived from the general trading business.

Apart from expanding the business, the Group has disposed the non-
profitable iron ore mining business in Indonesia. The Group has also ceased
the operation of the money lending business in order to reallocate the

resources to the core businesses.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. As a responsible corporation,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and
employment and has adopted effective measures to achieve efficient use of

resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no incident of significant

non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations for the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and Shareholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good

relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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Water Business

Water Production and Sales

Since April 2017, the Group holds 20% equity interests of Hong Kong
Spring Water Ding Dong Group Company Limited (“Spring Water Ding
Dong"). A wholly-owned subsidiary in Guangxi of Spring Water Ding Dong
holds a water procurement permit for production and sales of bottled

water and is currently in operation.

During the year, the Group shared losses of associates of approximately
HK$ 17,152,000 (2018: HK$7,855,000), which were mainly due to the

depreciation of property, plant and equipment.

Water Mining

Since June 2017, the Group holds 67% equity interests of Good Union
(China) Limited and indirectly holds its wholly-owned subsidiary in Hunan
which holds a water mining licence for exploitation of spring water. The
production facilities in Hunan are currently under construction and are

expected to be completed in early to mid of 2020.

During the year, no revenue was derived from this segment and a loss of
approximately HK$ 1,915,000 (2018: HK$1,586,000) was recorded which

mainly comprised administrative expenses.
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Property Business

Property Development

Dalian Properties

Our indirectly wholly owned China subsidiary, Dalian Chuanghe Landmark
Co Ltd.* (KEEIFEH B R AF]) ("Dalian Chuanghe”) continues
engaging in the development of urban land for residential purpose in the
real estate sector in Dalian and as planned to develop 55 buildings on the
said land with 21 buildings in the first phase (“Phase I"") and 34 buildings in
the second phase (“Phase II").

Phase | named “Xin Tian Jia Yuan” had been completed in March 2019.
There are 2| buildings established in Phase | with total saleable area of
approximately 42,540 square metres. including 4 eight-storey apartments
(/NEfE), 9 garden villas (¥F5) and 8 garden houses (Ei#ERIZEE).
As at 31 March 2019, total contracted sales achieved approximately
RMB 189,310,000 (of which pre-sale deposits of approximately
RMB 142,138,000 received), and total contracted gross saleable area was
around 29,507 square metres. Dalian Chuanghe commenced to handover

the properties to buyers from April 2019 onwards.

For the Phase Il, 34 buildings with approximately 69,000 square metres are

used as the saleable area. The initiation date is expected to be in 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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Property Investment

Yantian Properties

(A) The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 24 June 2014

(“2014 Acquisition Agreement”), a supplemental agreement on |5

April 2015, the second supplemental agreement on 12 July 2016,

(A

K=Z—mEXA=FHE  AEE
ST — 15 W 15 T = — 0 4 MO
%D*ﬁ%:%—ﬁiﬂﬂ+ﬂaﬂ

the third supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017 and the fourth ST iﬁ_/_\iﬁﬂ +=A
supplemental agreement on 3 May 2018 to purchase the property qu%_fﬁﬁ}ETﬁﬁaﬁ —F—+tFH
at a consideration of approximately RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to A++H ;.Tj%_@%ﬁ}fbﬁ% SN A=

approximately HK$126,000,000).

The property to be acquired represents 46 units of Jinma Creative
Industry Park (formerly known as “Kingma Information Logistic Park’")
which is situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road and Shenyan Road

Intersect, Inner Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded Area, Yantian District,

—NFERA=ZHI X ENDHEITHE
LA (B #9 A % 100,000,000 7T (& 7
#7126,000,00078 70 ) W EE B BIW 2 -

KU g 2 S AL BRI T E H =
B AR 7 B A = 5% BK EROR BB B X

MR — SRS & KAl ERE (A
RIEEMEDRED (T2 FEFESE

Shenzhen City, the PRC* (Hf BUZR I B8 M [ B8 R T R R B A B |)46lE AL - ABREEIRL) /38,699
= SRR EAREE PRI NE IR —SR#ES) (“)inma Creative Industry Park”) FokK o

with a total gross floor area of approximately 8,699 square metres.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB90,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMB10,000,000 shall be paid within

30 days from the date on which the relevant building ownership

RZE—NF=A=1+—H0 ' A£EBE
BEZNEXEEHRERERBEREER
BTN RER B R Z R AIRERS
A H AR 90,000,000 » 1B Z 458
#4 A B #10,000,000 T B R [A B J5 %
ﬁfﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁé; HHEIR30B A -

certificates have been issued in favour of the purchaser. The vendor HER-ZE—N\FE+-_A=1+—H=k
shall register the title of the property under the name of the purchaser ZF]IJ (KEMATeE FiBE 2 BE)UE
on or before 31 December 2018 (or such other date as may be FRABBREERE -

mutually agreed).

*  For identification purpose only
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The Group entered into the second acquisition agreement on |5
May 2015 ("May 2015 Acquisition Agreement”), a supplemental
agreement on 12 July 2016, the second supplemental agreement on
|7 May 2017 and the third supplemental agreement on 3 May 2018
to further purchase the property at a consideration of approximately
RMB65,100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$81,400,000). The
property to be acquired represents 30 units of Jinma Creative Industry
Park with a total gross floor area of approximately 5400 square

metres.

As at 3| March 2019, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB60,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMB5, 100,000 shall be paid within 30
days from the date on which the property has been registered under
the name of the purchaser. The vendor shall register the title of the
property under the name of the purchaser on or before 31 December

2018 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

The Group entered into the third acquisition agreement on 10
November 2015 (“November 2015 Acquisition Agreement”),
a supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017 and the second
supplemental agreement on 3 May 2018 to further purchase the
property at a consideration of approximately RMBI101,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$122,000,000). The property to
be acquired, being a single-storey reinforced concrete building
designated for office and storage uses, is the Block 2 of Jinma Creative
Industry Park with a total gross floor area of approximately 4,957

square metres.
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As at 3| March 2019, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB 100,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMB1,600,000 shall be paid within 30
days from the date on which the property has been registered under
the name of the purchaser. The vendor shall register the title of the
property under the name of the purchaser on or before 31 December

2018 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

For Yantian Properties (A), (B) and (C), as at the date of this report, the
vendor has still not registered the titles of the properties under the name
of the Group. The approval from the PRC government authority for issuing
the building ownership certificates remained pending. The Company is now
actively negotiating with the vendor on this matter for the possible ways to

resolve the same.

Zengcheng Properties

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 15
April 2015, 5 June 2015, 27 August 2015, |5 June 2016 and |8 January
2017 in relation to the acquisition of certain properties located in Jinma
Waterfront Square* (£ f7KFE¥%). Given that the vendor failed to
deliver the physical possession of the properties within the timeframe
specified in the acquisition agreements, the Group served a termination
notice to the vendor on |8 January 2017 and demand the refund of the
consideration in the amount of RMB274,000,000 pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the acquisition agreements and the payment of an additional
sum representing not less than 3% thereof as compensation (details of
which were disclosed in the announcement dated |8 January 2017). As at
31 March 2019, the Group had totally received RMB212,000,000 for the
refund of the paid consideration and the payment of the compensation.
The Group has negotiated with the vendor and expected that the
remaining balance of the refund will be received by 31 December 2019,

failing which the Group may consider taking legal action against the vendor.

*  For identification purpose only
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Hangzhou Properties (Discontinued Operations)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 12 July
2018 and 28 September 2018 in relation to the disposal of subsidiaries,
which hold the Hangzhou properties. The consideration has been received

and the transaction has been completed on 28 September 2018.

Beijing Properties

The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 28 February 2017 to
purchase (a) office premises with a gross floor area of 8,335 square metres
and (b) underground car park with a gross floor area of 3,100 square
metres located in the Phrase Ill of the Beijing Convention and Exhibition
International Port (Exhibition Centre Ancillary Facilities) Project* (3t &
REEERERERIEEEB % = 8) for a consideration of approximately
RMB220,000,000 (subject to adjustment).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group totally paid consideration of
RMB200,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated in the
sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the consideration
of approximately RMB20,000,000 shall be paid upon the pre-sale
agreement between the vendor and the purchaser in relation to the sale
and purchase of the property having been entered into and the building
ownership certificate having been obtained by the purchaser. Currently,
the Beijing Properties are under construction and are expected to be

completed on or around 3| December 2019.

Shenyang Properties

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on |2
October 2017 to purchase the properties at a total consideration of
RMB625,000,000 (subject to adjustment). The properties comprise
Floors 7 to 35 of Building T3 situated at 46 Nanjing North Street, Heping
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 34,754.58 square metres, while the gross floor area of office

is approximately 30,480.96 square metres.

*  For identification purpose only
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had paid approximately RMB528,764,000
to the vendor, representing approximately 84.6% of the total consideration.
In mid-April 2019, the Group received a notice from the vendor that
it was anticipated that the vendor would not be able to complete the
construction of the properties and deliver the same to the Group in
accordance with the agreed terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The
vendor also proposed to terminate the sale and purchase agreement. On
24 April 2019, after arm’s length negotiations between the vendor and the
Group, the parties have mutually agreed to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement. The deposits paid shall be refunded together with a monetary
compensation of RMBI 1,250,000 to the Group on or before 24 October
2019.

The Group recorded a loss from property development and investment
segment of approximately HK$ 117,960,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: HK$34,375,000). The loss mainly comprised operation and
administrative expenses and impairment losses on properties under

development and completed properties held for sales located in Dalian.

The Group strives to seek profitable trading business as to enhance the
diversity of our business and increase revenue. During the year ended
31 March 2019, the Group traded electric wires in Hong Kong on an
one-off and trial basis which recognised a revenue of approximately
HK$32,760,000 (2018: Nil) and a profit of approximately HK$397,000
(2018: Nil). The goods were procured from an external supplier and
sold to an external customer on indent basis. Both the supplier and the
customer were independent third parties. The Group may consider,
depending on the actual market circumstances and opportunities,
identifying new sources of general merchandises and engaging in the trading

business in Hong Kong or elsewhere on a continuing basis.

Iron Ore Mining Business (Discontinued Operations)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 12 July
2018 and 28 September 2018 in relation to the disposal of subsidiaries,
which operate the iron ore mining business in Indonesia. The consideration
has been received and the transaction has been completed on 28

September 2018.
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Investing and Financing Business

Money Lending Business (Discontinued Operations)

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated || July
2018. Having considered the keen market competition and the challenging
environment, risks associated with the possible default by the borrowers,
decline in lending interest rates, and opportunities for other new and more
profitable businesses, the Group has ceased the operation of its money

lending business.

For the year under review, the money lending business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$269,000 (2018: HK$7,343,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had significant investments in equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The

details are set out as follows:

640 Infinity Development 1,000,000 0.17% 740
Holdings Company
Limited
ERERERBRAA]
747 Shenyang Public Utility 3,100,000 216% 4127
Holdings Company
Limited
BEHARERRA
BRAA

4,867
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Brief description of the principal business and the future prospect of the BEZSEREBEQTQMHER  KEB
investee companies based on the information published by those investee ZNRFTEEBLRAKRASENWOT

companies are set out below:

Name of investee company

BREBBEAR B

Infinity Development Holdings
Company Limited

ERERERARAA

Principal business and future prospect

EREHMARRA R

That company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of adhesives,
primers, hardeners, vulcanized shoes adhesive related products used by the footwear
manufacturers and acting as the sales agent for adhesive used in the production of
electronic products.

ZAREENFEENHEREMMEANBYE - BB - B - wER
HEMBERARREHELEETERMANBRE -

As disclosed in the interim results announcement of that company for the six months
ended 31 March 2019, due to the continual growth in global demand for footwear,
more stringent requirement from the manufacturers for the quality of adhesives which
will gradually eliminate industry players with less competitiveness, rapid increase in
the demand for the use of environmental friendly water based adhesive products
by footwear brands and manufacturers, and ongoing diversion of the footwear
manufacturing industry to countries or regions with lower costs, the effect of the
previous regional deployments of the company is becoming prominent under the swift
changes in the market. Moreover, the company has been establishing a good reputation
for our premium and quality products and maintaining good strategic relationships with
our customers for a number of years. As such, the board of the company expects that
the growth of the company'’s sales will be at a steady pace in 2019. The company will
devote necessary resources to further increase its market share if appropriate.
BNMZARBE_ZE-NFZA=+—HILXMEAZHRAEERHAKE - AR
EHERFRAFELR  NEDUBHAINREELERBRBERZ RS HINE
ERGZEERA - EE MR ERERHERRFRKEBREIERZ FIORRE
M- ARBHERXFEETRARE BRI EBASZIMN - EHHHNREE
£ REIZAAENEESMREHRA - LI RFERYEESHMEEE
mHRHBE  VRRFPAERSFNRIBBEKRBARER At - AREFESEY
RAMHERR —Z-NFHFRER - ARSRRFBLBERATEERIEM
RAMSIEBEXR(WER) -
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Shenyang Public Utility Holdings
Company Limited
BN RERBDBERAR

That company’s principal businesses is construction of infrastructure and development
of properties.

RZARNEBRHEAMRIERRLDERR

As disclosed in the annual report of that company for the year ended 31 December
2018, given the pressure of economic downturn in the PRC and the internal adjustment
of the company in 2019, the company will adhere to the development objective of
making steady progress, continue to maintain its core competitiveness and push ahead
the development of existing projects. At the same time, the company will rationalise or
reduce the size of underperforming projects and actively seek and attract investment
projects that are more in line with the company’s strategic objectives with better
development prospects, and adjust the proportion of the company’s investment in
industrial projects and financial business to fully optimise the company’s resource
allocation. In addition, the board of the company will continue to devote efforts
to explore various investment opportunities and enhance the company’s market
competitiveness both in the good times and bad times with a view to generating more
business opportunities for Shareholders.

BUZARBE_ZT— \F+_A=1T—RHILFENFHRAKE - EXTRKHE
E-Z-NFEBRTTENARRAARBAE  AAKERHBFRENERE
B BBERFARZOET N HEERERAMNER  NURE  BERERA
AIERATEMNER  BERSKAISETAFAERANT - ENAAREEBFHN
KREER  UYRARLAEXBEAREREMEBRENLD - OE(CARE
RECE - MAREESNEBHIRBTRNRERSE REARNTSHEN
ERcEBRESYR HEENREABRRAEEZEK -

The Directors believe that the future performance of the equity securities EERRAEBF 2B LT ARRKRAK
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange held by the Group will be BHEIAREKBA B BBEERE B4XH
affected by the overall economic environment, capital market conditions, BhA  REEBERKREBERATNRER

investor sentiment and the business performance of the investee WRE BEFGHEBS KA ARRERE
companies. The Board will continue to look for attractive investment FEIM&E ARSI N2 IREE o

opportunities which can generate better returns to its shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant investments by the B E PR ERSN - AN S B 5 o] B HA R O A

Group during the period under review.

TEMEANIKRE -

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year EEMEBRRNBE_ZE-NF=A=1—

ended 3| March 2019 (2018: Nil).

HIEFEZARBARB(ZE—N\F : £) -
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As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 7,611,690,000 (2018: 6,343,690,000). On 3 August 2018,
1,268,000,000 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Li
Yuguo at the subscription price of HK$0.25 per share. Details of the
subscription of shares are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 17 April 2018 and 3 August 2018 and the circular of the Company
dated 5 June 2018.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May
2015 and 20 August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 6 July
2015 in relation to the placing of a 3-year 4% coupon convertible bonds
due 2018 (at a conversion price of HK$0.72 — subject to adjustment) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$432,000,000 (the “2015 CB
Placing’). The 2015 CB Placing was completed on 20 August 2015 (the
“Convertible Bonds”). The outstanding principal amount of Convertible
Bonds as at 31 March 2018 was HK$244,800,000.

On 20 August 2018, the Convertible Bonds were matured and none of the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds had been converted
into shares. The Company had redeemed the outstanding Convertible
Bonds in whole at a redemption price equal to 100% of the outstanding
principal amount of HK$244,800,000 together with all accrued and unpaid

interests thereon and completed all relevant procedures thereafter.

RZFE—NAF=ZA=+—H " ARRBET
B BB AT.611,690,0000(=ZF—N
F : 6,343,690,000/%) - RZE—NF/N\A=
H - 1,268,000,000 8% 7 & i iz 12 R B B F AR
OB TEREERETTEZERHLE - BH
RERMD 2 FBEREARFTARHAZZT—N
FOA+EtBEER-Z—N\FENAB=ZBZAM
URARARBHA-—ZE—N\FARABZA

HIRMARNRBHAT—RAFAA - +—
AR-ZEZ—HENAZFTHEZAHBUARARR
AAMAZTE—RAFLANBZAEK  RAA
BB E RS ETEH S A432,000000%8 T
—E-NFIH(EBRERIEIL AT
AR)Z=FH  4a%EB 2 RES (1=
E-hEABRESFEEEE]) - T —h
FrAImREFEEFEERZE—HFNA
ZTAEA(TAT#®RERES]) - TRERESFR
- N\FZR=ZT—HWNAREBLALEAL
244,800,000/ 7T °

RZE—NFENAZ+H  JBRESRE D
H BUERRESZAEERCERSE
BmAERG - AAREBHELREETHRRK
BEH BELHEXRBESERE2BREELLE
244,800,000/ JT#E [Fl T B FE AT R AR AT FE. -
WHEETHRABRERR o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
ESeHAHEEERNWR O

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP
Placing of Shares on 3 August 2018

The net proceeds (net of all relevant costs and expenses) from placing
of shares under special mandate on 3 August 2018 were approximately
HK$316,500,000. Details of the placing of shares were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated |7 April 2018 and 3 August 2018
and the circular of the Company dated 5 June 2018.

REEZRETE
R-ZE-NFNA=ZHEEKR G
RZZ—NENA=R  REBEERIFERE
R 2 TS B F (KR AT A BER A R
R ) #)5316,500,00058 7T © BL EFHAXMD 2 5
BERARARNBHPA-T— N\FHA+LA
NZFE—NFNAZB2Z22HARKRREH

Up to 31 March 2019, the Group had used the net proceeds as follows:

Intended use of net
proceeds

FERERE RERR

Original allocation of net
proceeds

FERERECRAIE

Actual use of net
proceeds

FrEnaREcERAR

% of net
HK$' million proceeds
BEET MREREFEY
Capital expenditure on 56.0 I7.7% Capital expenditure on
the production facilities of the production facilities of
Hunan Xintian Hunan Xintian
HEMEEEREZ AEHAEEREL
ERRX BRI
Potential acquisition of 2130 67.3% Acquisition of Shenyang
business or companies Properties
-t IR e S
Working capital of the Group 475 [5.0% Working capital of the Group
AEEREER AEERERS
3165 100.0%
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HRE-_T-N\FXRXNARAZAEHA -

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—H FXEEE®E

RS SRIFRT -

Actual allocation of net 31 March 31 March

proceeds 2019 2019

Hz W-B-1%

“E-hn§ =ZA=t-H

ZR=1t-B FEREFE

FEREREZERIE [ ZHE
% of net

HK$' million proceeds HK$' million HK$' million

BEAT MEHREFE% BEBTT BEAT

56.0 17.7% - 56.0

2130 67.3% 2130 -

475 15.0% - 475

3165 100.0% 213.0 1035

Remaining
Utilisation balance of net
up to proceeds as at



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

ESSRAEEEENWR DM

Placing of Shares on 8 August 2017 R-EFE—tFNANAEERE

The net proceeds (net of all relevant costs and expenses) from placing RZE—+tFNANH  BE—REERS

of shares under general mandate on 8 August 2017 were approximately D 2 BT RIE F 5 (R Fra Bk A &

HK$249,900,000. Details of the placing of shares were set out in the Fi s ) #49/5249,900,000/8 7T » BEREFIRD 2 5

announcements of the Company dated 7 July 2017 and 8 August 2017. BFERANATHBPA-_Z—+FLtALBRK
ZZE—tFNANBZAMHGA -

by

Up to 31 March 2019, the Group had used the net proceeds as follows: HEZZT-—NF=-ZA=1+—H8 ' x&£EBE#F
FPTSRIEFENAT -

Remaining
Utilisation balance of net
up to proceeds as at

Intended use of net Original allocation of net  Actual use of net Actual allocation of net 31 March 31 March

proceeds proceeds proceeds proceeds 2019 2019

BE R-B-NE

“Z2-hf =ZA=t+-H

ZRA=1t-B FBREFE

FEREFE RERR FERERECREIR FERARECERAR FRREFHE ERIE BER oA o
% of net % of net

HK$' million proceeds HK$' million proceeds HK$' million HK$' million

BEBTL MENEFEY BERTL MEREE% AEBT BERT

Acquisition and development 2499 100.0% Capital expenditure on 79 32% 79 -
of businesses related to the production facilities of
natural resources or Hunan Xintian

the products thereof or
working capital of

the Group
YELREREXRERL HEMREERE
EERMER EBIAR ERRX
Bv2EES
Operating expenses of 120 4.8% 120 -
the Company
AR EERN
Redemption of 2300 92.0% 230.0 -
convertible bonds
B A AR B 55
2499 100.0% 2499 100.0% 2499 -
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Placing of Shares on 16 November 2015

The net proceeds (net of all relevant costs and expenses) from placing of
shares under special mandate on 16 November 2015 were approximately
HK$472,600,000. Details of the placing of shares were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 22 May 2015 and 16 November
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 3 July 2015.

On 23 May 2017, the Board have decided to change the use of the net
proceeds that the new allocation of the net proceeds would meet the
Group's business and operational needs more effectively in line with the
Group's business development. Details of the change in use of proceeds
from subscription was set out in the announcement of the Company on 23
May 2017.

Up to 31 March 2019, the Group had used the net proceeds as follows:

Investment in entities engage 2440 51.6% Redemption of promissory
in exploitation, production notes for acquisition of
and sales of spring water Spring Water Ding Dong

RERESRARE B RKITIE 2
TERHECER EES

Working capital of the Group 230 4.9% Working capital of the Group

ARECEEES rEEEEES

Deposited in the bank 2056 43.5% Acquisition of Shenyang
accounts for intended use Properties

FRRBRITRPAIE WEESNR
e Ak

4726 100.0%
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R-_E—FF+—A+XABERH
RZE—RF+—A+-H - BREFIEE
B & FAR D 2 PS8 F 58 (R T A MR
AR ) #95472,600,0007 7T o B & F AR
MZHBEENARRAHA-_T—AERA
T+ ZHEZE—HF+—A+BZAMH
UWEARARBEHA-_ZE—RFEL-A=HZA
KA o

R B +FRA-+=RH EFREEX
FISRERE - DR TDEKEA R mER
SEXBREBTR YEAEEEBE
‘- BUNRBERZMBIFAREZFITH
RARRABMA-—Z—+tHFRA=-+=HZ
NA

BHE_ZT-hF=A=+—B ~EEE®
RS RIFRAT

2440 51.6% 2440 =

230 4.9% 230 =
205.6 43.5% 205.6 =
4726 100.0% 4726 =



Shareholders’ equity increases from approximately HK$2,145,072,000 as at
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$2,213,608,000 as at 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had convertible bonds of approximately
HK$234,287,000. The convertible bonds was fully redeemed during the
year ended 31 March 2019 and there was no other interest bearing debt as

at 31 March 2019.

On 13 November 2018, the Company has implemented a capital

reorganisation involving a capital reduction and share subdivision:

(a) the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by a reduction
of the par value of each issued existing shares from HK$0.25 to
HK$0.0 1 which reduction comprised a cancellation of such amount of
the paid-up capital on each issued existing share so that each issued
existing share was treated as one fully paid-up share of par value of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company and the credit
arising from the capital reduction was credited to the contributed

surplus account of the Company; and

(b) each of the authorised but unissued existing shares of par value of
HK$0.25 each was sub-divided into 25 new shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each.

The capital reorganisation was approved by the shareholders of the
Company during the special general meeting on |2 November 2018 and

the capital reorganisation became effective on 13 November 2018.

For details of the capital reorganisation, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 2| September 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated |5 October 2018.

BREER T NF=ZA=Z+—HB%
2,145,072,0008 T MNER T —NF= A
=+—H#927213,608,000/& T °

R_ZT—NFE=ZA=+—8 KEBHHE
A& %5 49 /234,287,000 7T - HE T — N
FZA=T—HILFE  TRBREFEZH
Bl MBE—T—hAF=A=+—HAE
Hih B ER -

ARAR-ZZF-—NFE+—A+=BEITHRAE
Bl BRESRARD REOD DA

(@) ARARIEREHTRBERND < EHER
0258 TLMAZE00IBTT « LU AR T
ZEEBETRA - AR BEEER
ERTREKRMECEEE#E 228K
N FEEGREFITRERONEEZE
AR D1 B EAR R BIRAF B ERKR
HEEA00IBILZEHRD - BRAR D
FTEAMERFBERBARAAEHZS
R R

(b) EFRERBEERBITZEEARE T
ZHRBROWEA T ARG - Tk
ZHE{EA00IETT -

BAEARN—_ZT—N\F+—A+=-BZERE
BRlAke FERARRELE  EAEHR
—E-N\Ft+—At=HEHK-

BREAEHEZFE  FLHARBAHR

—E-NFAAZF+—HZAMGEAXRARH
AT )\F+A+HEAZEXR-
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,720,466,000 (2018: HK$2,860,646,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of approximately HK$371,716,000 (2018:
HK$569,728,000), non-current liabilities of approximately HK$ 16,452,000
(2018: HK$36,354,000), non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$ 118,690,000 (2018: HK$109,492,000) and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$2,2 13,608,000 (2018: HK$2,145,072,000).

As at 3| March 2019, the Group's current ratio was approximately 2.6
(2018: 2.55) and gearing ratio was nil (2018: 10.92%).

As at 3| March 2019, except for the capital commitment amounting to
approximately HK$307,622,000 (2018: HK$754,344,000), the Group had

no other material capital commitment.

At at 31 March 2019, the Group had contingent liabilities amounting to
RMB200,000,000 (2018: RMB200,000,000). Details are set out in note 39

to the consolidated financial statements,
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A_ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 AEEZE
A E# 5272046600058 7T ( = T — )\
F 1 2,860,646,00087C) - MBI EBELD
371,716,000 7T ( =& — )\ : 569,728,000
BIT) C EREBEEL 164520008 T (=F
— A\ 363540008 T ) « FEIERERL
118,690,000 7T ( =& — /A 1 109,492,000
S TT) R IR R AE 2 £2,213,608,000/8 L (=&
—J\%F © 2,145,072,000/8 70 ) 48K °

R-ZZE-NE=A=+—8 KXEEZLEH
LbELAE26(ZF—)\F 1 255)  MEAE
BEHERAEZT(ZZ—)\F : 1092%) °

RZE-—NAF=ZA=Z+—8 ' KBY
307,622,000/ 7T ( =& — \4F : 754,344,000/%8
TC) ZBAEFEIN - AREE W AR A M E K
BAAESE -

RZZ—AFE=A=+—08 XEEHHA
BEAARE2000000007T(ZF—NFE : A
R #200,000,0007T) ° FHIEEH N ERE BBk
BI5E39 o



Disposal of 100% equity interests of China Value Assets
Limited and Merit Development Limited

On 12 July 2018, the Company entered into a disposal agreement with
a third party in relation to the disposal of 100% equity interests of China
Value Assets Limited and Merit Development Limited at the consideration
of HK$33,000,000. The disposal had been completed on 28 September
2018. Details of the disposal were disclosed in the announcements dated
[2 July 2018 and 28 September 2018.

Disposal of the entire registered capital of Shaanxi
Hewan Transportation Energy Co., Ltd." (R BXE
FERBEREMELA)

On 2| September 2018, the Company entered into a disposal agreement
with a third party in relation to the disposal of the entire registered
capital of REAME X AELIRBMR AT AT at the consideration of
approximately HK$4,820,000. The disposal had been completed on the

same date.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisitions or

disposals of the Company during the year under review.

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 45 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group mainly exposes to the RMB, arising from relevant group entities’
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities for the

Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy to
eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

*  For identification purpose only

4 & China Value Assets Limited
K Merit Development Limited Z
100% /R &z

RZZTE—N\FLtA+=ZH ARAEZFE
=R EI M HE W - AR (B 33,000,000 %
JL 1 & China Value Assets Limited & Merit
Development LimitedZ | 00%% A< #E & o 218
HEER-_T—NFNA _—H\El A o
EEHEHBRASA-T—\FLA+=
Ak=F—N\FNA :‘H\EIZ’AWWﬁE% °

HERBHNEBXBEREREFLA
ZEEAMERX

R-ZZ—NFLA=-+—8 RXAREFE=
FEI M HE W - LA (E 494,820,000/ 7T i
ERANMERBERERET AR ZE2HE
MER - RIEHERRFRATHK °

fr LA EESN  REBEFER A2
I?ﬁﬁ@éﬁ”ﬁlﬁ%ﬁkﬁ% °

EAGLEHREEHFBIREGS
5545 °

B 7% R Mt

AEBNELEBAAAREEERIAING
FHEMENEEEBBESCAREIZHEA
RE&zEBRAR -

$E.£EBTIEWE/I§]%\1%MH B RRTE SN B

HHER - A BEEBETYIERBENIN
Rk - gﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁiﬂikﬁ’]ﬁl\%ﬂﬁ“ °
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The Group has a total of approximately 47 (2018: 42) employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2019. The total cost (staff salaries,
directors’ emoluments and other staff costs) for the year ended 31 March
2019 amounted to approximately HK$9,638,000 (2018: HK$10,272,000).
Remuneration packages are generally structured according to market
environment and individual performance. Apart from the mandatory
provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group also provides
medical benefits and subsidises employees in various training and

continuous education programs.

Save and except for those disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2019, no other assets have been pledged to

secure credit facilities.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders and business associates for their ongoing support and extend
our appreciation to our management team and staff members for their

contributions to our achievements in the year.

By order of the Board

Li Yuguo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 76 to 77.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall
be in accordance with the Articles of Association of the company and the

distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
earnings per share, the reasonable return in investment of the investors
and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue
to support the Group in their long-term development, the financial
conditions and business plan of the Group, and the market sentiment and

circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year

ended 31 March 2019.

ARRAEBEFEZNREBE_T-NAF=A
=T HLEFEZEFREEERGEAVBHR
%o

ARBIER—BREZERAR - X EHK
BARz TEXBEN G A MIEwRM T2 -

AEEBE_T-AF=-A=t—"RHILFE
ZERBENFICEERTTAZEABER A
flEER R ©

ARACHRMBEBR(IREBEK]) » &
- ARBAEBRES B T ARARE
BRERIRERS - FAREDEHENTE AR
AABERMARMZAE  DEREREE
o REMRAIFEL -

XNEMBRENEEGTFEEENBYNIE
RMmE @ AEFRRBARE ZEIRA R IRRALLE
B AMEE - EIEBRERER - EFET
EEBAKBENERAN  REE MRS
BEREDH - UASBEMFIEE A EE
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g UERMZRALBR

PR B BUR B ITIRET - X REEER
HERPRNEZZREIRKE °
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Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Details of share options are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

A review of the Group's business during the year ended 3| March 2019 are
set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 27 to 33 which

forms part of this Directors’ Report.

The Group’s financial position, business results and prospects would be
affected by a number of risks including operational risk, market risk and
financial risk. The Group's property business in the PRC which is susceptible
to change in government policies and foreign currency risk. The Group’s
money lending business is subject to credit risk. The Group's securities
trading business is affected by the volatility of the stock market. The
Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are shown in

note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2019 which comprises contributed
surplus of approximately HK$ 180,030,000 less accumulated losses of
approximately HK$1,480,643,000. Accordingly, the Company has no

reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2019.
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Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 3| March 2019 are set out in note 18 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 and

up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yuguo

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

Ms. Guo Yumei

Mr. Huang Yilin (re-designated as Non-executive Director
on | August 2018)

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (retired on 31 August 2018)

Mr. Chan Yuk Sang (resigned on 6 December 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang
(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Huang Yilin (re-designated on | August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ba Junyu
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhu Xueyi
(appointed on |3 September 2018)
Mr. Wong Chung Man
(appointed on 24 July 2018)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (resigned on | August 2018)
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (resigned on |3 September 2018)

REBEZE-_T-NF=A=+—BILFER
BRAAEEZYME BERRBZIE2HFE
FINR B TS MR 18

RBEZE-_T-NF=A=+—BLEFEAR
BEABREAMIEARR 2ESNAT ¢
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BERMEE(R_Z—N\FENA—BHAEI)

BUHNTEE
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REBEELE
(R=B—N\FAAT=BREM)
B E
(RZB-NFLtA-+HAREE)
EEMEA(R-_E—N\ENA—BEE)
HERLEN=_F-N\FNA—HEHT)
AR E(R-E—\FAA+ZBEHI)

Annual Report 2019 F#



In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Yang
Xiaogiang and Mr. Zhu Xueyi will retire at forthcoming General Meeting,
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the

forthcoming General Meeting.

In accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Li Yuguo
and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at

the Annual General Meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
for a term of three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election

at the Annual General Meeting as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture
of the Company

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model
Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHE

Long positions in shares, underlying shares and RZALXGREG - HEKRGREHZ
debentures of the Company B

Number of ordinary shares held

BREZEBRYE
Approximately
percentage of
Number of the issued
Personal  share options Total share capital of
Name of director Capacity interest held interests  the Company
(Notel)
R YN
BAZ ERTREZ
EEng &t B AR BREHE Y $ BrEIt
Li Yuguo Beneficial owner 2,268,000,000 - 2,268,000,000 29.80%
FEE ExfAA
Yang Xiaogiang (Note 2) Beneficial owner ,330,000,000 - 1,330,000,000 17.47%
BNR(HaE2) Ea@AA
Huang Yilin Beneficial owner 70,000 - 70,000 0.00%
BRM ExfAA
Wong Chung Man (Note 3) Beneficial owner 1,650,000 - 1,650,000 0.02%
BN (AiE3) Ex@AA
Notes: Bt -
The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the . ZEADLIBRBARRAR_E-AF=ZRA=+—
Company of 7,61 1,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2019. B2 BETRNAEET,611,690000RHE -
2. Appointed on |3 September 2018. 2. RZZE—N\FENAT=ZHEZE -
3. Appointed on 24 July 2018. 3 RIZE-N\FLA-THBEEZRE-
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors or
the chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on |4 January 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme’) had been terminated on 9 August 201 |
and a new share option scheme (the “201 | Share Option Scheme”) was

adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 I.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
220,000.
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the share

options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Category |: Director

ER- 8%
Zhang Xianlin (Note) (2 Jul 2011 (2Jul 2011 = 11 Jul 2021 1775
REMm(fi) ZE-ErAtZR ZF-ELAfoRE
“F-FtAT-R
Total for Director
s
Category 2: Employees
BRI- 8
Employees (2 Jul 2011 (2 Jul 2011 - 11 Jul 2021 775
8 SE-EfAtcR CE--EHAfoREE
ZE--FtAt-A

Total for Employees

R4t

Total for all categories

ikt T2 i

Note: Resigned with effect from | August 2018.

140,000

140,000

80000

80000

220000

The closing price of the Company's shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant was HK$0.07| (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital

reorganisation became effective on 3 June 2013).

REBEERN  RE_ZT _FERETEZ
ERBZBEREFBERESHWT

- - - 140,000

- - - 140,000

- - - - 80,000

- - - 80000

- - - - 120000

Wi DRI a-F—/\&/\F— 0Lk -
ARG R L B BB AT 2 W
BAR7IBL(MRAEENR T —=ZF X
BA=BEMEAEE7758T) °
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2011 Share Option Scheme

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 21 August 2017.
On 21 September 2017, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
shareholders at annual general meeting of the Company, approving, inter
alia, to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the 201 | Share Option
Scheme of the Company adopted on 9 August 201 1. The refreshed
scheme limit as at 2| September 2017 was 634,369,000.

During the year under review, the details and movements in the share

options granted under 201 | Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Category |: Directors

£hl- g2
Wu Hongquan (Note )~ 28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 0261 53,000,000
RERWEI) It i “T-REAAZTNRE
AAZTIA “ECAFAAZ T
Huang Yilin 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 039 27,000,000
S “E-nf “E-nfMA-THE
mAZ1A “ECREMATAR
28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 0261 53,000,000
“ENE E-AEAACTNRE
ARZTIE “ECAEAAZ T
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ESTHRE

Date of grant

R A%

Chan Shi Yin, Keith (Note 2) 20 Apr 2015
RaB(Hit2) _2-1f
BA=1H
28 Sept 2016
-5

—%

AA=+N\A

Li Yali (Note 3)
FanlbEs)

28 Sept 2016
ZEAF

AA=+NA

Zhang Zhensheng (Note 3) 28 Sept 2016
REE W) It it
AA=tAR

Zhang Xianlin (Note 4)
REMHE)

26 Aug 2014

It S|
NAZ1A~H

30ct 2014

“2-QE
+A=H

20 Apr 2015

Z2-1f
mAZ+H

28 Sept 2016

R

hAZTNB

Exercisable period

T8

20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
ZE-1ENAZTAE
“ECREMATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
2 ENRZTNRE
ZRIRERAZTER

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“T-REARCTNRE
ZRIRERAZTER

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“T-REAACTNRE
ZRIRERAZTER

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024
ZE-PEENAZTABEE
ZZ-RENAZTERA
30ct 2014-2 Oct 2024
ZE-WETAZRE
“B-RETAZA
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
ZZ-1EMAZTRE
ZECREMATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
ZE-ENAZTNRE
ZBIRENAZTER

Number of share options

RRENE
Exercise Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
priceper  at | April during during during during at 31 March
share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2019
R-§-N§ RZB-1F
§k BA-A ZAzt-H
B HATE REARY  REAGE  RERXN  REAEE  HAOE
HK$
S
0395 27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000
0261 53,000,000 - - - - 53,000,000
0261 53,000,000 - - (53,000,000) - -
0261 53,000,000 - - (53,000,000) - -
0352 200,000 - - - - 200000
0520 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
039 500,000 - - - - 500000
0261 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
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ESEHRE

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

(Note 4)
PES W)

Total for Directors

g2t

Date of grant

R A%

26 Aug 2014

_Z-mF
NAZt7~H
30ct 014
“I-mE
+A=H
20 Apr 2015
ZZ-nf
MAZ+H
28 Sept 2016
ZT5F
hAZTNH

Exercisable period

T8

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024

“E-MENAZT/BE
“ECRFAAZTRA
30ct 2014 -2 Oct 204
“2-RE+AZRZ
ZECRFTAZA
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
“E-REMNAZTHE
ZECRENATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
2 EMAZTNEER
ZEIREMACTER

Exercise
price per

share

5B
TR
HKS

g
BL

0352

0520

039

0261
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Number of share options

RRENE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
at | April during during during during at 31 March
2018 the year the year the year the year 2019
R=2-N%F R=2-1%
mA-A ZA=t-H
HATE REARE RERTE REREN  REREE  BROE
200,000 - - - = 200000
1,000,000 - - - = 1,000,000
500,000 - = = = 500000
5,000,000 - = = = 5,000,000
332,400,000 = - (159,000,000)  (80,000,000) 93400000
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EEEWE

Date of grant

R A%

Category 2: Employees
BH- R

Employees 26 Aug 2014
& It S 2
NAZt7A
30ct 2014
“E-PF
+A=H
20 Apr 2015
Z3-1F
mAZ1A
28 Sept 2016

R

hAZtNE

Total for Employees
Eh

Exercisable period

T8

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024
ZE-PENAZTRER
ZZ-MENAZTEHA
30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024
ZE-WETAZRE
“B-RETACA
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
ZZ-1EMAZTRE
“ECRENATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
ZE-REAAZTNRE
ZBIRENAZTER

Exercise
price per

share

5B
TR
HKS

0352

0520

039

0261

Number of share options

RRENE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
at | April during during during during at 31 March
2018 the year the year the year the year 2019
R=2-N%F R=2-1%
BA-A ZR=t1-H
HATE REARE RERTE REREN  REREE  BROE
1,200,000 - - (700,000) - 500000
(1,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - 1,000,000
20,200,000 - - (20,200,000) - -
46,500,000 - - (42,000,000) - 4500000
78,900,000 - - (72900,000) - 6,000,000
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Category 3: Consultant
£H= BR

Consuftant (Note 5) 28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 0261 53,000,000
BR(Hits) It it ZEENRZTNRE
AAZT/B ZECREAACTHE

Total for Consultant 53,000,000
BRa

Total for all categories 464,300,000
Gk b

Note |: Resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 28 April 2017, but remained as

a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group till 12 September 2017.

Note 2: Retired with effect from 31 August 2018.
Note 3: Resigned with effect from 28 April 2017.
Note 4: Resigned with effect from | August 2018.
Note 5: Terminated with effect from 27 September 2017.

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the respective dates of grant of 26 August 2014, 3 October 2014, 20
April 2015 and 28 September 2016 were HK$0.345, HK$0.520, HK$0.395
and HK$0.255 respectively.
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Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in securities
and share options in the note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2019, was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

As at 31 March 2019, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the following persons (other than any director
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Li Yuguo Beneficial owner
FEHE BERmBEEA

Yang Xiaojiang Beneficial owner

15/ o8 BEmEAA

Note: The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the

Company of 7,61 1,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2019.

REXREZERE R 2 Em MR A M BHRER
MIeE32 BRI EE SN - RAFREL
AMBARNEE _E-NF=A=1+—H
IEFEEAAISEHEESET TR &
FEARRB 2 EFAFZRBEAR B M EM
EAEEZBRMKERER(BRES) ME
Al o

RZB-NF=ZA=1T—8 BEFREAR
Al EFBITHRABMAM U TAL(KRRAME
MEERTBITHRABRINRARRRND K&
RO P HEREIRR - MAREES
KEAG GROIEXVEBSE2 R 335 &6 2 R /E
WEE > REBRARREARBESNPEK
BIE36EAFEZERMA - HRBTHER
NCIINE B

2,268,000,000 29.80%

[,330,000,000 |7.47%

Wit ZEEILIRBEARAR-_F-NAF=A
=+ —HZBBITRMBET61,6900008 & 17D

CER
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest of 5% or more in the issued shares capital of the

Company as at 31 March 2019.

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2019.

Placing of shares

On |7 April 2018, the Company and Mr. Li Yuguo, the Chairman, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Li agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company agreed to allot and issue, 1,268,000,000 shares in
the Company, representing approximately 19.99% of the then issued share
capital of the Company and approximately 16.66% of the issued share
capital as enlarged by the said shares at the consideration of HK$0.25 per
share, totaling HK$317,000,000. The placing of shares was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
on 26 June 2018. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 April 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 5
June 2018.

Sale of Bottled Water Products

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2019, on 4 April 2019, Beijing
BEREAR
A R]) (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and

Qiaofeng Commercial Trading Company Limited* (1t 5

Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong Beverages Company Limited* (B8R
KPR R B R A F]) (the “Supplier”), a company controlled by Mr. Li
Yuguo, the Chairman, an executive Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company, entered into the agreement, pursuant to which the
Supplier has agreed to supply, and the Purchaser has agreed to procure,
bottled water products. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 4 April 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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During the year, the Group had not made any charitable donations (2018:
Nil).

The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company
has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet reached an
agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance premium of
new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal action which
may be taken against the Directors of the Company has not been in place
since 21 May 2018. The Company will continue to liaise with the insurer on
the same.

Save as disclosed in respect of convertible bonds and share options in
notes 30 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year ended 3| March 2019 or subsisted at the end of the year.

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2019, attributable to
the Group's five largest customers represented 100% of the Group's total

sales.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the principal

activities of the Group.

At no time during the year ended 3| March 2019, did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.

During the year ended 3| March 2019, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from the
mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group
also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in different

training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided, having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 32 to

the consolidated financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors or any of their respective close associates has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or

has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

Mr. Li Yuguo BEEREEXARAA]

FEEEE 3%?“
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Ultimate beneficial owner

with 100% interest
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The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2019.

A resolution to re-appoint Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the 2019

Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Yuguo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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LAU ’ AREESHNEFZABRAT
LAU & AU YEUNG C.PA. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 76 to 242, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

BRMERBEEE S RGRM 2T EERT
EQ([FBBTER D ETEZ - RIOIEZ
ERATAEZEEEEAREXBEILE
AHRA M B MRAE ZBERDFPIFE—F
Mt - REEZESHAMAGZEEXGAB
ETAATEBE TR - KAWL '
S8 YERTTAF2EMBEREET - K
PHEE BRAEGZETRERARIEER
R EZE R RHER -

FARE FEARBRMzERXHE - 3,
AR ARG AU BRRIBAR/EELZ
FH GELFHERERMEAEBREMK
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Recoverability of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

BREPURRIFFELE BRI R 2 TR E %

Refer to Notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
2R Ga B EmAMT21 X2 -

The Group had approximately HK$292,449,000 of properties under
development and HK$370,950,000 of completed properties held for sale
as at 31 March 2019.

R-F-NE=A=1+—H  BEXRESEERTYHR292449,000
BILRIFEH & 2 B3R W #)370,950,000/8 7T ©

Management assessed the recoverability of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale based on an
estimation of the net realisable value of the underlying properties. This
involves considerable analyses of estimated costs to completion and
committed contracts and expected future sales price based on prevailing
market conditions such as current market prices of comparable standards
and locations.
EREREEMYEZAAAIERFETHERTYELSELE
ZEERMEZAIREE o BRI RENTT RAGEE K2 EETK
ARENRERTR(FIMAIELBRERUE 2 ERTHE) ZFRHAR
KEBZIREDH °
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Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment of recoverability of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale included:
BASRERBHERTOERFHELEZ
BRI 2 TR 2 BT B B 2 12
Frek

* Testing the key controls around the
property construction cycle with particular
focus on, but not limited to, controls over
cost budgeting for estimated costs to
completion; and

- AFERMEREBHRIEEET L
HERR(ETRR) B IRARZ
PRATREEE - &



Recoverability of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (continued)

BREDYERBEHEZSERYE 2 TRE 4% (F)

If the actual net realisable values of the underlying stock of properties
fluctuate from those values estimated as a result of changes in market
condition, material reversal of or provision for impairment losses on
properties under development and completed properties held for sale
may result.
HEAMEFENERTERFERTREEMEZFMETEET
[ AIATRESIMEARBRRFT VX EFIFHE 2D B ERERER
[l 3 Sk 4

Due to the significance of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, the estimation uncertainty and management
judgement, we considered this a key audit matter.
HREBERTOERFELEIEEXMENERN B THE
HREREHE - RFIR B ERESFE -

* Assessing the reasonableness of
key assumptions and estimates in
management’s assessment, including:

- AMEETERRNREBENGPETANS
Bt B

* expected future sales prices which
we compared to contracted sales
prices of the underlying properties or
current market prices of properties of
comparable standards and locations,
where applicable; and

- REHAREEBEEEDENAL
EEXAELBBRERUEYEN
ERTHE(ER)ETLER &

* anticipated costs to completion
and committed contracts which we
compared to latest approved budgets
on total construction costs and checked
to supporting documentation.

« BRI RAEA QTR KA EK
BN ARENAREETHER
NEFBRAXM

We found that management's assessment
of recoverability of properties under

development and completed properties held
for sale is supported by the available evidence.
BHPEEEERBHERTYELFSELE
ZBEERR YA R Y B YRR RHE 0 A 1R
A e
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Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets

AR EE 2 SRR 2 BERE

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

2HERE M MARMEEI9 ©

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of the water mining licence
included in intangible assets was approximately HK$374,412,000.

—E-NF=ZR=1T—H FABFEEZFKBEZREENOR
374,4|2,ooo;%:§7c °

As detailed in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements,
commercial production of bottled mineral water has not yet commenced
during the year.

iR E ISR 1 9f - AR RKH B EEENF A KM
Lol

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
water mining licence at the end of each reporting period. Management
determined the recoverable amount of the water mining licence based
on the fair value estimated by an independent external expert who used
multi period excess earnings method, in which key assumptions included
expected price of bottled mineral water, net profit margin and discount
rate.

SEANBSHRERREBFORKBEAMRETR - REBILINEE
%ﬁﬂﬂ LMW EMA A FEETN I Z2RREBEREE
FKZTEHER AMNERFRX)  EREEEHRKEZAIRE S
LAl
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Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment of water mining licence included:

HEOKBEAE 2 REMMEZIZF B2 -

* Evaluation of the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
with particular focus on the impairment
assessment of water mining licence;

« FHEEBEREREEE 2 RET BN
R RIRIEREROKRE < BUERE

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on general conditions
of the bottled mineral water industry;

o REBEMERRKITEZ — BTGP
ERNEETE  TBEBRINEARE
&

* Evaluating the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the
management'’s expert; and

- FIHEEREEBERKREE BN FHKE
ISEAVA LN



Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets (continued)

AR EE 2 SRKE 2B E RS ()

This area was significant to our audit due to the significance of the
balances, and the fact that management’s assessment of the recoverable
amount of the balances involved significant judgement.
HRBRBEIFFEAMNEREEN EHRB ALY REAHE -
HEHERERERER -

*  Checking the key assumptions including
expected price of bottled mineral water,
net profit margin and discount rate against
industry data.

s BUOREBERIERR(BERER
FOKZ BB ~ ANIERIEEK) o

We found that the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.

HPEEEXIR2BRERIDAERAK -
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Impairment assessment of interests in associates

REE D7z R E R

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

24 A SRR MIFE20 -

The Group has 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding
Dong Group Company Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary in
Guangxi, which are presented as interests in associates under the equity
method. The principal activities of the associates are production and sales
of bottled mineral water. As at 31 March 2019, the interests in associates
amounted to approximately HK$210,517,000 and the related share of
losses of the associates was approximately HK$16,443,000.
EEERARERKTREBEARAAMEEAZEMNBARZ
0% - WIS A NB L AR Z S22 - BMEARNEE
EBREERHEREBRK -R_B—NEF=A=+—H ¥
BRAZEEL2210,5170008 T KRB IEZBERRBENR
16,443,000/8 7T °
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Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment of interests in
associates included:
B REIR B AR S QR 2 Em TR
BEFffEERRF 8

* Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s expert;

- FIHEEEEERZIKEE  EOIEREE
o



Impairment assessment of interests in associates (continued)

REEE N8z R E Tk (&)

The management performed impairment assessment of interests in
associates with the use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the value in use calculation.
The valuation requires the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, use of assumptions and judgements.

EEERNEE QR 2 B ETRERE - T ERBE L E XN E
EfiZEREEFEEZGLZGEE HEFTEEEERAENHE
Kfbat  OREEE 2 BEE - ERRR LA -

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on the general
conditions of the bottled mineral water
industry;

o RBMERRKITEZ — B G FT
ERNEETE  TEBRIMEARE
BiE

*  Checking the key assumptions including
expected price of bottled mineral water,
net profit margin and discount rate against
industry data.

s RUTEBBEERFIEBRR(BEMER
RORZFEHERE - AR EFBE) -

We found that the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

HPEEEXTREERIDAEAK -

Annual Report 2019 F#



Impairment assessment on deposit paid for the acquisition of Shenyang Properties

RUEEENEZ FNESE 2 BENG

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
SRRAH BREN 24 -

As at 3| March 2019, the carrying amount of deposit paid for the
acquisition of Shenyang Properties (“Deposit Paid”) included in
deposits for acquisition of investment properties was approximately
HK$624,452,000.

R-ZE-NF=ZA=+t—H BRURBESGYEINZS (2R
& 1) 2 BREE#)/624,452,000/& T °

As detailed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
termination agreement was signed on 24 April 2019 to terminate the
transaction.

WA BEHRERM T 247 - RUIERRER T —NAFEA
T MBEE  ARIERS -

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
Deposit Paid. Assessing the impairment of such asset is a judgemental
area which involved significant management’s judgement and estimation in
forecasting future economic conditions.
EEEAZREENRENEMBETR - sHEEREE ZRED R
BT 4 TR R R SR AR BRI B 0 B R HI T R A TRORI R SR AR AR
T e
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Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment of Deposit Paid included:

BMBEBENRERENE ZIEFETE

* Understanding and evaluating the key
controls that the Group has implemented
to manage and monitor the impairment
assessment;

- TEHREFE BEEECEEOBERIZES
HiE - AETE N ERRERT S

* Discussing with management and
evaluating information available about the
status of the property developer.

- MERBRBNBNEEEE T W M
EAISER -

We found that management’s assessment of
recoverability of Deposit Paid is supported by
available evidence.
HPEEEEEEMEMNRENAIKREREE
ZRHETI B IR AR ©



The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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REBMOZBEDRE ([ EEE])

BPEGEEMBRRNERL MREEMIE
B RALAHZFEMERBERTALR
HRAE A

BRRMEEEUBHRENET - RANE
TEREELGBES  ZEREMESRE EL
BUBHRRXBMERFBRETRTHENE
MEEEXNEBHEUFFEERSE R
BB o RIFFAPIFT A THE - R FIR
RZEMENFEEAHERRL - RAAR
E%EE - BRI mTEES -

ERAFIZEZEERBESSTMASRMH
BERMBREER KRB B RGO R B TR
EREEEMRBEZEEVBRE  WHHE
REBBEREVHEREMOEE T BRI
FE Sk B AR 1 2B B A B K B RR PR AL BT 7S 9 T T
ZEHEE  EREREMEHREE  EF8
il ESEERBELENEN  UEEA
ERATRERSECEBENEERFERR
BRESHEMBENFTEUARGTABERL

LEOTER  BRIFEZEESH BE£E3
Bk AR - S REEBEROER AR -

X B
o
by

i
IS

puy

iy

B

g

i

A

JiE

G

RS

=

S

of

it

Annual Report 2019 F#



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
[981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Au Yeung Tin Wah.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Au Yeung Tin Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P02343

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other losses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Provision for impairment loss on
other receivables and deposits paid

Provision for impairment loss on
properties under development

Provision for impairment loss on
completed properties held for sale

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Over-provision of land value added tax

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
Reclassification adjustments relating to
foreign operations disposed during the year
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

FEREEY
Yezk
HERA

EH

H e

H it &5 18

73 M IHE R

TR
DIEBERE 2 KIS
HipEURR M ENREZ
BB EEE
BRPMEZREERRE

FEHL & 2 BRRYEZRE
EiE AR

H =P B A Bz
TR AR R
BE R

BRI S 15

B
FEEFREERK
530
FEEEREXBZER
TEEBR

Hip2EWKE - BRHE
BRFREREBIERZ
EX DA
DIEBE R B E M W

BEBIEBEEZELEZRE
AREFZEMPERE @ FRER

FEEEZHEBELE
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8 38;
9 (©)
(16)

(39,098)
(7.855)

5(C) (4,479)
(54,399)
35 11,564
24,117

10 (62.935)
/ (132,720)
14 8,576
(124,144)
I5 (1,454)

(125,598)

(77)

134,994
134,917

9,319



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Loss attributable to: JEMREE -
Owners of the Company KNABEE A 17 (123,989)
Non-controlling interest FEIERRRERS (1,609)
(125,598)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  fE{F 2 MUz B8 -
Owners of the Company NARER A 10,859
Non-controlling interest JEIERR RS (1,540)
9,319
Loss per share attributable to EAREEANEEEBRER
owners of the Company
From continuing and discontinued operations R BB S MO R IFE
— Basic and diluted — BERREE 17 (0.021)
From continuing operations REFELEET
— Basic and diluted — EAREE 17 (0.021)
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As at 31 March 2019 A

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Interests in associates
Deposits paid

Current assets

Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Loan receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amount due from an associate

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Income tax prepaid

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance
Contract liabilities
Tax payable
Convertible bonds

Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

—NE=ZA=+—H

FRBEE
ME - BERRE
B EE
N NI e

BffEe

RBEE
BRPYE
ESR (el ARSI RYE 3
U E TR
BNFE  Ze Rk
H fth e Y BR R

FEN — KB A R 2 OB
LERE AN FEARZ
TRIEE
TERTFRHE

fE TT =] ﬁﬁ &Eﬁ <i>

DERBELEERE

RBAE
B 5 EMNIRR

Hib AR N E B

TE\ WskIE
BRAEG
JER IR
AR A

EOBRFELEEERRK

Rz aE

RBEEFE
BERERABRE
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22
23

24
20

25

26

27
28

30

8216
374,699
226,960
798,871

1,408,746

796,109

151,501

187,112

4,867

281,827

421,416
30,484

1,451,900

41,726
173,471
119,282

740
234,287

569,506

222

569,728

882,172

2,290918



Asat 31 March 2019 R=E—HNE=A=+—8H

Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital N 29 1,585,923
Reserves (e 36 559,149

Total equity attributable to RAREEAELEREE

owners of the Company 2,145,072
Non-controlling interest IR 109,492
2,254,564

Non-current liabilities *RBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 31 36,354
36,354
2,290,918

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEGAYSRRCHEFTER _E—NF

issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by: NA-t++HBEUEREETET S p/\‘F/\i
REEFAHE

Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
FEEEXE BRBELE
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEMT 2 Bt B S M BmEz 2z — 259

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

1: ")(,%E,%Ej]%:z

iﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—F —

At I April 2017 RZE-t£BA-R

Loss for the year TERER
Other comprehensive income for the year AEFEM2ENE

Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ANZLE

Lapse of share options BihELn

Acaquisition of subsidiary WERERA

Transactions with owners in BERERAGHNERA
their capacity as owners: #5
Issue of ordinary shares EEak

At3I March 2018 and | April 2018 R=-F—
R=F-/\mA-A

Loss for the year TEEEE
Other comprehensive income for the year A% EEM2 AN E

Total comprehensive income for the year A% 2 ANEAE

Lapse of share options BIREXT
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBARKER
Redemption of convertible bonds BRIk ES
Capital Reorganisation 2018 “T-/RrEA
Transactions with owners in HREREEAFROEEA
their capacity as owners: #25
Issue of ordinary shares EERk
At 31 March 2019 R-B-nE=A=t1-A

NEF=ZA=T—BIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTHEAESE

NEZRZT-ER

Convertible Share-based

Share Share Capital notes payment Special
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve
TRRZ Yol
kA BRE  OER

RAffh
0 H

3593 T 19830 75| 7331 929
- - - - (147)
250000 - - - -
16593 IS 196390 75| 62656 929
- - - S eT08)
- ) =
(1826806) S 1826806 = =
317,000 = = = =
WBUT IS 20515% = 15948 929
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Translation Accumulated

reserve

(169.541)

134848

134848

(34693)

(60551

(60551

(115244

losses

(1320516)

(123989)

(123989)

14675

(1429.830)

(158640)

(158640)

46708
o7
756!

(1478474

Subtotal

1884213

(123989)
134848

10859

250000

2145072

(158640)
(60551

@39.191)

o)

317,000

2213608

Attributable to
non-

controlling

interest
FERESR
feth

(5.47)

(1.609)
]

(1.540)

120179

109492

)
678

)

9273

118,690

1,875,066

(125.59%)
134917

9319

120,179
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(i)

The

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 31 May 2013,
the Company effected the capital reorganisation (“‘Capital Reorganisation 2013") which
became effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the consolidation of every twenty-five
issued and unissued shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share;
(if) the reduction of issued share capital whereby the par value of each issued consolidated
shares will be reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25 by cancelling the paid-up capital to the
extent of HK$1.00 on each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share of HK$0.25
each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction to the capital reserve
account of the Company; (iv) the sub-division of each unissued consolidated share into

five reduced shares of HK$0.25 each.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 12 November
2018, the Company implemented a capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation
2018") on I3 November 2018 which involved (i) capital reduction, pursuant to which
the issued share capital of the Company were reduced by a reduction of the par value of
each issued shares from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01, which reduction comprised a cancellation
of such amount of the paid-up capital on each issued share so that each issued share
were treated as one fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.0! in the share capital of
the Company immediately following the capital reduction and the credit arising from the
capital reduction were credited to the capital reserve account of the Company; and (ii)
sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued shares of par value of HK$0.25 into

twenty-five new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal amount of the
shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation over the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition of the

subsidiaries.

accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Interest income on bank deposits

Dividend income

Finance costs

Amortisation of land use right

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries

Fair value change on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Share of results of associates

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on
other receivables and deposits paid

Provision for impairment loss on properties
under development

Provision for impairment loss on completed
properties held for sale

Over-provision of land value added tax

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in properties
under development
Increase in completed properties held for sale
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables
Increase in amount due from an associate

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals

(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

Investing activities

Increase in deposit for acquisition of
investment properties

Refund of deposits paid

Net cash outflow to
acquisition of subsidiaries

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of land use right

Dividend income

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries
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(4.954)

6,259
(113,157)

(1,985)
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7916

(128,385)
(298)

(128,683)

(388,630)
156,748

33 (241,432)
175
(993)

21

35 450,606
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of convertible bonds
upon redemption
Proceeds from issue of new shares

Redemption of promissory notes

Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
Bank balances and cash included in assets

classified as held for sales
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ERFS
B BRERER
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the Company’s registered office
is disclosed in the corporate information of its annual report and
its principal place of business was changed from Unit 4312, 43/F,
COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’'s Road Central, Hong Kong to Room
2601, 26/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
property sales and investment operations in the People’s Republic of

China (the “PRC") and engaged in trading of goods in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by

the Group

The following new and amended standards that may be relevant

to the Group’s operations have been adopted by the Group for

the first time for the financial period beginning on | April 2018.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS |

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Other than HK(IFRIC) —

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and related Amendments

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Exchange Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Int 22, HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

("HKFRS 9") and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (“HKFRS 15"), the application of the above

amended standards which are effective for the financial period

beginning on | April 2018 did not have material financial effect

to the Group for the current and prior periods.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 clarifies that, in determining the spot
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expenses or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity
must determine a date of the transactions of each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation does
not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments

(i) Impact on the consolidated financial statements

As explained below, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS |5 were
generally adopted by the Group retrospectively without
restating comparative information. As a result of the
changes in the Group’s accounting policies, certain
reclassification and adjustments are therefore not reflected
in the restated consolidated statement of financial position
on | April 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

(a) ZXEBRA 2 #T RAEEET
BB BEHREER ([ EER
HIEER]) ()

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impact on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
The following tables show the adjustments recognised for
each individual line item. Line items that were not affected

by the changes have not been included.

Current liabilities RBEE
Receipts in advance BB 119,282
Contract liabilities aHEE -

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. It makes major changes
to the previous guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets and introduces an “"ECL

model” for the impairment of financial assets.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

BB BHREER|EN [ £MT A
REBUBHEERIE 57 KEEF
BRI s IR GBS ET A (.

() BB HRERZE(E)
TRIVRE(ERE B R
B UEIETIZEHZEN
EH -

- (119,282) =
= 119,282 119,282

(i) BEMBREERFEIN [T/
TA]
&8 B 15 R & 2 RIS 9557 K X
RBEB G ERNE395 [ 2 &t
TR : BRANE] - HES
MEENDEMFENBER
SHEHEXREE U EmE
ERESIA [BREEEER

£ o



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

(a) XEBFRA 2 #T RAEEET

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

When adopting HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the
standard retrospectively to items that existed at | April
2018 in accordance with the transition requirement and
also applied transitional relief and opted not to restate
prior periods. Differences arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in relation to classification, measurement, and

impairment are recognised in retained earnings.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

On | April 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9),
the Group's management has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS measurement categories including those to be
measured at FVTPL and those to be measured at amortised

cost.

The Group’s financial assets include financial assets
at FVTPL, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments and prepaid other taxes), and cash and bank

balances.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

The Group's listed investments were classified as financial
assets at FVTPL under both HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9. The
accounting for the investments is the same under both

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9.

Under HKFRS 9, the Group’s financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value
through profit or loss. The accounting for the Group’s
financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under
HKAS 39.

Impairment

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial
assets. The incurred loss approach under HKAS 39 was
replaced by a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL")

approach.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)
(i) HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Impairment (continued)

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record a loss allowance
for the ECLs on its financial assets not held at fair
value through profit or loss. In this respect, the Group
measured the ECLs on its financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents on a |2-month basis as permitted by
the general approach, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case

the allowance is based on the lifetime ECLs.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has had no material impact on

the impairment provisions on the Group's financial assets.

The details of new significant accounting policies are set out

in note 3 — Financial Instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contract with customers”

HKFRS |5 deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control of a good or service and
thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits
from the good or service. The standard replaces HKAS 18
“Revenue” and HKAS || “Construction contracts” and

related interpretations.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method, with the cumulative effect of initial
application recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at | April 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been restated and

continues to be reported under HKAS 8.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

(a) XEBFRA 2 #T RAEEET

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from

Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contract with customers”

(continued)

The Group is required to deliver goods according to
the contract terms, which is expected to be the only
performance obligation of the Group. The Group has
concluded that revenue from the sale of its products
should be recognised at the point in time when control of
the products is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products. Therefore, the adoption of HKFRS
|5 has had no material impact on these financial statements

except for the presentation and disclosures.

Taking into account the changes in accounting policy
arising from initial application of HKFRS 15, except for
the recognition of contract liabilities, the directors of the
Company considered the initial application of HKFRS 15
has no material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised for contracts from property
development in the PRC in the respective reporting

periods upon its initial adoption.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS |5 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” and the related amendments (continued)

(i) HKFRS 15 "Revenue from contract with customers”

(continued)

The amount by each financial statements line items in the
current year and year to date by the application of HKAS
|8 that were previously in effect before the adoption of
HKFRS 15 is as follows:

Receipts in advance BB
Contract liabilities BHEE

The Group recognises contract liabilities when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. Reclassifications
were made as at | April 2018 to be consistent with the
terminology used under HKFRS |5. Contract liabilities
recognised in relation to property development activities
were previously presented as advance proceeds received
from customers and deposits received. The contract
liabilities as at | April 2018 was approximately of
HK$119,282,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year

ended 3| March 2019:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKAS | and HKAS 8
(Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Leases '
Insurance Contract

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments '
Definition of a Business *

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation '
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture °

Definition of Material 2
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement '
Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures '

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

: Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after | January 2020

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

E No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS 17 and three related

Interpretations

As disclosed in note 3 — Leasing, currently the Group classifies
leases into operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and

others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease, the lessee will recognise a
lease liability and a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee would
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is |2 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be

recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS |7 and three related

Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases of land and buildings and other assets which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over

the period of the lease.

HKFRS |6 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after |
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the

date of initial application.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS |7 and three related

Interpretations (continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 on | April 2019 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | April 2019.
Comparative information will not be restated. In addition, the
Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying
the new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets and not to perform a full review of existing
leases and apply HKFRS 16 only to new contracts. Furthermore,
the Group plans to use the practical expedient to account for
leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months from
the date of initial application as short-term lease. As disclosed
in note 37, as at 31 March 2019, the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to HK$6,061,000, which is payable within 5 years after the
reporting date.

Upon the initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group plans to
measure the rights-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease

liability (subject to certain adjustments).

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to
be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies
as described above could have a material impact on the Group's

financial statement from 2019 onwards.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of

the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consolidation

given exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in

HKAS 36.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level [, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company:

0 has power over the investee;

0 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee: and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group'’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS |9 respectively;

0 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in

accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such

treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,

would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

REBEOH(E
TEERSENEARZAARRER
FEZEEH 2 RESEIEIURN M
KARREOME - DBERBRZHNRNE
TERNRERSBHPENIE - HRE
RETNEZAAR - D BELAEENER
BEZHARERREERS BB
& HEZEBREBRAER

T X M55 BF 0 B BUERK - NS B DATE P
Fr ) BOUR BB DT A R s O U A H (B
AEERGEGEE A EAFEERN
B MEAMNAEE (B RSN
R M ERKIE s - BIAERER
il 2 1 Y 25 RERR A e X i as O UK
R ELANEREN D BRERE(E
SERIRTTERE)

WEBEHNINTETRERAHESL
MIREMRDARTEK - MIAEE D
AEXRETRENHEZ2REETSHE °
ZELES RN EDRRAEHRE
RERBINEELRE  UWRRER
BRARNKBEHEFESERBERNN
AR MEMNEZFEN  SEFER
EREANTE -



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Revenue recognition (applicable from | April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of goods.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the control of the completed property
and the Group has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Revenue recognition (applicable before | April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the

normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the amount of income can be measure reliably).

Net gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised on the transaction date when the relevant contracts are

executed.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and any identified

impairment loss at the end of the reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives after considering
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% — 25%

20% — 50%
12 /2% — 30%
6 %/3% — 30%

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Mining right/water mining licence

Mining right/water mining licence is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The mining right is amortised
using the unit-of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves, which is reviewed at least at each end of
the reporting period. Water mining licence is amortised on a straight-

line basis over its estimated useful life.

Land use rights

The Group makes upfront payments to obtain operating leases of
land use rights. The land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. The upfront payments of the land use
rights are recorded as assets. The amortisation of land use rights is
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the unexpired

period of the land use rights.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Impairment of mining right/water mining licence

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for mining right/water mining licence at each reporting date. Mining
right/water mining licence are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

values of those cash flows.

Expected useful lives of mining right and mineral
reserves
The Group's management has determined the estimated useful lives

of its mining right based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalised costs of the
mining right are amortised using the unit-of production method. Any
change to the estimated proven and probable mineral reserves will

affect the amortisation charge of the mining right.

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated at regular
basis taking into account production and technical information about
the mines. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year
to year, the estimate of proven and probable mineral reserves also
changes. This change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to

amortisation rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Expected useful life of water mining licence

The Group's management has determined the estimated useful
life of its water mining licence with reference to the validity of the
operation licence held and the production plans. For the current year,
No amortisation was provided as commercial production has not yet

commenced during the year.

The useful life of the water mining licence is reviewed annually in

accordance with the production plans of the Group.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, interests in
associates is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to

the extent of interests in associate that are not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except while another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

Leasehold land use rights

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on

straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the

income statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e,, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans (state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme) are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee

administered funds.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’ contributions
subject to a cap monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme's vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer's contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the Group participates in the relevant social retirement benefit
schemes (the "PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is required to
contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the PRC Schemes
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll
costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing

required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by the

relevant authorities of the PRC.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision of
incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time or part-
time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors
of or contractors to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share
options granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released

directly to retained profits).
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included

in the accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development expenditure

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put

into commercial production.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Inventories — properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions, less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

Properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale upon completion of development activities,
which is when the relevant completion certificates are issued by the

respective government authorities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Inventories — completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the completed properties
held for sale. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing

market conditions.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

income statement.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued) 2T HE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon THEEZSHERAEE (RIFHF22

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) BEIR X EFE B IR EERE 7% )

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently HEUTREz SR EEEBIREIEK

measured at amortised cost: ETE -

+  the financial asset is held within a business model whose - BRRKEIEHNBEREZEHBER
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and ATHBEZEMEE &

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows - BRRFESIMREERHELER
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal TRNEAeRREEASMNEZRS
amount outstanding. mE o

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently FalThtzeREELRRATE

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income STAHMEERE ([HEATFE AEM

(“FVTOCI™): 2EHWEDZTHFE

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose . EMABBEGHNHEeRERBEEZ
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows ¥BRATHEz2EREE K&
and selling; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows - BRBRFESIMREERHELER
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal TRNEAeRREEASMNEZRS
amount outstanding. ME °

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value FrEEMeREEARIEATER AR

through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial w([BRAFEFABRDFE - Wzk

application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may ERELIEFIEEERRESTERAES
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of W mEERIEINR [ EBE O RER
an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if EHPRABLARE  REeEMEEBXR

that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent FERR /B X R BAAREE A ER A

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to Bl zEERHm2 s ([ a2k

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies. wmRNE2FRERER G AT EEY
BRAN o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that

are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as

measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including accounts
receivable, other receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, I2-month ECL (“I2m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the

credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on the Group’s financial assets has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial assets are determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as

per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider:
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group'’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s accounts
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and
amounts due from customers are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed for

expected credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before

application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

* itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

0 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables, amount due from an associate and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future

cash flows have been affected.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

0 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

*  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on | April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. A conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’'s own equity

instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in equity until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in capital reserve will be released to the retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion

or expiration of the option.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible notes (continued)

For the convertible notes issued in connection to the acquisition of
assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiary, the conversion
option component is recognised at fair value and included in equity,
taking into account that the counterparty must forfeit the right
to received cash in order to receive equity instrument. For other
convertible notes, the difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to

covert the notes into equity, is included in equity (capital reserve).

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accruals) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability or where appropriate, a short period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and

recognises an associated liability.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the

consolidated statement of financial positions.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Related parties transactions BEALXSZ
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: THIATHR AR E B A=
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to (a) MWEBIATALT BIALTZHZALT
the Group if that person: BB E A R E
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () FEHISHEEEGRER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HEAEEBEATES X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BAAEEIAEERAFNE
Group or of a parent of the Group. EEEENE -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) WS THEAIENE - Bl EEEAR
conditions applies: SEERHEE
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group () ZEREAEEEBER-—SEZ
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow MERR(BIEF AR - B
subsidiaries is related to the others); RElRkRARWBARRKILEE
BE)
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (ih —HEBAS ERBRNBERN
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a Al BE(KET—EEA
group which the other entity is a member); ﬁfc SWNE 72’* .Bf_\—l—ﬁX SPNS

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; (i) MfE
P2
=

Annual Report 2019 F#



For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Related parties transactions (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring

employees are also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Related parties transactions (continued)
Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influence by, that person in their

dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between the Group and

a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale,

if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented on the face of the profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to

fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one

year from the date of classification.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Assets classified as held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest

in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using
straight-line method. The estimation of useful lives of the depreciable
assets is based on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are
reviewed at each end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to be valid.
The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on market value of the assets which require

the use of assumptions and estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

it TEEAEZ TERR (&
V¥ BERREZEHFH
M3t R - MEERBZITER
HAEF A ERFRAUBEREMBEAA
AEEEZAERFHNRENEE
ZRBEITHE YRS REMRIZR
HEEERS AR ERFY -

¥ BERREZRE
AEBERBEERALERE 6 ZHRTE
BEE - BMERKEZAEAFR
KMEEMBEIRZITERTEHE - &
SERBAEBEZR  REATER -
BEZEHERE  BRIEE - UK
MEtEAmSEERREEERAEME
PBES - EETE A EAFR o AEEITR
SREFERRN - AHEHRATERE
RAIEHZBREEDAGE - XF
BeFlARTEERSEBREMR
B -BEXRCELEM 2 AIKREISHE
DIREEEMEREE - EPAFELHRR
Rftist -

Frig#
AEBMBAEEBRPEBRAER - B
EBEMGHBEREEDEANHE - 8
BEBBEPEREEELETEREB K
ZRGRFE - FEERBHREESTE
BB ZEE - BREATBER
BEEHBREE - WRZEFEREBRE
RERRENRE £ - AHAEEE
FEELERAT ZBEZFETRE
IEFRIER A -



For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of properties under development

Valuation of properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The directors estimate the net realisable value for properties under
development based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the directors perform an inventory
review on a product by product basis at the end of each reporting
period and assess the need for write down of properties under

development.

Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require

the use of assumptions and estimates.

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowances
on items subjects to ECL (including deposits and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes) based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period as set out in note 3 — Financial
Instruments. As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate carrying amounts of
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid
other taxes) amounted to HK$93,154,000 (net of ECL allowance
of HK$1,088,000) and HK$73,259,000 (net of ECL allowance of
HK$4,445,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of deposits and other receivables (continued)

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group assesses at the end
of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that loans receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments and prepaid other taxes) are impaired. In determining
whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group takes
into consideration the ageing status and the likelihood of collection
by reference to the background and repayment history of the debtors
and the occurrence of any default or disputes. Where there is
objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future
cash flows are estimated based on factors such as repayment plans
committed by debtors and subsequent collections. An impairment
loss is made for debtors of which the present values of future cash
flows are less than their carrying amount. As at 3| March 2018,
the aggregate carrying amount of loans receivables, deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes)
amounted to HK$ 151,501,000, HK$935,812,000 and HK$49,010,000

respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and
other items within the scope of ECL upon application of HKFRS 9/
other financial instruments before application of HKFRS 9 and credit

losses in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Measurement of convertible notes

On the date of issue of convertible notes, the fair value is determined
using a discount rate determined by an independent professional
valuer to the Group with reference to market information; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability at fair value at the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the accounting policy stated

above.

Valuation of share options

The Binominal Option Pricing Model and Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model were applied to estimate the fair value of share options
granted by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. These pricing
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price. The changes in input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.

5A. Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the capital structure of the
Group consisted of debt, comprising convertible bonds and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

5A. Capital risk management (continued)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new shares issues, as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:
Total debts® “RIE
Shareholders’ equity MR SR A
Gearing ratio B ELXR

# Total debts comprises convertible bonds as detailed in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. @t T HHEF

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through TEBEATFEAEZ

profit or loss TREE 4,867
Amortised cost BESHRR -
Loans and receivables ERREKFIE(BERE R

(including cash and cash equivalents) ReEEY) 482,338
Financial liabilities TEMEE
Amortised cost BESHRR 449,484

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include loan receivables,
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, amount due from an associate, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on

a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group's financial
results and its cash flows. The Group's operations are mainly
in the PRC other than Hong Kong, and the sales and purchases
transactions are conducted using RMB, as such the foreign
currency risk is minimal. The Group currently has not entered
into any contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. However,
the management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of change in market interest rates and the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities except
for loan receivables, cash and cash equivalents and convertible
bonds, details of which have been disclosed in notes 23, 26
and 30. Due to the fixed interest rate on loan receivables, the
insignificant bank interest income and the fixed coupon rates on
convertible bonds, management considers that cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks of the Group are insignificant and

therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented thereon.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty to
a transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its obligation which
results in financial loss. The carrying amounts of bank balances
and cash, amount due from an associate, other receivables
and loan receivables included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to

credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

5C. BBEEEEREREE (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Effective on | April 2018

The credit risks on restricted cash, short-term and long-term
bank deposits and cash and bank balances are considered to
be insignificant because the counterparties are banks/financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international

credit-rating agencies.

Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
prepaid other taxes)

For financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables,
deposits paid and amounts due from associates, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past

experience.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It also considers available

reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Effective on | April 2018 (continued)
Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
prepaid other taxes) (continued)

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
. internal credit rating;
. external credit rating;

. actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its

obligations;

. actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of individual property owner or the borrower;

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the individual property owner or the same

borrower; and

. significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes in

the operating results of the borrower.
The Group uses four categories for those receivables which

reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined

for each of those categories.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

April 2018 (continued)

Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and

Effective on |

prepaid other taxes) (continued)
A summary of the assumptions underlying the Group’s ECL

model is as follows:

Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a
E=E strong capacity to meet
BEPRAORRREABENED

Underperforming
2Pz

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are

more than 90 days past due

FEUGRIEMEERBEZIEM - MAE
&/ 8F B %?’,’Kﬁﬁﬁi Bo0X - HIRR
EERBEEZEEN

Non-Performing Interest and/or principal repayments are

TR more than 365 days past due

e K&/ BIE R HB 365K
Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments are
HsH more than 3 years past due and there is no

reasonable expectation of recovery
ek, LFCEFOHBBIFEE
IR T e

5C. BB EEAEZEREKE (&)
=EREE ()
H-F—NFHAH—AELN(E)
FEUCBR A R Bt JE MR IB (B3
FER AR M IESHE) (8)
REBEEMEEBEEXNEBE
B

I2 months expected losses. Where the

expected lifetime of an asset is less than

|2 months, expected losses are measured

at its expected lifetime

AR+ AR SEHEE - B EHT

BEHRINT _EANEE - REEE
EREBEFENGE

Lifetime expected losses

EEFEMAERER

Lifetime expected losses

EEfFERENEE

Asset is written off
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Effective on | April 2018 (continued)

Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
prepaid other taxes) (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for ECL on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of receivables

and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provides for credit losses
against deposits paid, other receivables (excluding prepayments

and prepaid other taxes) and amount due from an associate as

follows:
Performing 0.1% - 15% 12 month expected losses
iy 2B ARHER
Non-Performing 100%  Lifetime expected losses
R FEHRHER
Total
it
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZT—NF=ZA=1+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Effective on | April 2018 (continued)
Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
prepaid other taxes) (continued)
As at | April 2018, the Group provides for credit losses against
deposits paid, other receivables (excluding prepayments and

prepaid other taxes) as follows:

Basis for
recognition of

Expected credit  expected credit

5. M T A(E)
5C. B mpEERE B R RBE(E)

=EmE(E)
8=—F—\FrH—HAELH(E)
R LS R R e B At FE MR TR (B3
BNREREMESHE) (B)
R-ZZE-N\FOA—H  AEEH
BEffEE - HiBKRFHR(TEHE
BNFREREMEMSRIE)FHRE

BREDT
Carrying
Estimated amount
gross carrying Loss (net of
amount at allowance impairment
default provision provision)
BHRH fREE
fhstREAE  AEFRRE (IRAERRE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T TATL
185951 —* 185,951
4750 4,750 -
190,701 4,750 185,951

Company internal credit rating loss rates  loss provision
RRBMEER

ARARBEEFME BREEBRLE  BENER

Performing 0.1% 12 month expected loss

flas EABSER

Non-Performing 100%  Lifetime expected losses

R FRAEAER

Total

it

4 The Group assessed the expected credit loss to be insignificant.

No significant change to estimation techniques or assumptions

was made during the year.

* AEEFEEREEBRLTEK -

AR ERNEETARBRRTE
LB -
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Annual Report 2019 F#



For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Effective on | April 2018 (continued)

Deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and

prepaid other taxes) (continued)

The loss allowance provision for deposits and other receivables

as at 31 March 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance for

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

C. B EE B R RBE (&)
SR @R ()
B =T N\FIA— AL ()

JE WS PR R e A FE UK SR E (B R
FER B R EMIESHE) (B)

R-B-AFE=A=1+—BHCH
& K H fth B U SR B FHE A B 18 B

that provision as follows: BEREFYBEROERDT
Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\E=ZA=+—HHF
(calculated under HKAS 39) AERBB(RBEEHER
FI9WEH) - 4750 4750
Amounts restated through opening retained R4 & /B 15 3R 5 B 5955 18
earnings up on application of HKFRS 9 BRENRERAEINNEE = = =
Opening loss allowance as at | April 2018~ RNZF—/\&FN A —HMFEE
(calculated under HKFRS 9) BE(RB AU BREERIFESE
) 4750 4750
Additional loss allowance BINE R B | 087 = 1,088
Exchange realignment T B \ (305) (305)
Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—HMF
(calculated under HKFRS 9) RAERRE(REBHBRE LR
FIMEH) 1,088 4445 5533
As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying amount of deposits paid, RZTE-NAFE=ZA=+—H" B

other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other
taxes) and amount due from an associate was approximately
HK$174,286,000 and thus the maximum exposure to loss was
HK$174,286,000. The Group made no writeoff of debtors,

deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and

prepaid other taxes) during the year.

e kEMEKRFE(TRIERE
E E&Ef@ﬁ%ﬁﬂlﬁ) VA K FE
WHE AR RENEELELNA
174,286,000/ 7T © Ft AR &=
ES 18 R B2 ) 5 174,286,00058 7T © A
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

5C. BBEEEEREREE (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Effective before | April 2018

In respect of loan receivables, the management of the Group
has delegated a credit control team for determination of credit
limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken for the recoverability of
loan receivables. In addition, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of each individual’s loan receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss was
made for irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2018, the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that no provision
for impairment on individual loans was necessary in respect of

these balances as the balances were fully settled in April 2018.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each of
their new and existing clients before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer based on the
customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings
in accordance with limits set by the directors. The utilisation of

credit limits is regularly monitored.

In respect of other receivables, credit evaluations are performed
on all debtors requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor's past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into

account information specific to the debtor.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arises when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At the

end of the reporting period, the Group had no trade receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Effective before | April 2018 (continued)

In relation to the Group’s deposit with bank, the Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institution with high credit rating and no recent history of default.
The directors consider that the Group's credit risk on the bank
deposits is low. Management continues to monitor the position
and will take appropriate action if their ratings are changed. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group had no significant concentration of

credit risk in relation to deposit with bank.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework to meet the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and

matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

The maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

/jﬁ”@mfggﬁ&ﬂﬁ (ﬂﬁ)

=EmE(E)
R-F—/\FOA—HBFTLH(E)
RAKBZRITERME - AKE
FREFRRNEEFNRAR S B 8T
HHE R A0 ER 2 & BAIAE - DARRSIPT
AEzEERR - EERR AL
BRTERZEERREN - B2
ERFEEAEERR  XHRNEH
TR 2 SR EL R B RIVE
BT -R_FT-N\F=ZA=1—
A AEEZRITERALEBEKRE
EEPRERZBER

BT R
MBEcRRERE s RRAETEE
e MEFFERLABE2RE
EeRREERE  UWneAKHE
ZREH - pHRRERE LR E
TEERE - AREEEEFTR
s RITRELFHREEREM
ERRBETER  HERFER
REANRERRSRELLZHEH
BENBEZHHAERRES -

TEES R

TRANAKEFTESRAEL
iR A RBI AR o TRIVRER
AEEAEXNERMEBEZRFEY
?Tz BMEBZAMRASRER

%P**

FITESRABZIHA DN IR
EIRREHE MRS o

o

]

ZREBENERAERER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e AR

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE —ZT—hE=A=1+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table (continued)

As at 31 March 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

As at 31 March 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Convertible bonds

RZE-hE
ZB=t-8
HTEERER
BHEAE
A ERERR
T ER

R-2-N\%
ZA=t-H
FiieEnHER
CUIIE
EfEHERR
EHER
THRER

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
&Y
L7k
%

1591

Within

| year
-

HKS 000
TR

81,071

123,909

204,980

5. SRT A (E)

5C. BB m b EHE BB REE
(4&)
B ()
TBEZK (&)
Total
carrying
Total amount
Over undiscounted at year
I-2years 2.5 years Syears  cash flows ended
xEE Bk

-EME  MEEF  EfNL  ReNE  HBEE
HKSO000  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00

ThL TEL TR ThEL TEL

81,071 81,071

123,909 123,909

204,980 204,980

41,726

173471
254592

469,789

- - - 41,726 41,726

- - - [73471 73471
- - - 2154592 134287

- - - 469,789 449,484

Annual Report 2019 3§ [ 59



For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment
in listed equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, the management
monitors the price risk and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group’s loss
for the year ended 31 March 2019 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$454,000 (2018: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$487,000). This is mainly due to the changes in

fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

SC.HBRERBEEREZRBKE

(#&)

E Bk

AEEREENR EMRAESMA
EZRABRERE -  EEES B
SEBTREEREERIEEHEE
EREMRARE - REEZRAER
R EEETRERBHERFFA
BIRARIENE ZRAFE S o LI -
EREeERELRER  YHREF
EREBLEPEBERERE -

HERERR — SR
L‘AT@&ZE&FEJJ TR BER RS B
Z A EIRRBRAETT

ﬁﬁi%%ﬂtﬂ/ﬂﬁuooo P K&
Bz —hF=A=+—AL
¢J§2Fﬂa @R,/ N #454,000
BIL(ZZE—N\F : BL g
48700087T) - T EXHFBEER
BEZ AT EESHTE -



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HZE — &

5D. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

and

*  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using

prices or rates from observable current market transactions

as input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,

grouped into Level | to Level 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable:

Level |1 quoted prices in active markets for the same

instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging);

Level 2:  quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all

significant inputs are based on observable market

data; and

Level 3:  valuation techniques for which any significant input

—NF=A=t—HLLEE

are not based on observable market data.

5D. A FfE
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

5D. Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)
The following table show an analysis of financial instruments

recorded at fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-h#F
=B=+—H
Financial assets at fair value S =E e /NI
through profit or loss ARz eREE
As at 31 March 2018 R=-ZB—N\F
=A=+-—H
Financial assets at fair value LEmEAFE
through profit or loss AR Z SR EE 4,867

For reconciliation of fair value of convertible bonds, please refer

to note 30.

There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 in the

both years.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

5D. Fair value (continued) 5D. 2\ F{E (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement RGE BN RERAERZ - FE
of financial position (continued) iTE(E
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both years. PR E F S A 3 AR S R 3 = ARk

BE=FAEH -

Listed equity securities In Hong Kong Level | Quoted bid prices N/A
classified as financial HK$4,867 in an active market

assets at FVTPL (note 25)

NEARKEREZEATE REH F—R RIERTS 2 RE TiE A
ANEZeREELZ 48677 7T
TR AE S (H77E25)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not VIR NTFEAEZEREENLS
measured at fair value. BmEEZAFEE-
Financial liabilities tResE
Convertible bonds ARRES 234,287 245,700
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The Group's operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components of the Group.
These information are reported to and received by the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments during
the year. These segments are managed separately. No operating
segments have been aggregated to for the following reportable

segments.

(1) For water exploitation operations, the CODM regularly reviews
the performance of the water exploitation operations in the
PRC. These operations have been aggregated into a single

operating segment and named “Water exploitation operations”.

(2) For property sales and investment operations, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of the property sales and
investment operations. These operations have been classified
into a single operating segment and named “Property sales and

investment”.

(3) For trading of goods operations, the CODM regularly reviews
the performance of the trading of goods operation. These
operations have been aggregated into a single operating segment

and named "Trading of goods”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e AR

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE —ZT—hE=A=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHEER(E)

SN =

During the year, investing and financing operation was discontinued, FAR - IKERREERD LI - Btk -
thus it is not separately presented on the following segment analysis. EU T ED TR TE@BIZS] -
Segment revenue and results DENEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by LT AREFIRARES B KB R %
reportable segments: B2ZAHM -
For the year ended 31 March HE=ZA=1t—HLEE
Continuing Operations
i REE
Water

exploitation Property sales

operations and investment Trading of goods Unallocated Consolidation

KRRRREE NFRERRE 1L i &&

W9 08 2009 08 009 08 2009 08 2009 W8
ZE-pE Z3\F ZET-AF ZE-)\E ZE-AF 30§ ZE-REF CE0E CE-pE RN
HKS000  HKP000  HKS'000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKS000
TRt  TEr  TAm  TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEr TR Thn

(Restated) (Restated)

(@z5) (%3]

Sales to extemal customers HIRPEE - = - 74 734

Total revenue ey - = - 738 734

Segment esifs AREE (B (158 [LRAKE (43S - (359%)

Other revenue At W 1,790 |64 1,908 397
Fair value loss on financia assets at farvaloe ~ BBHBATEAE 7AREEY

through proft or loss NYEER - (320) L (321) L)

Central administration costs

RAATH - (23,659) bl (23,659) S ECAR)
(Loss)/gain on disposalof subsidiaries HEWRAR(BR)Ma
PERED
A

- @00 BT (350) MK

Share of esults of assocates MBENIRE (17,152) - - S (17)152)~ A
France coss el : - (14319 WEEN (431 BOES
Loss before taxation hiEE (133893)
Taxation e 9044 (189) 8255
Loss for the year RERER (HEER (1255%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Segment revenue and results (continued)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year.

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) of each segment without
allocation of other revenue, fair value change on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, central administration costs, gain/(loss) on
disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of associates, finance costs and
taxation. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose

of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

ASSETS KE
Segment assets HEEE 621,512
Unallocated corporate assets AOMGERE

LIABILITIES &f
Segment libilties HEEE (449)
Unallocated corporate liablities AORCERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the directors of the Company monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, bank
balances and cash that are used by the investment holding companies,
other receivables that are receivable by the investment holding

companies and assets classified as held for sale).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
convertible bonds, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated corporate

liabilities (mainly include other payables and accruals borne by the

investment holding companies).

Other segment information

Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on other receivables
and deposits paid

Provision for impairment loss
on properties under development

Provision for impairment loss on completed
properties held for sale

Over-provision of land value added tax

ERNE  RERRE
h% BERAENE

% BERRERE
BRAR
At EREHRERM RS
HEFERE
EREELRE
BEAER
RELEZBERNEL
REEEERRE
TpER RERE

633

(1.067)

(543%9)

U7

/‘;’éﬁﬁf*“ﬁ BE(&)
RAEHBERARSEESRER 2B

m’$’ﬂé$uTm%$%$%m%

ARG BTRE  AERAE

PREBEEADRERREDE  BAS
REXEE(XZE/EVE  BELR
B REERRARBRZRITHESRNE
T WEERA A E W E Al AR
ROBRFHELEERE)I -

FIBAEHSEENMESE Kk
fRES FL%RIEELEUE @Em%ﬁ
B(TEZRREREERARMAAE 2H
ftb FEATBR SRR FEET B ) A o
Bt 7 HEH
- %0 %3
- (398) (5,049)
- (1267) (1267)
- (4479) (4479)
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Geographical information
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the PRC

and Hong Kong.

The Group'’s revenue from external customers and information about

its non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below:

The PRC s
Hong Kong S

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue of HK$32,760,000
was derived from sales of goods to one customer. This customer
contributed over 0% of total revenue of the Group during the year

ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue of HK$ 1,544,000 was
derived from loan interest income from one customer. This customer
contributed over 0% of total revenue of the Group during the year

ended 31 March 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Continuing operations BEKEXR
Revenue from contracts with customers REBFEHZKH
Sales of goods $HE 7 o

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods. All
of the Group's revenue from sale of goods was recognised at the
point in time when control of the products was transferred to the

customer.

Continuing operations BELSEER

Interest income on bank deposits RITFERFIBUA

Dividend income from financial assets at KRR A FEAR S
fair value through profit or loss SEMEEZREWA

Sundry 18

AREBRANFEZWSEDIAT

BHEEERMIXMRENX - REEH
Eﬁuumﬁﬁﬁuﬂlmaﬁf\ﬁuﬂ %M’%ﬁ—;%&
:I:%}EZHT%&—EEWU ©

175

21
91

387
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Continuing operations
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Continuing operations
Interest on convertible bonds
Interest on promissory notes

Loss on early redemption of promissory notes

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | 2 EIRZERBR A
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

The Group’s loss before taxation from  ZNEE 2 FELE EKKRBAT

continuing operations is carried at BRI (GEA), /AR5

after (crediting)/charging: BIHBES:
Directors’ emoluments (note [2) =EE=Me(Mat2) 2,331
Other staff costs HAh 8 TR 5516
Other staff's retirement benefits scheme BB T ZiRIK@FET 84 5x

contributions 514
Total staff costs BIXAMEE 8,361
Auditors' remuneration ZE AN &
— audit services —Z B AR TS 1147
— non-audit services — I ER 2,085

3,232

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - = K R EITE 712
Amortisation of land use right o Hb {5 PR A 8 -
Minimum lease payments under operating leases #& A% T 2 FRIKME & 145Kk 995
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value LEBEANTFEARZEHM

through profit or loss BEANFEEE 2,895
Exchange loss/(gain), net bE &8, (M) - FRE (326)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR a MBI AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —T—HE=A=+—HIIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM<E
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as ERNRENGNEESZEESWT
follows:
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total
£tk HEREMER BICERIF MR ag

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
= i e S e o e G el
HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000

téx TEr TEx TEr  TRr  TExr  TRx  TEn

Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman) FIERE(ZE) 21
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (note i) 212 8550 & (A7) 3
Ms. Guo Yumei (note i) REMRL (M) -
Mr. Huang Yilin (note iv) ERMEE (It 1052
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang (note vii) REETEWvi) 3%
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (note i)~ RSB 4 & (Watix) 402
Mr. Wu Hongauan (note x) REERE (M) 32
Ms. Li Yali (note x) BT (Hiita) 32
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng (note xi)  SFIR4E A (M) 32
2531
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE —ZT—hE=A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 12. EE£#{4& (&)

Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total
Ezng HERHMER BRI EER B

2019 218 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“EAE ZENF ZERF ZE0F SRV R CEME CER)E
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000

Tén  TET  TEn  TET  TEr  TET  TEn  TEX

Non-executive directors: FUTES !

Mr. Yang Xiaogiang BaEE
(Vice chairman) (note i) (B1Zf)(Wiit) -
Mr. Huang Yilin (note iv) BRI (Wrtiv) -

Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTEE :

directors:

Mr. Ba Junyu (note v) BEFEE (A -
Mr. Zhu Xueyi (note vi) REZTEWR) -
Mr. Wong Chung Man (note vi) S MRSUSL A (Aatvi) -
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (note xii) REME L (Hietxii) 156
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (note xiv)  SBE 2 %5 (B7Eniv) 156
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (note xv) BRBLE (WD) 16
468

2999
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Notes:

0] Mr. Yang Xiaogiang was appointed on |3 September 2018.

(i) Mr. Liu Yan Chee James was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on | August
2018.

(i)~ Ms. Guo Yumei was appointed on |8 April 2018.

(iv)  Mr. Huang Yilin resigned as Chief Executive Officer and re-designated from

Executive Director to Non-executive Director with effect from | August 2018.
(v)  Mr. Ba Junyu was appointed on 24 July 2018.

(vi)  Mr. Zhu Xueyi was appointed on |3 September 2018.
(vii)  Mr. Wong Chung Man was appointed on 24 July 2018.

(viii)  Mr. Chan Yuk Sang resigned on 6 December 2018.
(ix)  Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith retired with effect from 31 August 2018.

(x)  Mr. Wu Hongquan resigned on 28 April 2017.

(xi)  Ms. Li Yali resigned on 28 April 2017.

(xii)  Mr. Zhang Zhensheng resigned on 28 April 2017.

(xiii) Mr. Zhang Xianlin resigned with effect from | August 2018.

(xiv) Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse resigned with effect from | August 2018.
(xv)  Mr. Ng Ping Yiu resigned with effect from |13 September 2018.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 3| March 2019 and 2018.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EEBEFAL

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for
the year included 3 (2018: 2) directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in note |2 above. The emoluments for

the remaining 2 (2018: 3) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits Fe RHEAmET
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {R4E R T2 X

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2018: 3) individuals fell

within the following bands:

AEERARRFALTZHSEES
BARA=ZR(ZZ—\F : MB)E
% HINSFHTEN EXXMEE2 - 87
TRE(CE-N\F : =F) AL
ST

1,589
42

1,631

BTIREB(ZT—NF : =58) 2
ENFATHE

HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 T 7T E 1,000,000 7T 3
HK$ 1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T -
3
(b) Senior management of the Group (b) XEEZEREEE

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior management
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of them has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 3|
March 2019 and 2018.

REBEZE-_ZT-NFER_T-NF=
A=+—HLHE FTEEHES
NYaREREMNSIERESMNA
SIS B 2 885 ok BB 1
B -REBE_Z-—LFE_Z—N
FZA=1T—HILEFE  BEFEWK
EoRBENEEME -

Annual Report 2019 F#



For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Continuing Operations AL ER
Current tax: BIHABLIE -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENET -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R B EPIEH 468
Total current tax expenses ENEATR IE A 2 4258 468
Deferred income tax: EEFRBR
— Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (Note 31) — iRIEFRIB A BER LD (K2E31) (9,044)
Credit for the year REZHER (8,576)
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: EENGHERRAFEEEBELZ
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during (st ERBUEN 2R 165%( —F— )\
the year. F 1 165%) B -
Subsidiaries in the PRC are subjected to the PRC Enterprise Income BHEE-_ZEZ—hhEFr_ZE—NF=A1
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. =+—BHLEFE  FBEZMBAREAER

5% R BB ETEHR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Continuing Operations (continued) FEAE X (E)

In accordance to the tax assessment of Inland Revenue Department of RIERKE B2 BIEE - #49102,351,000
tax losses of approximately HK$102,351,000 (2018: HK$97,143,000) BT (ZZF—/\F : 97,143,000 7T) 2
can be carried forward to offset the future taxable profits. No HMIEEEAAEIREB R 2 ERT G
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of A o R B U E AR 2 A AT IR -
the future profit stream. O R RIE R IBE E o

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before AFEE 7 HBERPIHEEGAEBERE K EM
taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other PHRERZBHATEBRERMT

comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation (from continuing BRERIEE(REFERLE
operations) ES 9 132,720

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 1Z& & MBI K 16.5%

(2018: 16.5%) —ZT—\F: 165%)
HE A 21,899
Tax effect of share of result of associates Sak i /N
FKBEZHBEE (1,296)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for MAIEM 5 TEMT
tax purposes X 2B E (13,070)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax TRRIBM S BAERN
purposes Wz BIETE 480
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRZHIA
BRECBIEEE (3.264)
Unrecognised deferred tax arising from T EREE
temporary difference ANHERIELETIA (184)
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised @/ Ff 5¢ Al K ERE R 2 TR IE &5 18 1121
Tax reduction TRIEHR -
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ EEMALAERLE 2 HE
operating in other jurisdictions RATRAME 2 HETE 2,890
Tax credit for the year REERHIAE R 8576
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Refer to the announcement of the Company dated |1 July 2018,
having considered the keen market competition and the challenging
environment, risks associated with the possible default by the
borrowers, decline in lending interest rates, and opportunities for
other new and more profitable businesses, management has resolved

to cease the operation of its money lending business.

In March 2018, management had the plan to dispose of the Hangzhou
properties and iron mining business operated in Indonesia (“Disposal
Group”). As the carrying amount of the Disposal Group will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use, the Group classified the above assets and liabilities as

held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Disposal Group classified
as assets held for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2018 was set out in Note |6.

For the year ended 3| March 2019, the results and cash flows of
money lending business and the Disposal Group are treated as
discontinued operations. The comparative consolidated statement
of profit or loss and related notes have been represented as if the
operations discontinued during the year have been discontinued at

the beginning of the comparative period.

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the results and cash

flows of the discontinued operations are analysed as follows.
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R PR EH AR -

RZFE-N\F=F BEEEFZHEM
MOERREEEE 2 BBEARED
(THEAR ) - R ERRZ REE
HEEBB-AHERSMIEFERER
mimE » MAKEGALEERBED
BRBERE -

R_E—N\F=ZRA=+—H HEAEH
ZHERFELHEEEREDERARE
HEEEERRABZABZEIERERE
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Analysis of discontinued operations YEARIFEBEZDH
Loan interest income A EWA 7,343
Administrative expenses THRAX (7.209)
Provision for impairment loss on property, YW BEIEEZ
plant and equipment VENIENEi=Ecde (1.267)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAREE -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - KER&HEEE

plant and equipment -

Loss before taxation R Al B 1R (1,133)
Taxation I (321)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ANEFE B2 #7152 E518 (1,454)
Loss for the year from discontinued LATATEEARFER
operations attributable to: I EE 2 EE
Owners of the Company RARHEB A (369)
Non-controlling interest IEIERE i = (1,085)
(1,454)
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Analysis of discontinued operations (continued) HERIRB 2T (&

The Group’s loss for the year from TEBAFECRIEELZ

discontinued operations is carried BRIRMBKRT

at after charging: BIEBE
Directors’ emoluments (Note | 2) EEME (M 2) 668
Staff costs 8 TR 1,066
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions B T Z BK@EFEH S % 48
Total staff costs BT 1,782
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% -« BE MR ETE 3,337
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 48 & A4~ 2 S IKH & 1,429

Cash flows from discontinued operations: BEALERCZHERE !

Net cash used in operating activities LEEBFTA 2R e F 5 (1,113)
Net cash generated from investing activities KEGHELE R FRHE -
Net cash generated from financing activities BMERDEL RS IFRE 925
Net decrease in cash and ReRBFEFEEYZ

cash equivalents DEREPER: S (188)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEFE R E BB 5
Net cash outflow WEe ML FHE (183)
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 18 29,761
Prepayments, deposits and TANFIE - e Rk
other receivables H th JE U AR 51 24 628
Bank balances and cash IRITAESBREIRE 26 95
Assets classified as held for sale SERFELEEE 30,484
Other payables and accruals HEMEMERERKRETER 28 220
Income tax payable FERTPRS T 2
Liabilities directly associated with assets HEOBEAIHEFLERE
classified as held for sale EEEBECBE 222
Note: Mt
Disposal Group Held for Sale HEHEZHEAR

In March 2018, management had the plan to dispose of the Hangzhou properties and iron
mining business operated in Indonesia. As the carrying amount of the Disposal Group will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, the

Group classified the above assets and liabilities as held for sale.

The carrying amount of related assets and liabilities are carried at the lower of carrying
amount and their fair value less costs to sell and, management considers that no

impairment loss was recognised.

The disposal of the Disposal Group was completed on 28 September 2018. For details,

please refer to note 35(b).

RZF-NF=F  BEEEFBHENMNDERR
MR8 iE 2 iR ER - X EMAR 2 BRE(E
BEZREBIABERSMIEFEEMMKE - 8
AEEMALEERBED BRFIELE -

HEAEENEBNREERERERE A FERL
ERANEBEEDER  EREERREAERBES

B’

HEMARZHEER -_TE— N \FALA-T AR
B o FIERE SB35 b)
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners

of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss BB

Loss for the year from continuing operations RAFEEE AEG
attributable to the owners of the Company REFERELE
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 7K/ &) #E A A JE(L

KERFBEERBERCKILERE
ARRAE AR FRERE RS
T BEE

X%z EE (123,621)

attributable to the owners of the Company RFEEFDRIEER ZER (368)
(123,989)
Number of shares idvip 4= |
Weighted average number of shares for the REsTEBRERRR 2 &
purpose of basic earnings per share (Note) IETFHEE (F) 5,990,265
Note: Kt :

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations are the
same for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, as the effect of the share options
and convertible notes would be anti-dilutive and were not included in the calculation of

diluted loss per share.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

From continuing operations KEFEEEER

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing operations RKATHEE AEHEERESELKTIRE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following REETIIBIEATEUETH ¢

data:

Loss for the year from continuing operations KARHEARBGARTEE

attributable to the owners of the Company SEREEE BB (123,621)
From discontinued operations KEBAHIEFEH
Basic loss per share from discontinued operations is HK$0.084 cents BERANFHEEABEARFEERIEE
per share (2018 (Restated): HK$0.006 cents), based on the loss for 1% 2 518 496,052,000 L ( Z T — N\F
the year from discontinued operations attributable to the owners (KL &E7) : 3680008 7T) » B IEKE
of the Company of approximately HK$6,052,000 (2018 (Restated): EBEREAREIEAFR0.084F (=
HK$368,000). The denominators used are the same as those detailed T NF(EEFH) : 0.006781(L)  Fr{E
above for both basic and diluted loss per share. Ar o e FEXFF AR EEREAR

REEEIEN S BIER -

The basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations HRRERERTRRESAEREEY
are the same for the years ended 31 March 2019, as the effect of the ZAVWESASREESETE B2
share options and convertible bonds would be anti-dilutive and were ZE-NEFZA=ZT—HLEFE B8
not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share. B BRERREEBEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Cost:
Asat | Aprl 2017 38081 20% 833% 359 7789 - 59,698
Additions - 2l 18 - - 633 993
Disposdls - 8 - - - = 8
Exchange realigment 3418 12 8l 3 (17 38 4517
Reclassfed to assefs clssified as
held for sale (note] (41499) (24 (1486) - (7618) - (50827)
Asat 3| March 2018 and | April 2018 H=E-NE=A=1-Bk
W-%-NERA-A - 2006 7789 347 - 671 4633
Additions =h - 40 38l - - 1 041 1872
Disposels He - (431) (140) (369) - - )
Fxchange realment ESE - (119 (408) (1) : ) 19)
Asat 31 March 2019 H-E-1EZA=1-B - 210 633 332 - 1670 3464
Accumulated depreciation ZifERAE:
and impairment:
Asat | Aprl 2017 RE-tERF-A 10457 4l 148 |47 494 - 20268
Charge for the year Efgd | 487 33 1389 664 15 - 5049
Impairment loss HEsR - - - - 1,267 - 1,267
Biminated on disposals HERHE - 0 f = = = 0
Bxchange realinment Erix 553 5 3 13 (18) - 90l
Rechssfied to asets lasifed as BENARENBARILE
held forsdle roe] BRI (12497) (1%) (1137 - () - (11,086)
Asat 3| March 2018 and | April 2018 H=E-NE=f=1-Bk
H=%-N%B8-8 - W 2946 2404 - - 6417
Charge for the year ERH = 345 84 454 = = 163
Bliminated on disposels HERHE - (300) (1.306) (266) - - (187)
Bxchange realignment S - (37 (10) (156) - - (300)
Asat 31 March 2019 RZg-nEzR=t-R - 5 2357 265 - - 5068
Carrying amounts: FEE:
Asat 31 March 2019 R-B-1§=p=1-A . |0 3978 6 = 1670 Tel
Asat 31 March 2018 RE-NE=f=1-A - 1379 448 133 - 71 8216
Note: As at 31 March 2018, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of M RZFTE—-NF=ZA=+—H BHEL
approximately HK$29,76 1,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as held for 29,761,000 T 2 W% - BFE REBHEE EH
sale (for details, please refer to note 16). DEEDBERFELEZEE(FEFLH

AR
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HZE — &

Cost:

As at | April 2017

Additions on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Exchange realignment

Reclassified to assets

classified as held for sale

As at 31 March 2018 and
| April 2018
Additions

Exchange realignment
As at 31 March 2019

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

As at | April 2017

Reclassified to assets

classified as held for sale

As at 31 March 2018 and
| April 2018

Amortisation for the year
As at 31 March 2019

Carrying amount:
As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

—NF=A=t—HLLEE

A
RZZE—+FWHA—H
UZBE BT B A 7] 2 12 0A

PE S
E%ﬁ/'\* /\*EE
RELECEE

RZZE-N\F=A=+—HK
—T-\FmA—H

183%

IR
R=ZB-AE=ZHA=+—H
R EERRE

R tEmA—R
ERDREDER
BEHE AR

RZB-NF=A=+—8BK
—N\FEMmA—H
FAEH

R-E-HhE=A=+—H

EEEZ
R-ZZE-h&E=A=1+—H

R-ZF-—N\F=A=1—8H

10,602
Il

10,613

576,334

(576,334)

576,334

(576,334)

374,427
272

374,699

(287)

374,412

374,412

374,699

576,334

374,427
272

(576,334)

374,699
10,602
(276)

385,025

576,334

(576,334)

150

150

384,875

374,699

Annual Report 2019 F#



For the year ended 31 March 2019 % —

Notes:

(i

(iii)

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Land use right represents the right to use the land for water exploitation activities in
Hunan. The land is located at j# 78 %7 S8 1T S8 32 B = HIEERFE M. The land
use right is valid for 50 years.

Land use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its lease term. The lease term
of the land use right is 50 years.

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of Attorney dated |2
September 2009 and made between PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera (*'Indo”),
the holder of the operation licence in the mining are located in Lumajang, East
Java, Indonesia, and PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT. Dampar”), pursuant to
which, Indo grants exclusive rights and authorities to PT. Dampar to manage and
arrange all activities in the mining area on behalf of Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life. The useful economic life of the exclusive rights was estimated with
reference to the validity of the operation licence held by Indo. The operation
licence was valid for ten years from 21 July 2010 and the holder was entitled to
apply for renewal for two times with a 10-year term each.

The Ministerial Regulation No. /2014 promulgated by the Indonesian Government
with effect from | January 2014. According to the regulation, the Indonesian
government stopped the export of unprocessed mineral products with a view to
encouraging the upgrading of minerals through processing and refining before such
minerals can be exported. To mitigate this negative effect, the Company entered
into a purchase agreement to purchase equipment for the purpose of refining the
iron sand to sponge iron of higher than 75% Fe employing the direct reduction
method. For the details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 24
January 2014 and 2 May 2014 respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, the exclusive right has been fully amortised and impaired.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the exclusive right was disposed of by
disposal of the subsidiary, China Value Assets Limited.

Water mining licence represents the right to conduct water exploitation activities
in Hunan. The subsidiary, /#iF ¥7TH B 425 R /K AR A F) had entered into an
agreement with Hunan Government to grant the subsidiary a water mining licence
for exploitation of mineral water for 5 years. The subsidiary has the priority to
extend the mineral water mining licence afterwards. The mine is located at 4 & %7
H$% = 3. The subsidiary has the exclusive rights and authorities to manage and
arrange all activities in the mining area.

Water mining licence is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life. The useful economic life of the water mining licence was estimated
with reference to the validity of the operation licence held and the productions
plans of the Group. No amortisation was provided for the year ended 31 March
2019 as commercial production has not yet commenced during the year.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment on the water mining
licence at the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its annual
impairment test for the water mining licence. No impairment loss was recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2019, as the fair value of the water mining licence
calculated is higher than its carrying amount. The fair value of the water mining
licence was determined based on multi period excess earnings method which uses
sum of discounted present value of the projected annual excess earnings. As at 31
March 2019, the fair value of the water mining licence is referenced to valuation
report issued by AP Appraisal Limited, independent qualified valuers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i MBIRAR R

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE —ZT—hAE=A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFE QB 2

2019 2018

—E-NF —ET-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TR

At the beginning of the year F7) 226,960 427,228

Addition 1SR - 234,892

Disposal HE - (427,272)
Share of post-acquisition losses and other FARASHBEREER

comprehensive income during the year, Hith 2 EUES -

net of dividends received k2 WAk S (7.888)

At the end of the year FR 210,517 226,960

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Amount due from an associate R — & R E 2B m -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-bearing at

0% per annum and repayable within one year.

The Group disposed of 35% equity interests in Shenzhen
Zhaosheng Anye Investment Development Company Limited*
(RIIBE R EREZERABEMR AR through disposal of
60% and 40% equity interest in a subsidiary, Shenzhen
Penghongsheng Industrial Development Limited* (Z3IIIf§8
FSEELEREABMRAF]) on |1 May 2017 and 30 October 2017
respectively.

On 25 April 2017, the Group acquired 20% equity interests in
Hong Kong Spring Water Ding Dong Group Company Limited.
After the acquisition, Hong Kong Spring Water Ding Dong
Group Company Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary in
Guangxi (collectively “Spring Water Ding Dong”) become

associates of the Group.

The Group completed its annual impairment test for interests
in associates, Spring Water Ding Dong by comparing the
recoverable amount to the carrying amount as at 31 March 2019
and 2018. The Group has engaged AP Appraisal Limited to carry
out a valuation of the interests in associates as at 31 March 2019
and 2018 based on the value in use calculations. This valuation
uses cash flow projections based on financial estimates covering

a ten-year period.

*  For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

(d) (Continued)

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in-use

calculations are as follows:

Gross margin (% of revenue) ERE(YW5%)
Operating expenses (% of revenue) e 2 (M%)
Long term annual growth rate used to AREERERE
extrapolate cash flows MR R X
Pre-tax discount rate FATITIE R

Gross margin is the average margin as a percentage of revenue
over the ten-year forecast period. It is based on the current sales
margin levels with adjustments made to reflect the expected
future price adjustments in bottled mineral water product
which management does not expect to be able to pass on to

customers through price changes.

Operating expenses are the average operating expenses as a
percentage of sales volume over the ten-year forecast period.
Management forecasts these costs based on the current business

structure, adjusting for future products marketing strategies.

The long term growth rate used is the expected annual growth
rate of operating cash flows based on the historical experience
of management in the wholesale and retail markets of bottled

mineral water.

The value assigned to the above assumptions reflect past
experience and are consistent with management plans for
focusing operations in these markets. The management believes

that the assumptions are reasonable achievable.

(d) (&)

ANMEREBEFEZEZRR R
BERFIMAT -

59.73%
33.58%

3%
[4%

ERE BT EEARERST AL
BT ERIE - T E A EF
MATRITEE  URBRBEES
KEQEBRAKEEBE B2
EENTESBEREDNETE
F o

RERMXRTFERARAFHELH
XIHHEENBENL - EEERER
RIEBRBIEBAZERAE - WEHR
REEmEHRIEITRE -

REETERAREER AR ERT
ISR ER - FERN R
WERABERSABNEBEY
£

HEE BRRRZBERRBEEL
B WREBBEFINEEXET
BZatEl— % BEEEMRERR
ARIEAAT

ﬁﬁﬂ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —T—HE=A=+—HIIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20. REEZE N B 2= (F)

Details of the Group's associates, which were held indirectly by the AEEBERF(ARARFKEHRE
Company at the end of reporting period, were as follows: BEA)ZHBWOT -
Form of Place of Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal value of
business incorporation/  registered paid capitallregistered Principal
Name of associates and structure  operation capital held capital held by the Group activities
AL/ KEZRG/ MR REERAZERNRR
BENTER EBPARRE EE#H EXEH HE/ ERERzEAL IRER
2019 2018
8N i Sy it:2
Hong Kong Spring Water Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 20% 20%  Investment holding and
Ding Dong Group Bl 55 E3t] water business
Company Limited RABRRKER
BARKTREE
ARAR
Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong  Incorporated the PRC Registered 20%  Production and
Beverages Company Limited* I HE Bt sales of
BRSKTERRERAR bottled water
(FRERECEXRA EERFEREK
WRKEREERR)

*  For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates,
Spring Water Ding Dong, for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
the period from the date of acquisition to 3| March 2018) was set
out below which represents amounts shown in the respective financial
statements of the associates prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

Current asset MENE E
Non-current asset ERBEE
Current liabilities nBEE
Revenue &

Loss for the period RNEAEE
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 E Yz
Total comprehensive income P HEW R

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

AREEZBERRRKTEEE
—NF=ZA=+—HLEHFE “—/\
F:ARAUBEMEE-_ZT-N\F=H
ST HHE) U BERBEHIRNT
X RERBEARREBVBREE
E'Jfﬁizxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘%#&%«%ﬁqﬁﬁmZ@

c BENREREMBWMERAUER
>£7§lJEE°

42,172
160,027

227,524

24,494

(39,274)
(385)

(39,659)

R BERBZRNGRE M HHRERA
R e AR S REEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Net liabilities of the associates ik /N hi g
as at acquisition date HHE 2 &5 (33.841)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBNEE N E 2 BB ERER
interests in associates Aot 20%
Cost of investments in associates TERBE RE KA
Unlisted in Hong Kong BEBREANIE LT (6,768)
Valuation adjustment from acquisition WHE 2 M EFHE 210,217
Goodwill SRS 31,443
Share of post-acquisition losses and other DMEREERERNEEMEE
comprehensive income, net of dividends Was - HIBRE WARE
received (7,932)
Carrying amount of the Group's interests in AEE R
associates NARIZ R Z BREE 226,960
There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under the ZEMERNA T EEAAGERIAR
associates. f& -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

BRTYE
Less: provision for impairment WO ERE

Properties under development

Properties under development are the residential properties located
in Beibu District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC

under development for sale.

As at 31 March 2019, the balance included land use rights of
approximately HK$121,229,000 (2018: HK$216,191,000). Upon
completion of the construction, the land use rights would be

transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 3| March 2018, as the contracted sales proceeds of pre-sale
units less their estimated costs of completion is lower than their

carrying amounts, provision for impairment was recognised.

During the year ended 3| March 2019, provision for impairment
on properties under development of approximately HK$57,694,000
(2018: Nil) were transferred to the provision for impairment on

completed properties held for sale (note 22).

For the year ended 3| March 2019, additional provision for
impairment was recognised to reflect the decrease of net realisable

value of properties under development.

853,803
(57.694)

796,109

BRPYERIDURTEESMNHES
AR ZHEHEZERTEED
o,

RZE—NF=A=+—H0 #ER
FEH121229000F L (ZF — )\ F -
216,191,000 70) 2 L HFE FARE - T it
FREBREIEAEREFELEZD
SERIE o

RZE—N\F=A=+—H R EHE
EBMNMELHEEFRE AT TR
EREERMEE - AL ERRERE -

REBEEZZE-—NWF=A=+—HLHF
[§ + #957,6940008 L (=T — )\ F :
BICBEETMEIRERECERE
FIEHEZEERWME 2 RERE (M
£T22) o

BE - Z—hWF=ZA=T—HILFED

RN RERE - ARRERSY
KA ERFEZRD
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The Group’s properties under development at their book values are

analysed as follows:

Located in the PRC, held on: ERBERA -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years [0 S0F A

As at 31 March 2019, land use right of approximately
HK$ 121,229,000 (2018: HK$129,536,000) was pledged to a bank for

a recurring loan granted to a third party. For the details, please refer

to note 39.
Completed properties held for sale FERE ZBEERKME
Less: Provision for impairment B RE R

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & JRIZEIR B R A 7

AEBEERFYEREETDES T
T

796,109

R—ZZETE—HAFZA=Z+—H8 4
121,229,000/ 7 ( =& —\4F 129,536,000
BT 2 T E R IR TRT - 1ER
FEZTERBRERCER - FEFEL2
BB EE39 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

The completed properties held for sale were located in the PRC
under medium-term lease. Completed properties held for sale which
are expected to be recovered in more than twelve months after the
reporting date are classified under current assets as it is expected to

be realised in the Group's normal operating cycle.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, provision for impairment
of approximately HK$57,694,000 (2018: Nil) was transferred from

properties under development (note 21).

For the year ended 31 March 2019, additional provision for
impairment was recognised to reflect the decrease in net realisable

value of the completed properties located in Dalian of the PRC.

Loan receivables R E R
Interest receivables JE W B

TS TR R 2 BRI AR
E - EHE R RS BT E A%
Bl R & 2 BER D E S B AR
L RN E LS Tl S
B % 28 E R -

REBEE-_ZTZ—NE=ZA=+—HIF
JE » #957,694,000/8 70 ( —F— )\4F : &)
BERGBEEOEESRYERE (M
21) e

BE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILFEE
FERERSN R E B - ARBRAZ I B

REZEERMEANRERFE D

149,050
2,451

151,501
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Based on the loan commencement date set out in the relevant
contracts, aging analysis of the Group’s loan receivables as of each

reporting date is as follows:

0 — 180 days T (80H
181 — 365 days 18153650

The Group's loan receivables, which arise from the money lending
business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
loan receivables were repaid in accordance with the terms of the loan

agreements and all loan receivables are recoverable within one year.

All loan receivables are secured, bear interest and are receivable with
fixed terms agreed with customers. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the loan receivables.
The aged analysis of the loan receivables that are not individually nor

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired AN EARRE
Less than 90 days past due BHAT 90K
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RERAEHANZ ERMAKEE - &
5 8 O M B 0 TR B SR AT
T

151,501

151,501

AEEZEREER(KERETBZRE
EB)LAETLEHE - BRERREER
W 2 RIHEE - MATERKRERAR
—EFRKE -

FPrBERWEZY RBEER 5t E RiRA
BEPWHE < Bl E Gk E - R¥RE B
R EERRSRKERZREE -
ARERREHASRESDRELZIE
WEFREDTIAT

151,501

151,501



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

As at 31 March 2018, the loan receivables of approximately

HK$ 151,501,000 were past due but not impaired. The overdue

amounts were fully settled in April 2018, it indicates that no

impairment is needed.

As at 31 March 2018, the effective interest rates on the Group’s loan

receivables is approximately 5.5% per annum. Interest income of

approximately HK$7,343,000 has been recognised in revenue in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income during the year and receivable on the date of repayment.

Non-current assets:
Deposits for acquisition of investment

properties (note i)

Current assets:
Deposits paid, net (note ii)
Prepayments (note iii)

Other receivables, net (note iv)

FRBEE :
WEREMEZ
B (Hati)

RBEE :

B REF R (Hatii)
JEN FIE (B i)

H ity FE UL PR SOF R (Y ativ)

R-Z—NEFE=A=1+—80 EUER
#9151,501,0008 L E B EB K FE - B
HRIBEE RN T — \FH A BHLES
HRPAETRME -

R-Z—N\F=ZA=+—8 A£@EE
WERZEBEBEFRNERLNRS5% - FA -
MBI A #77,343,0008 TE R 4r A 1B
kEMEEMBEERAZ KaSERBRE
KA -

798,87 |

136,941
[161
49,010

187,112
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The movement of the provision for impairment loss on deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes) is

disclosed in note 5C.

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of

recovering additional cash.

The other classes within prepayments, deposits and other receivables

do not contain impaired assets.

As at 3| March 2018, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$628,000 have been
reclassified to assets classified as held for sale (for details, please refer

to note 16).
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BE R H R WK (N B IR TR 50R
REMBHTE) OB ERBEZSHNM
FESCHREE -

B R AR E R R 5 A
SR ENETES NP Tof%
BreE - HERSTRUEESZRS
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DEFBRLTEZREEE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—Z —

NE=ZA=F+—HBIFE

Other receivables, net are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
HK$ BTT
Notes:
0] As at 31 March 2019, deposits paid of approximately HK$292,449,000 (2018:

HK$312,489,000) were in relation to three acquisitions of properties in Yantian
where the physical possession of the properties has been delivered to the Group.
According to the supplementary agreement disclosed in the announcement dated
3 May 2018, the titles of the three properties should be transferred to the Group
before 30 December 2018. Nevertheless, according to the announcement dated
19 June 2019, the vendor has still not registered the title of the properties under
the name of the Group. The approval from the PRC government authority for
issuing the building ownership certificate remained pending. The Group is now
actively negotiating with the vendor on this matter for the possible ways to resolve

the same.

As at 31 March 2019, deposit paid of approximately HK$233,959,000 (2018:
HK$249,991,000) was in relation to acquisition of properties in Beijing. Details of

which were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2017.

As at 31 March 2019, deposit paid of approximately HK$624,452,000 (2018:
HK$236,391,000) was in relation to acquisition of properties in Shenyang
(“Shenyang Properties”). Details of which are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 12 October 2017. In mid-April 2019, the Group received a
notice from the vendor that it is anticipated that the vendor would not be able to
complete the construction of the Shenyang Properties and deliver the same to the
Group in accordance with the agreed terms of the sale and purchase agreement
on 12 October 2017. The vendor proposed to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement. On 24 April 2019, after arm's length negotiations between the vendor
and the Group, the parties entered into a termination agreement. Details of which

are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2019.

HAtb EW AR FFREA T I B EHE -

Hret

48,974
36

49,010

—NFE=ZA=+—H8 " 4292,449,000
BIL(ZZF—/\F 1 312,489,000/ L) 2 B
ReR=IHHEBYE WEER - BZEY
RCBRERBARERN TAKHE - RIEEH
BT ) \FHAZAMAHEEZHEW
BRCEWEZERAR-ZT-N\F+=
A=1THAEZETAEE - AW - RIEAH
BZTE-NAEXNATAANAH BEHER
UAKBEEBECHEMENERE - GHEH
AR B R PTA R AR ) BB A

o BEkABHEEMAIELE - A%
& I ptUL B 5 AR o
RZZE—NF=A=+—8 " 4233959,000

B (=T —)\F 249,991,000 7T) 2 B+t
e MR YRR - HFBEERARQA
AfA—T—+F_A-+\BZAM-

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H " 49624,452,000
BIL(ZZT—/\F 1 236,391,000 7T) 2 Eff
ReBWEESYE(DEEMEER - 3
BERAARAFRARA=-T—LF+A+=8
2R RZTE—NFHARE - KEBEHK
NEAZBR  RREARERE-T—+
FHATZETZEBGHR Z KR MEATRK
BEBEGYE  UHREVEITAEE -

BEHEERLEEERE R -_T—hAFHNA
:+EE KEHFEREBATEREZ - £

WM FATR I - SEBERANARR BE
AZT-NENA-+IHAZAM -
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(v)

As at 31 March 2019, deposits paid were mainly relating to (1) two buildings
naming right located in Shenzhen of approximately HK$21,023,000 (2018:
HK$22,463,000) and (2) acquisition of properties in Zengcheng of approximately
HK$72,528,000 (2018: HK$113,746,000). The acquisition of properties in
Zengcheng was terminated on |8 January 2017. Based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, the Group recognised a loss allowance for expected credit

loss on the deposits paid (for details, please refer to note 5C).

As at 31 March 2019, prepayments mainly comprised prepayment of indirect cost
incurred for properties under development and advertising expenses for water

exploitation operations.

As at 3| March 2018, prepayments mainly comprised prepayment of indirect cost

incurred for properties under development.

As at 3| March 2019 and 2018, other receivables mainly comprised other tax
prepaid in the PRC, payable to third party for a potential business co-operation and

cash advanced to staff.

One of the other receivables, from RINTHULBEEERBRAF, of
approximately HK$4,445,000 (2018: HK$4,750,000), represented the business
guaranty margin paid for properties redevelopment project situated at 43| Z&
W ILE BE 77 4T KB {E=E A [&. The margin is refundable if all land title owners of
FELABT{EEHR [& agree to transfer their land use rights to JRIITH T I E £ R
AR A F]. The management considered that the possibility of getting the refund is

remote and a provision of impairment has been made.
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Hret - (&)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

R-ZZE—AE=ZA=+—08 BHkexE
ZRRN()MEBEMLR RN ZEFTHEED
21,023,000 7T ( = Z — J\ 4 © 22,463,000/
7T ) B (2) U B 1 Ak 40 3 4972,528,000% 7T (=
T—)\F : 113,746,000/ ) » 5 BRI ILH
MEBRZT—+tF—A+/N\BEKIL - BRI
AEENBAEEBBELER  ~AEEREH
ReMNEHREEBREIBEBEEGESE2
BAMIEESC) ©

RZF-NF=ZA=+—8 BANKEBEXE
BREERTOMEELE ZBERKNRKERRF
BREZEEERZEANRA -

RZB-NF=ZA=+—RH BNREIE
BREERTOEEL ZBERANZANFOR -

R-F-NER-F-N\FZA=+—8
Hib R E R BEBEMN A EHIE -
WEEEBAERNE= T RERBNTA
T2RE -

Hp—SHMBEREFRER)THIIEE
BRERAMRAA - H44450008 L (=T —N
£ : 4,750,000/ 7T ) + HEELHO AR T 2 W B R
BEFTAREERBZVESZEAZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i MBIRAR R

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE —ZT—hAE=A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. KRB B A FPEAKRZEM
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LM ZBAES -
quoted bid price RERE 4,867
Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid price. NEEDIRBETISREETE -
26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SRITHEBRRRE
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following ReRREEEVMUATINEEE -
currencies:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHTT
RMB ARE 29,346
HKS T 251,730
Others Hitb 751

127,285 281,827
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.
As at 31 March 2018, bank balances and cash of approximately

HK$95,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as held for sale

(for details, please refer to note 16).

Trade payables B o ENER

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contract date or invoice date:

0 to 90 days 0£90H

91 to 180 days 912 180H
81 to 365 days 181 £&365H
Over 365 days tBiE365H

The trade payables are non-interest bearing, normally settled on
terms of one year, and denominated in RMB.
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BRPBEELUARBHEZRE LIRS
FEWANTE P EBTE 2 IMNEE
PRI

RZE—N\F=ZA=+—8  Bi7&%
KR & 4950008 T EEFHDEEDE
AREHEEE(EHEFBELHMF
16) °

41,726

RBERARREBESOARABRARZ
B RMERRERRTT

294
41,432
41,726
BHERNERBRE B—REAR—F
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For the

year ended 3| March 2019 HZE —F

Land value added tax payable
Accruals
Other payables (note i & ii)

Accrued interest on convertible bonds

—NF=A=t—HLLEE

JEAT L B (E Y

FEst &

oAt FEAS RR SR (M2 K i)
AR RE S 2 EETH R

Other payables and accruals are denominated in the following

currencies:

RMB
HK$

AR

BT

As at 31 March 2018, other payables and accruals with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$220,000 have been reclassified to
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale (for
details, please refer to note 16).

Notes:

@

(i)

As at 31 March 2019, other payables mainly comprised funds received from

third parties in the PRC for potential business co-operations of approximately

HK$78,596,000 (2018: HK$83,981,000).

As at 31 March 2019, other payables included amount due to non-controlling

interest of approximately HK$9,912,000 (2018: HK$4,002,000). The advances are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

70,815
2,138
94,409
6,109

173,471

Ht A IR M R &R AT
B :

BEE

162,446
11,025

173,471

R-_E—N\F=ZA=+—H  EMEH
BRI e +§m%nww%maiﬁ
HEESBEARELNEEEERABE Y
BE(EEFHBRELEMEI6) -

At -

() RZZT—NE=A=+-—8  HtEMER
TERERECEBAEREERRE=S
B 2 & & #778,596,000/8 T (=T — )\ F :
83,981,000/7T) °

(i) RZZE-—NF=A=+—8 HEMEX
BIE BT FE PR AR M 2 FRTE 499,912,000 7T.( =
T — )\ : 4,002,000/87C) - B HABRAER
- BEBRREREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

Authorised:

Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each
At | April 2017, 31 March 2018 and |

April 2018

Capital Reorganisation 2018 (note(c))

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

At 31 March 2019

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each

At | April 2017

Subscription of shares (note (a))

Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each
At 31 March 2018 and | April 2018

Subscription of shares (note (b))
Capital Reorganisation 2018 (note (c))

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

At 31 March 2019

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

EE

BREE2SE L LR
AZE—+FWMA—A -
—E-NF=ZA=1+—HK
—E—-)\FMA—H

— AR ER (K7 (c))

SREH00 B2 B
N=F-AF=A=+—A

BERTRHR
FREE0.258 T il
RZE—+FHA—H

REER D (K7t 2)

FRREE0.2578 7T 2 T im A%
}j’;\:g*/\i:ﬂ :JF* H &
=T /\¥mA—H
R (B (b))

T \RAEEHEM ()

FRREE0.OI BT Tk
AZE—NF=A=+—8H
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10,000,000,000

240,000,000,000

250,000,000,000

5,343,690,000
1,000,000,000

6,343,690,000
1,268,000,000

7,611,690,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

1,335,923
250,000

1,585,923
317,000
(1,826,806)

76,117



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(@  On 7 July 2017, Mr Li Yuguo agreed to subscribe 1,000,000,000 new ordinary
shares at subscription price of HK$0.25 per share. The subscription was completed
on 8 August 2017.

(b)  On 17 April 2018, Mr Li Yuguo agreed to subscribe [,268,000,000 new ordinary
shares at subscription price of HK$0.25 per share. The subscription was completed
on 3 August 2018.

(c)  Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 12
November 2018, the Company implemented the Capital Reorganisation 2018 on
I3 November 2018 which involved (i) capital reduction, pursuant to which the
issued share capital of the Company were reduced by a reduction of the par value
of each issued shares from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01, which reduction comprised a
cancellation of such amount of the paid-up capital on each issued share so that
each issued share were treated as one fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01
in the share capital of the Company immediately following the capital reduction
and the credit arising from the capital reduction were credited to the capital
reserve account of the Company; and (ii) sub-division of each of the authorised but
unissued shares of par value of HK$0.25 into twenty-five new shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each.

On 20 August 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds due on
20 August 2018 with a principal amount of HK$432,000,000, which
is intercomprising 4% coupon rate per annum (the “2015 CB").
The convertible bonds were issued for potential future investments,
including real estate projects and the general working capital of
the Group. The convertible bonds are designated as fair value on
initial recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.72. The effective interest rate is 15.91%.
The Company will redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have
not been converted on maturity date. The principal amount of
convertible bonds outstanding was approximately HK$244,800,000
as at 3| March 2018. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
outstanding convertible bonds with principal amount of approximately
HK$244,800,000 were fully repaid upon maturity.

Mt -

(@ MRZZE—+F+tAtH FEFRELEREMN
RIEE TR 0.25% 7T 7R 1,000,000,0008%
HEBR - ZRBR T —+F/N\AN\BX

(b)

() WRERZZE-—NF+—A+-HET2ZRE
HRAAKG EBBZBIRER - AAREST
- \BRAEE TR=_ZF—NF+—A
T=BEM - EFROBRANRD  BEEAR
RIFREBTRMD ZEBERKSHBTHIE
00T WRAKRRF ZBEBEITIRA 1t
AR L BIEESREZETRMECEEE &
EZEHBRA  FREREBETRONEE
ERAROBEEERRRIRAS 2 FRE
BR00IHB T2 EERD o BRAR D FFES
ZHERRBERANRR ZEANEBIR © R(0)
DIFREE RSB TTZ FREREE KT
R R2SRFIRG - BREOEEROE

JT °

RZZE—RFENAZ=+H  KABET
A& B8 H432,0000008 TR ZE— N\F
NAZ+RHEE  ZEE8XAETF4%2T]
BREF(T—T—RHEATBRRES]) -
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Equity component
At | April 2017, 31 March 2018 and
| April 2018

Redemption of convertible bonds during

the year
At 31 March 2019

Liability component
At | April 2017
Imputed interest expense charged

Interest paid

At 31 March 2018 and | April 2018

Imputed interest expense charged
Interest paid
Redemption of convertible bonds

during the year

At 31 March 2019

ER3a

RZE—+FMHH—H -
—E-N\F=ZA=1+—HK

—FE-N\FMA—H 72,561
RERNE R TR ES

(72,561)
R-ZE—NF=A=+—H -
=Lt

AZE—tFMWA—H 209,769
HEFBZ N 34,310
ERHE (9,792)
RZE—N\F=A=+—"HK

—E2-N\FWMNA—H 234,287
HEF BTN 14,322
ERHE (3,809)
RERER A B ES

(244,800)

R-ZE—hF=A=+—H -
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209,769
34310
(9.792)
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

The convertible bonds as at the end of reporting period are analysed

as follows:
Non-current liabilities FERBABE
Current liabilities PEB=NE

The fair value of the convertible bonds issued has been arrived on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the date of issue by Peak Vision
Appraisal Limited, independent professional valuers not connect with

the Group.

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the 2015 CB was approximately
HK$245,700,000 with reference to valuation report issued by AP

Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer.

REBREHR - TRBRESTOT

234,287

234,287

ERTABEES A FEDREER
SEY EEE BT EEMEMREF
HBERARNZEITEMMET 2 AEE
ﬁ o

NRZZE—NF=ZA=+—0 £2=8
B AEERTAP Appraisal Limited 2 {&18
& T -RFEABRKREF A TE
#)5245,700,0007 7T °

o S
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

REE_Z-NAFER-_T-/\F=A
=T—BLEFEAR  REA

B E
e BB IE BUE & (R BB 5 R
m -

Deferred tax arising from:
At | April 2017

(Credited)/charged

— to profit or loss

THIZEFEERIBELESIR

R-ZE—+FMA—H 41,469
(Bt A/ Bk
—f8a& (9,044)
— to other comprehensive income —HiemkzHI 3,929
At 31 March 2018 and | April 2018 RZZF-NF=RA=1+—HK
—F-\FMA—H 36,354
Credited HPN
— to profit or loss — 8% (17,553)
— to other comprehensive income —HirmzE (2,349)
At 31 March 2019 R=-B—hhE=A=+—H 16,452

Net deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position

KRB M BARNRERSEL
HIAR EFHE
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

The Company's share options scheme adopted on |4 January 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognition
of significant contribution of and for the provision of incentives to any
directors, employees (whether full-time or part-time), consultants,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates (“Eligible Persons’). On 12 July 2011,
the Company had granted 140,500,000 share options to directors,
employees and other affiliates under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9 August
2011 and a new share option scheme (the “201 | Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 |.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same purpose of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

ARARER-_ZEE-_F—A+MARK
MERES ([ S - FHRES
gl BEEEEAEEIBB AR ZF
MEE EE(TwmE2BER) B
B 2P gl REBA - EBAXK
BHRASENE([EERATDRTED
ZEEER - WHESREER o N
T——F+A+=-HB  ARBERE=
T _FHEREFENEZES  EERHE
ftb Bt J2B X B35 HH 140,500,00019 BE AR #E -

TR _FREREAIER T ——F
NARBELE  MARRR S
NANBRS—EFHBREFE( =F
——FRERERE ) -

Iu
|
H

TR ENEETT
FRERE S ZER B eORR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Under the terms of the 201 | Share Option Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may for a notional consideration of HK$ |
grant option to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer of the option (which must
be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option.
Options granted under the 201 | Share Option Scheme must be
taken up within 28 business days from the date on which the offer
is made by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$| per option (the
“Acceptance Conditions”). Options granted and accepted may be
exercised at any time for 10 years commencing on the date on which
an option is accepted in accordance with the Acceptance Conditions
under the 201 | Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period”).
Options granted under the Scheme will be exercisable in the Option
Period notwithstanding that the scheme period of the 201 | Share
Option Scheme does not prescribe any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and has not specified

that the exercise of an option is subject to any performance target.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
cannot exceed 0% (the “Limited”) of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the 201 | Share Option Scheme,
excluding any options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the

2011 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from the time to time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible
Persons if the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised
options and shares already issued under all previous option granted,
would in the [2-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant enable that relevant Eligible Person to have shares
exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being
unless separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting is

obtained.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
220,000, representing 0.003% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
220,000, representing 0.003% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the reporting date.

RAZ AT &) M AN R AT A] Ho A A g 5t 3
B 2B HARITE 2 B EETE
BA THRITZBNEE  REZAHATE
HE BN 2 BT A B2 30% © fiR i
BEERBRZE-IRTZEHZ12(E
HAHIM2mTE 2 5B RE (B3R EMA
WARTTR ZBRERREAEBERY
ZEREMBT RN EHEMNEE
BRALTHBEARRRER 2 EITRNE
B1% - AIBRESTERTAHAER
AL BIFCRBRERE LBFRRS
1THEE - BIBHISH -

—EE_FERETE
RN_ZE—NEFE=A=+—H8 R-ZTZT
ZEERETEIE T M ARITEZ B
H Moz B 8B £220,0000% - 1A A
RIS A EIE 3170819 20.003% °

RZE—NF=A=+—H R=Z
T FBRERT BB T A RTTEE 2 A
W N 2 D 8B 5220,0000% « 5747
AIARE B IR B17AR 19 20.003% °

A
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>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E AR TR

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. IR (AE)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EE-FERENE(E)
During the year under review, the details and movements in the share ROEBEFER © BIE-ZT — FHERE
options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: FrEREERENFERESH N
N

Number of share options

RREHR
Adjusted Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
exerciseprice  at | April during during during during at 31 March
Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2019
R=B-0% RZB-0E
BREEE WA-H ZA=t-H
RHA% s e HEOE REARY REAGE  RERXR  REREE  HEROE
HKS
Category I: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 11 July 2021 1.775 140,000 - - - - 140,000
BA- g2 “E—F “T-FEATIRE
tA+ZR “E--%tA+-R
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 = 1 July 2021 1775 80,000 - - - - 80,000
Loy [y “Ff “F—HLATEE
tA+ZR “E--%#tA+-R
Total for all categories 220,000 = = = - 220,000
AR
Weighted average 1775 = = = - 1,775
exercise price (HKS)
ETRE(ET)

217 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A 7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IR AR A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZE—NF=A=+—HILtFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. IR (78)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FEREE(E)

Number of share options

BREXE
Adjusted Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
exercise price  at | April during during during during at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZB-tf RZB-N\E
SREEE  WA-A ZA=1-H

RLAR T8 HATE REARE REATE RERKR REREE  HAGE

HK$
BT
Category |: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 11 July 2021 1.775 140,000 - - - - 140,000
- E% 7 “F—FLAtZRE
tA+=A B -FtAt+-A
Category 2 Employees 12July 2011 12 oy 2011 - 11 uly 2021 1775 3080000 - ~ (3000000) S 800w
Bhl=: ER 7 “F—FLAtZRE
tA+=H i St
Total for all categories 3,220,000 - - (3,000000) - 220,000
BRI
Weighted average 1775 - - 1.775 - 1775
exercise price (HKS)
mgET5TEE(E)
Note: Bzt -
(i) The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the ()  ARFROARE B B ATATHR 2T
date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital reorganisation BAO7TIEBT(RBRAETEHEAR T —ZF X
became effective on 3 June 2013). AZBHRERERI7758T) -
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)
The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 3|
March 2011 were priced using the Trinomial model. The inputs into

the model share option type.

—EE_FRKRETE(E)
RBE-_Z——F=A=+—HIHFE
ROBRE A FETER =A%
EERANEE  -ZBEABREER 2
UNER

Grant date share price B ERE HK$0.07 1 77T
Exercise price 1TERE HK$0.07 1 37T
Adjusted exercisable price after Capital RZT—=RAEHE 2 CHABITEE

Reorganisation 2013 HK$1.775% 7T
Expected volatility & HR R 0 78.743%
Expected option life & HA RS AR 1 <F B 10 years&F
Dividend yield Ag B & 0%
Risk-free interest rate 45 L e 1) == 2.796%

2011 Share Option Scheme
On 28 September 2016, 379,500,000 share options were granted
to directors, employees and consultant under 2011 Share Option

Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.26| per share.

As at 31 March 2018, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 201 | Share Option Scheme was
464,300,000, representing 7.32% of the Shares of the Company in

issue at the reporting date.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HZE — &

—NF=A=t—HLLEE

2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 201 | Share Option Scheme was
99,400,000, representing |.31% of the Shares of the Company in issue

at the reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the details and
movements in the share options granted under 2011 Share Option

Scheme are as follows:

Category |: Directors
Bil- &%

Category 2: Employees
- B8

Category 3: Consutant
HRI= - B

Total for all categories

BRI

Weighted average
exercise price (HK$)

mEFEHEEGEL)

26 August 2014
“Z-ME

NA

s |

3 October 2014

ZZ-PmETR=R

20 April 2015
“E-nf

WA=
18 September 2016

tH

gk

A

26 August 2014
L

NA

Zt7A

3 October 2014

“T-RETR=R

20 April 2015
“E-nf

WA=
18 September 2016

tH

gk

- /N

18 September 2016

gk

A

26 /-\ugust 2014 - 25 August 2024
E-RENAZTARE
= =
3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024
’5—@¢+ﬁ RE
E-RETAZH
20 Apr\\ 2015- 19 April 2025
F-RERAZTRE
T -E-REMETAR
28 September 2016 - 27 September 2026
- Aiﬂﬁ TNBE
ZoREAACTER

26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024

75_@&)\@ NES
-MENA-TRA

3 October 2014 -2 October 2024

“E-MEHAZRE-ECMETACA

20 Apr\\ 2015- 19 April 2025

F-RERAZTRE
SR REMETAR

28 September 2016 - 27 September 2026

- Aﬁﬂﬁ TNBE
ZoREAACTER

18 September 2016 - 27 September 2017
2 FAAZTNRE
“EEARCTEA

0352

0520

0395

026

0352

0520

0395

026

026

400,000

2,000,000

55,000,000

275000000

1,200,000

11,000,000

20,200,000

46,500,000

53,000000

464,300,000

0.290

—E——FEREE(E)
NR-ZZE—AE=A=+—80 " 3#iBE—
T —FEREFERLMIDARITE
2B K 2 & 1D & B 599,400,000
o RARRRBEBREEITRMD Z
131% °

HE_Z-—NFERZZT-NF=A
S+—BLLFE  BE-T——FBR
EFEERE CEREFERE SN
T~

- - - - 400000
- - - - 2,000,000
- - - (27,000000) 28000000

- - (159000000)  (53000000) 63000000

- - (700000) - 500000
- - (10000000) -~ 1000000
- - (20200000) - -
- - (42000000) - 4500000
- - (53000000) - -

- - (284900,000)  (80,000000) 99,400,000

- - 0.280 0.306 0307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Category |: Directors

Bhl- g%

Category 2: Employees
Bh- B8

Category 3: Consultant
Bhl=: BA

Total for all categories

ARt

Weighted average
exercise ;zrice (HKSQ
MEFSTEE(ET)

Date of grant

RHAH

26 August 2014

“I-pmE
NA=t+7A

3 October 2014

“Z-mETAZH

20 April 2015
—Z-nE
MA-tA
28 September 2016
“ER

ANAZHNR

26 August 2014

T
NA=+7H

3 October 2014

“T-NETAZH

20 April 2015
“Z-1f
MA=+H
28 September 2016
“IRE

AAZ+NE

28 September 2016
“IRE

b9 Bt JAN=

Exercisable period

18

26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024

ZE-EENAZTREE
“E-mENA-THA

3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024

“Z-METAZRZ
—Z-METAZA

20 April 2015 - 19 April 2025

ZE-REMAZTHE
“ECREMATAR

28 September 2016 - 27 September 2026

I RFNAZTNRE
“ECRFAACTLR

26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024

“F-MENAZ+ABZE
ZEoRENAZTLA

3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024

T-METRZHZE
“ECRETAZH

20 April 2015 - 19 April 2025

“E-RENACTAE
ZEZRFEMATAR

28 September 2016 — 27 September 2026

ZE-REAAZTNEE
“ECREAACTLR

28 September 2016 — 27 September 2017
ZEENAZTNRE
“E-tENAZTLR
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Exercise
price
per share

sk
e
HK$
BT
0352
0.520

0395

0261

0352

0520

0395

0261

0261

32. BERRRE(48)
—E—— R R (E)

Number of share options

BRENR
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
at | April during during during at 31 March
2017 the year the year the year 2018
R=F-tF R=B-NF
A-H =A=t+-H
HATE REARE RERGTE RERAN  HAGE
400,000 - - = 400,000
2,000,000 - - = 2,000,000
55,000,000 - - - 55,000,000
275,000,000 - = - 275,000,000
1,200,000 - = = 1,200,000
45,400,000 = - (34400000) 11,000,000
20,800,000 = = (600,000) 20,200,000
51,500,000 = = (5,000,000) 46,500,000
53,000,000 = = - 53,000,000
504,300,000 = - (40,000,000) 464,300,000
0306 = = 0486 0209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZT—NF=ZA=1+—HILtFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)
The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 3|
March 2017 were pricing using the Trinomial model. The inputs into

the model were as follow:

32. IR HE ()
—E—— R ()
REE-E—+E=A=+—BIFE
5 U B AR A A T4 A = B S HR A
TEEREE - A HARENT :

2011 Share Option Scheme Granted on

28 September

2016

—E-REF

AA=t+N\H

Grant date share price R B ERE HK$0.255/%8 ¢
Exercise price B HK$0.26 1 77T
Expected volatility BERIE 75.617%
Expected option life BHRRET 9.995 yearsF
Dividend yield RE% 0%
Risk-free interest rate EEBRNE 0.884%

2 -FRRESEREAS

20 April 3 October 26 August
2015 2014 2014
—E-EE —E-E —E-MF
MA=1A tAZB  NAZ=t+AXH

HK$0.3957 7T HK$0.52078 7T HK$0.34578 7T
HK$0.395/8 7T HK$0.52078 7T HK$0.3528 1T

73.37% 71.741% 71.09%

10 yearsF 10 years 10 yearsf
0% 0% 0%

4% 1.969% 1.919%
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Acquisition of Good Union

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired 67%
of the issued share capital of Good Union (China) Limited (“Good
Union™) at a consideration of approximately HK$244,000,000. Good
Union is engaging in investment holding and its subsidiary is principally
engaged in exploitation, production and sales of spring water. The
acquisition has been completed on 7 June 2017. Please refer to
announcement dated 7 June 2017. The acquisition has broadened
the Group’s business spectrum by extending its business into water

mining, production and sales of bottled water business.

Pursuant to the sales and purchases agreement of acquisition of
67% equity interests in Good Union, the vendor undertakes that the
production volume of spring water shall not be less than (i) 50,000
cubic metres in 2019 and (ii) 100,000 cubic metres for each calendar
year from 2020 to 2028 (the “Guaranteed Periods”). If Good Union
fails to satisfy the aforesaid production volume guarantee, the Vendor
shall be required to pay monetary compensation to the Group with
reference to the difference between (i) the estimated amount of
profit of the Good Union during the Guaranteed Periods as if the
production volume guarantee can be achieved and (ii) the actual
amount of profit of Good Union during the Guaranteed Periods. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the possibility of Good
Union that does not meet the production volume is remote so that
there is no contingent consideration receivables recognised for the

cash compensation.
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Acquisition of Good Union (continued)

Fair value of the assets acquired AUWEAHMBEERER
and liabilities recognised at the =P/

date of acquisition

Intangible assets BEE

Other receivables H i EUERR

Accruals and other payables fEET B A Rk E A B R
Bank balances and cash RTEBRRRE

Total identifiable net assets AHRIEEFEES
Non-controlling interests R ER

Total consideration BRE

The acquisition did not constitute a business and has been accounted

for as acquisition of asset.

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in an acquired entity
at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$3,891,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognised as an expense in the period, within the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

W s EH (&

4209 370,218 374,427
13,620 - 13,620
(26,436) - (26,436)
2,568 - 2,568
(6,039) 370,218 364,179
1993 (122,172) (120,179)
(4,046) 248,046 244,000

244,000

RBEWEBIY MER—IBER - BtE A
RINREENE -

AREEILIFE S 0B B R T &
BIEEFEZLAABKBER 2 IFE

Petas o

Ue BB FE R AL AN %) 53,89 1,000 T B it 82
FRERME  YEEHARGEER
REMEEKZER [1TBRFAXZ IEHE T
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Acquisition of Good Union (continued) Wrs B (&)
Net cash outflow to the acquisition Bl 2 B it i R
Cash consideration paid BENR&NRE 244,000
Bank balances and cash acquired P sfAT/RE SR R R % (2,568)
241,432
(a) Non-cash investing and financing activities (a) FRERERBEZE
Acquisition of interests in associates PAEH ZHR TN BE R E A
by means of promissory notes Bl 2R 234,892
On 25 April 2017, the Group acquired 20% equity interests RZZ—+tFWOA=Z+HHE &%
in Spring Water Ding Dong Group at a consideration of ] L i SR KT IR SR [E20% AR A - X
HK$273,000,000, which were settled by promissory notes. {8 /273,000,000 % 7T 3 LA 7 H, 2=
The interests in associates were recognised at the fair value of BT o RESE AT 2 ERRIRFH
promissory notes at the date of issue, which was approximately EERNETERZ ATFEER - &
HK$234,892,000. 234,892,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERAR MR

For the year ended 3| March 2019 BE=FE—NF=A=1+—HIFE

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements

in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Net debt B EE
Convertible bonds AR E S

— repayable within one year —R—FREE
Convertible bonds AR E S

— repayable after one year —R—FREE

As no asset is pledged for the convertible bonds, the carrying
amount of convertible bonds represented the net debt as at the

end of reporting periods.

34 IMEREER ()

(b) EXFHER
HET TR S 25 B ESFRE L
B FRER 2D -

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET
234,287

234,287

I EEE R A RREF R
A REREMK - ATBRRESZ
IREEREERFHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

Net debt as at | April 2017

Cash flows

Other non-cash movements

Net debt as at 31 March 2018 and
I April 2018

Cash flows

Other non-cash movements

Net debt as at 31 March 2019
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4. RERBER(E)

(b) EHFHEL R (E)

Liabilities from

financing activities

REBMETBZEE
Promissory Convertible
notes bonds
ARRERE A AR (E 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAET
RZE—tFMNA—HZ
B = 209,769
REmE (273,000) (9,792)
H A IEIR & FE 273,000 34310
R-ZE—-N\F=ZA=+—8k
—ET-NFNMNA—HZ
BET%F5E - 234,287
ReEmE = (248,601)
HihIER & &) = 14,314

R-E—NE=A=+—AZ
B s

Al



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(a) Disposal of FYMEHEAZEXZREER L Al

On 27 April 2017, the Group has been entered into a disposal
agreement with the purchaser RIITTZHXEIEIKEZER
BBR/AF], an independent third party in respect of the sale
of 60% share equity of RIIMESHEABEXERERAA at a
consideration of RMB240,000,000.

On 6 June 2017, the Group has been entered into a disposal
agreement with the purchaser RIITTLZEAIRTEHR
BBRZAF] an independent third party in respect of the sale
of 40% share equity of FYIBHAEXERBMR AT at a
consideration of RMB160,000,000.

The disposal of RINIBBEABEXEERBER QT was
subsequently completed on 30 October 2017. As the two
disposal transactions occurred in a short period, the two
disposal transactions are accounted for as one transaction
due to insignificant timing difference. The considerations
of RMB400,000,000 were approximately equivalent to
HK$451,310,000.

(a) HEFRIEEZEXZRRER

PR 2} 7]
RZB—+FMWA=-+tR K&
BREERYNBEBAEXEERA
[RABle0%AEEE T RYITRE
ARREBRARAR(BILE=
AL HERE  REAARE
240,000,0007T °

RZZE—LFRAXNE ~&H
AHERYERAEXEERAR
NAE40% AR E TR & E
ARKEZERARAR(BIE=
TIRILEEwmE - RE/ARE
160,000,0007T °

HEFIBEABEXEERBR AT
EERZ-ZZE—tF+H=THZE
BX o BB NIE & A2 5 R R A
BT ZMBHEXSARHEEZER
TERBMARIME-ERS - KE
B AR #400,000,0007T  HERL
451,310,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

(a) Disposal of FRYIMEEFZE¥XZRREFRL Al

(continued)

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

follows:

Consideration received

Net assets disposed of:

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

Investment in an associate, at equity

Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Release of translation reserve

Gain on disposal of the subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow from disposal:

(2) HEFRYIBEEFERRRE

PR 2 5] (4

lZD\

SR E

BHEEEFE
R—EBERRZERE  RE
B 5 & E A YRR
RITHEBMAS

FRRR 2 [E
HEZMME R R E

BT AA -
Be

HEFEZHSRAFRE

Cash consideration RERE
Bank balances and cash disposal of EHERTHEB LA S
For the period from | April 2017 to the date of disposal, H-=
the above subsidiary was engaged in investment holding. The
subsidiary did not recognise any revenue and profit for the year B e BEC
ended 3| March 2018. HIEFE -
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ZMBARNHER Rz EEFE

451,310

(427.273)
(11,790)
(704)

11,543
21

1,564

451,310

451,310

(704)

450,606

—tFHA-BREHER
HIFHE - FRBRARRERE

T N\E=A=+-

ZMB R R BESE

Az KOs A



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

(b) Disposal of China Value Assets Limited and (b) & China Value Assets

Merit Development Limited

On |2 July 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in respect of the sale of 100% share equity of China
Value Assets Limited and Merit Development Limited at a
consideration of HK$33,000,000.

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

Limited & Merit Development
Limited

RZE-NFLA+T=ZH  KX&H
7t & China Value Assets Limited &
Merit Development LimitedZ | 00%H%
R B Btk - L{E7/333,000000
I °

ZEMBARREERRNZEES

follows: BT -
Consideration received BURE 33,000
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR (27,173)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFIE e M EAEUIER (579)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE (87)
Other payables and accruals HihEM R N ERT & A 201
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHE 2
Gain on disposal before release of translation reserve SRR IE H {##EAI 2 HE Wz 5,364
Release of translation reserve R 2 B (9,903)
Loss on disposal of the subsidiaries HEZEWE A FIEE (4,539)
Satisfied by: BTHAF A
Cash Re 33,000
Net cash inflow from disposal: PESHE A RAFE -
Cash consideration e KRE 33,000
Bank balances and cash disposal of EHERITERKIRS (87)
32913
For the period from | April 2018 to the date of disposal, the B-FE-/\FHUA-—RAEEZHEAHIE
above subsidiaries were engaged in properties investment in HE - FME AR RN E Y ER
Hangzhou and iron mining in Indonesia. The subsidiaries did not BRREERFHBERX BE_F
recognise any revenue but a loss of approximately HK$212,000 —NF=ZRA=+—HIFE  ZZ5HE
has recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 3| March RNEN EEREMNE - BERAEEZ
2019. 1R RERRA9212,000/8 7T 2 518
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

(c) Disposal of REFN B BREFRERETE LA

On 21 September 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the sale of 100% share equity
of BREAE R MALIRFMREE AT at a consideration of
approximately HK$4,820,000.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

follows:

(c) HEBRBNEXELRER

EFLT
RZZE—NFLA-+—8 &K&
[ 5t LA (B 494,820,000 JT H &R
EMERBRERERETAAZ
100% & DS R] S B B e o

SHB A AR &AM AR FE
T

Consideration received ERRE 4,820
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k& )
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE (4.558)
Gain on disposal before release of translation reserve R IE W FEEH AT 2 H S Uka 255
Release of translation reserve R 2 BB K # 383
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEZWMB RS 638
Satisfied by: BTOFAZA
Cash RE 4,820
Net cash inflow from disposal: HESHEZRSRAFE -
Cash consideration RERE 4,820
Bank balances and cash disposal of BHERTEHREIRS (4,558)
262

For the period from | April 2018 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiary was dormant. The subsidiary did not recognise
any revenue but a loss of approximately HK$465,000 has
recognised in the Group'’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2019.
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BE-Z—N\FMNA—HREEHEAR
HILEARM - EB AR EE
¥-HE-_Z-NF=A=+—8H
WEFE - ZK B A B I &R TR
Wz - BERAER 2 BERERLY
465,000/ T Z 518 °



For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

Details of the movements of the Group's reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 80 to 81.

Details of the movements of the Company’s reserves are set out in

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as lessee

Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive

—F AR
RE_ZFERF
(BIEEEME)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for

certain of its premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3

(2018: 3) years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease term.

REBRFEELDFBIHANEEEFHSI
B EAEREEE -
AAREEEHFBHANGETBRE
BisE43 ©

EEBERAEA

2,879

4,808
7,687
REBONFTEAREREE TR
ENEES  HBOBER=F(ZZ—AN

F=ZF)FHEN  mAHRRZEES
ERE °
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Contracted but not provided for:

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

capital commitments:

ERIAVEREE
Acquisition of investment properties (Note)
Property development expenditure YEERAS
Construction in-progress for

IR

water exploitation activities in Hunan

Note: The commitment of acquisition of investment properties included the following

main acquisition.

On 12 October 2017, the Group entered into the Sale and Purchase agreement
with BEREEZEHFR QA (the "Vendor”). The Group agreed to acquire
properties located at Shenyang from the Vendor at the consideration of
RMB625,000,000. The Vendor is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Yuguo, who is a
substantial shareholder and the Chairman and the Executive Director of the
Company. As at 31 March 2019, the Group has paid RMB528,763,800 for the
transaction and committed to settle the remaining amount, RMB96,236,200,
in accordance to terms in the Sale and Purchase agreement. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Group dated 22 January

2018.

However, the Group has received a notice from the Vendor that it is anticipated
that the Vendor would not be able to complete the construction of the properties
and proposed to terminate the Sales and Purchase Agreement. Under termination
agreement the Vendor shall refund the amount on or prior to 24 October 2019.
For details of the termination. Please refer to the announcement of the Group

dated 24 April 2019.
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WhEI B M (W iE)

HEKFEREE 2

RIERR - REEE T EAALE
580,013
174,331
754,344
BaE IR AR AR ARE A LT B -

o

AT+ F+ A+ REBEEEER
CEEERARESDILEERZ - &
EEREEEFRBLRESNYE  RE
AARM6250000007 c BEFHFERER
AARZERRATEETTEREEE =
E-RZZ—N&E=A=+—8 " X&£EE
MR I ARYES28763,800T W A FHILZE
e MRS RIEARK962362007T °
BRSNS F2HALERHAZT
—NE—A=Z+=RAzZ22f

R AKECEEES 2B EPREA
BEORTRETERERNE  UEBRKREESE
Bk o BB LLHE  BHAR-_Z—NF
TAZ+TWMARZAREMIE - F2HAE
BEHSAR-—ZT-NFEA-tHAZRE
IARRARAR AL 2 31 ©



For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

As at 31 March 2019, a wholly owned China subsidiary of the
Company, REEIMEMBRAEF (“XNEEIF") provided
corporate guarantees and a pledge of assets to third parties and
thus had contingent liabilities amounting to RMB200,000,000 (2018:
RMB200,000,000), detailed as follows:

)

)

On 17 April 2014, KZEEIF provided a corporate guarantee
to KIBIRITE—HOTAT (“REHRTT(—)") for a recurring
bank loan of RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party, KiEE
EMELWARDR (AZERE". In 2017, KERIT(—)
took a legal action against K3 H I for the recovery of the
aforesaid loan. On 21 December 2017, BEEEA RKEHMHHAR
JEBT (the “Court”) ordered R HH to repay the loan to X
##R17(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. Since
another independent guarantor of the loan, X:E|EEE B R
Al (“RENEHE") has pledged its properties to AEHRTT(—)
for this loan, it is believed that AX#EER1T(—) can fully recover
the loan and interest from the sales proceeds of the pledged

properties.

On 23 May 2014, K& &|H provided a corporate guarantee
to RiEHEIRFT(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000
granted to a third party, KEZEEWMEBR AT ("REERE").
In 2017, RiEHRTT(—) took a legal action against A& & &
for the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 28 December 2017,
the Court ordered K:EE[E to repay the loan to KNEIRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. Since K&
JIES% has pledged its properties to AZEERTT(—) for this loan,
it is believed that A& #R1T(—) can fully recover the loan and
interest from the sales proceeds of the pledged properties.

nW—

T-AE=A=+—B  ARAZ

2EFRREMBARKNEAMEMBRA
AI([REEIFM D ME=FRHAAE
RE-—HEEER BEXABEAR
#200,000000TC( ZZE—N\F : AR
200,000,0007T) * FFaaA T :

(h

)

RZE—NFOA++H - KEE
Mgt RERITE —POZIT([ K&
RIT(—)DAE=ZFRERBEYE
EWABERAR([ARERME])EK
Z BRI ITE A R # 50,000,000
7T BEAFER ZE—LFH
A RERT(—)HRKERBIRE
AR - ABE EMER - RZF
—tF+-A=-+—H EEEK
EWARRARZER([VER]) w2
REFEAAERT(—)EE LM
B BEREBEEIEBREAE -
HREFRHNS —EBLERAKE
BB ZERAR ([ KEIEE]E
HEMERRTRERT(—) - A
PEABE REIRIT(— ) AT LA S B 1K
W2 s 2K EE R

B o

o

RZZE—MOFRA=Z+=H ' K
HEAMBEARERT(—)ME=ZR
RNEFEEMEBR DA ([ KEE
B)EBZERBITERARE
50,000,0007C * #EH A RIHER - =
T FHM  KERIT(—)H
NEEERNESR - EE e
HeRZEBE—EFF+=ZA=ZT+AN
H xS AR M AR ERTT
(—)EE LB - ERMABAE
BERALAE - AR AKEIEEE
HEWEERMRTRERT(—) - Bk
BERERT(—) AT AREER
WY FREH2EREER A

B o

Ao
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

)

)

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

On 19 August 2014, K3EEBIF provided a corporate guarantee
to Ki&#R77(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000
granted to a third party, KIEZERE S BRG] (“REZR").
In 2017, RiEHR1T(—) took a legal action against A& EH
for the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 21 December 2017,
the Court ordered AX:EEH to repay the loan to NEIRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. The loan
principal of RMB50,000,000 has been repaid by Ki#EZEH on
30 December 2017. Since XiE|IEY has pledged its properties
to K#EIRTT(—) for this loan, it is believed that K E iR1T
(—) can fully recover the outstanding interest from the sales

proceeds of the pledged properties.

On 13 July 2015, K &
recorded as properties under development (note 21) to provide
a guarantee to KEIRTTE =TT (“KEIRIT(Z)") fora
recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party,
REBESDFHHERAF (KEBEE"). In 2017, KiER
#7(=) took a legal action against XiEH1Z for the recovery of
the aforesaid loan. On 25 January 2018, the Court ordered A&

181Z to repay the loan to Ki&E#RTT(=), together with relevant

£l 0 has pledged a land use right

legal cost and interest.
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3)

)

RZZE—MENA+TAR - KEAl
Mgt RERIT(—IMB =TT RE=E
BESERAR(IREZR BN
2 fEIR R 1T E 5 A K # 50,000,000
7T REARIER —E—tFH
M- RERIT(—)HEREEHE
WAREF - IBE ElER - RZF
—+tF+=ZA=+—H8  Ekw®
SREZBMAERIT(—)EE
B EZRMEEEBRENE -
RZE—+tF+=ZA=+H" K
HEWDOEEERZAZARE
50,000,0007C ° A R JEE B 15
EYEERTRERT(—) - Bk
MBERERIT(—) AT AR HEER
WE SR 2R ERERZR 2T

B o

roN

R_Z—AFEA+=R8 ' KEE
MM AERITE=ZPOIIT([KE
BIT(Z)DAE=ZFREBESD
THRABRAB ([ KEFHE])ER
Z R RTTE 5K A K% 50,000,000
T BREEERYEFNH—EL

o AR (MEFE21) o — B —+4F
B - RERT(Z)HRNEBRER

HEER - BRI R ER - R -F
—N\F—-—AZ+EHB  Ekw<

BEEERAERT(Z)EELRE
K EFRBRRERERARAE -



For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

(5) On 23 November 2015, K &
guarantee to A @& #} 7 ( = ) for a recurring bank loan of
RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party, NiE#EE/FRER T2
BRAR] (“REHZEE). In 2017, RERIT(Z) took a legal
action against X8 2 8 B for the recovery of the aforesaid
loan. On 25 January 2018, the Court ordered REEZHFE to
repay the loan to RERTT(=), together with relevant legal

& Bl A provided a corporate

cost and interest. Since another independent guarantor of the
loan, AlZEME (KiE)BRAF (“BIEME") has pledged its
properties to AZEERTT(=) for this loan, it is believed that X
#IR77(=) can fully recover the loan and interest from the

sales proceeds of the pledged properties.

Correspondingly, A &IF obtained counter-guarantees by B3]
EE. BIZEHBE undertook any legal disputes and economic losses that
may be suffered by R &IAN in relation to all the aforesaid corporate
guarantees and pledge. BIZEHBEE is a company engaged in property
development. Referring to the unaudited management accounts as at
30 April 2019 of BIZZEHIE, it had a net asset value of approximately
RMB236,005,000 and thus it should have sufficient assets to cover the

above liabilities.

In addition, a loan agreement of RMB245,000,000 has been signed
by A B with ABIRTT on 27 December 2017. This loan is still
undergoing the loan distribution procedures and is expected to be
granted shortly to repay the loans, interests and other costs stated in
(1), (2) and (3) and the corporate guarantees provided by AZE &Il
will then be released. Another loan is in negotiation between Bl3Z 1
EE and KiEIRTT to repay the loans, interests and other costs stated
in (4) and (5). The corporate guarantees and pledge provided by X

3B AIF will be released once this arrangement is reached.

G5) RZE—HF+—A=Z+=H" 'K
HAMBEAXERT(Z)AME=ZAK
HEHESRERIRARAR(KE
BERDERZERBITERAR
#£50,000,0007T * $RH D FEAR o

T —+F 8/ KREBR1T(=Z)
HAESEGRIBLEF - EE L
MmER RZZE—N\F—A=Z+H
H'EE%AKL TG RR R N ER
T(Z)EELERER  ERMEEN
ERBRAEANE  c ARERM S —
EB LR ABEHE (Ki&E) BIR
RNE([BIEHE ) E S E YRR
TRERT(Z)  BUBERER
FT(Z) ISR MM EZ B
FeBEREEREFE -

FEFEH - KEBI TR AEMERS RIE
R o IAREFERIFBLFT A Lt 2 R AER
R EZERDER U RECHBEEK -
BliEHE A — IRIE - BIIEHER —
ANEEMWEREHNLQF - 28E
MERZE-—NFHNA=+HZRE
EZEREE  AFEENARARE
236,005,0007C  NEEHE RN EE
AYE FMEAT o

toh » RBIEER T —+F+= A
Zt+EREKERT MJTAEM
245,000,000 TR ERIBTE - EEER
%%ﬁgﬂ%m&ﬁvﬁﬁh%ﬁﬁm
B LVEBD)  QRQFAHZE
A FEREMEBR - FE - KEAM
REODFERE T ARR - AlEE
MAERITERES —EHEHR - LEE
HEG)FFzER FEREME
Ao —BEXLER  KEAIFRED
NRER R IR T AR o

Annual Report 2019 F#



For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

The Directors are closely monitoring the situations and will continue
to use their best endeavor to resolve it. The Directors are also
assessing the legal position of the Group and may consider taking legal

actions if appropriate.

Up to the date of this report, the Group did not suffer any loss
from the above corporate guarantees and pledge. Having considered
the counter-guarantees provided by BIZEHBEE, pledge of valuable
properties by AX:EJEE and BIXZEME and subsequent settlement
arrangements as stated above, the Directors of the Company believe
that the probability of suffering any significant loss by the Group
from the above corporate guarantees and pledge is low. As such, no

provision for loss is made.

The Group'’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF") in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make

monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$796,000 (201 8:
HK$626,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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REEERENRER - KEIRE
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MRBERIERMNRZEMEAELX
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group agreed to acquire
properties located at Shenyang from the EEREEEXHR A A
(the “Vendor”) at the consideration of RMB625,000,000. The Vendor
is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Yuguo, who is a substantial shareholder
and the Chairman and the Executive Director of the Company. For

the details, please refer to note 38.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was

as follows:

Short-term benefits HEAE A

Retirement benefit scheme RIKBFETE

ARAREANBRAR(KENARALZ
RMEAL)HZRZERNEARFIEN -
B ENAMERE - RZFHEAUH
BRHEMBEHMREEI  AEEEE
BN THE X SFHIEWENT -

HE-_ZT—N\FZA=+—HIFE "
AEEREEEEREEXEARAAF
(BEFDWBURNES 2ME  REA
AR#6250000007C c EFHRFERR
RARRZEBRATESTEELE

N2

BEanlEE - FBR2HME3S

FTEEZASZHH
ZEBABRFRZHHAT

2,935
64

2,999
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E AR TR

For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B RS
Details of the Group's material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting RBEER  AEBZEZBHBE AR
period are as follows. BT -
Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capital/l  value of paid capital/
incorporation/  registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
MR,/ RS,/ BRRE/ ARAREZEARAEE/
MR EERE "enl &R R AfmER 305U A= TERH
Directly Indirectly
E# R
Asia Financial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Dormant
(Hong Kong) Limited EE LR 10,0007 - l00%  EEE%

EMERER(FE)ERATF

Land Ace Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$I - 100% Investment holding
ERBRAE B Lk |7 - 100%  REZR

Man Lee Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Management services and
BNERERRA Bk LR VAT - 100% securities trading

ERRBREFES

Senco Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$I = 100% Trading of goods
EES LN 68 Eiak 77T - 100% HEmES

World Metro Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$I = 100% Investment holding
NEREBRAF 6 Eiak 77T - 100%  REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZE—NF=A=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
dmEYL/ iRt/
WED AR meny i fEFER
THEEEBORYNBBRRAR  The PRC Registered
(note q) F i
SHEEEER(RINBRAH
(Hita)
ERHERER(RI)BRAF  The PRC Registered
(note q) F Fai
ERMEREE (R ERAT
(Hita)
AEBIME BB N F(note g The PRC Registered
REBENENBERAA Mita) atfit
BRESFACKIDEBRRAR  The PRC Registered
(note q) F Fai
EREEHARIN AR
(Hita)
METAGETEMNE R ER The PRC Registered
BB AT (note ) HE Eal}
MWETABETHEXER
BRAR(Hita)

42. B A a5 ()

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRRE/ FRAREZENRAEE/

HUEEN

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,0000007T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,0000007T

HK$205,000,000
205,000,000 7T

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

US$2,000,000
2,000,000% 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

AfMERZEA L
Directly
B B

Indirectly

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Property development

NEEE

Investment holding

RERR

Dormant
Emex
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
dmEYL/ iRt/
WED AR TEny i fEFER
BEEEFACRIERRE  The PRC Registered
(note q) F i
RRERFEARIBRAF
(Hrata)
A KBEEERBRAF  The PRC Registered
(note q) F i
A BEXERARLA
(Hrita)
Asiaciti Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
ERREBERAT] & LER
Continental Joy Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary
RBRAHE LER
HEFAERBRKARRAF  The PRC Registered
(note q) F Fai
HEAERER AR
(Hrita)
ATRREEXERARRAA  The PRC Registered
(note a) H Eal}
AMMRREEFERERAF]
(Writa)
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42. B~ ElE1E ()

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRRE/ FRAREZENRAEE/

HUEEN

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,0000007T

RMBI,000,000
ARH1,0000007T

HKS |
77T

US$ |
E

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

RMBI,000,000
AR 1,000,007

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

HMERZEDL
Directly
Ef &

Indirectly

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

= 100%
= 100%

= 100%
= 100%

= 100%
— 100%

= 100%
= 100%

Principal activities

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

RERR

Production and sales of
bottled water

HERBEREK

Dormant
Emex
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZE—NF=A=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
LA iR,/
WEDERE meh i fEF R
AR R EBRAERAR The PRC Registered
(note a) H Bl
RYREREEHBERAT
(Hiita)
AFHEREERABRAR  The PRC Registered
(note a) F i
ABEHEREERER A
(Hita)
Note:

42 B A BB (E)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRBAE/ ARAREZEAREEE/

dMEX

HK$ 10,000,000
10,000,000 7T

RMBI100,000
AR 1000007

(@)  The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign owner enterprises established in the

PRC.

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/

registered capital

held by the Company
EMEF AR
Directly Indirectly
E# f:3
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
Wit -

Principal activities

Dormant
Tmax

Property investment

VESIE

(@ HMBARARPEKILZEEIIGEED

S
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or assets of the
Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of

the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

PT. Damper Indonesia 40
Golden International g0re

Good Union (China) Limited Hong Kong 33
(P B ERRA &R

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group'’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.
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RERLFAEMMER - HERARGE
EREREZ EHE

EER/LERINBZAKE ZHER
HAEE  EEIEEREETE -
ERABHIHE MWELEZﬁH%ﬁﬁ
IBARITE °

TREIIANEERBE A IE RS

FEEWB AT ZFFS
1,085 (10,007)
524 119,499

ol

INAEBEEEGERFERER 2 M
%ATZ%W%MW;%WWT°MT
MBENBERTEERAEHEAZE
B



Good Union (China) Limited

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Revenue

Expenses

Loss for the period

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company
Loss attributable to non-controlling interest

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income attributable to
the owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to
the owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

REBEE
FRBEE
mEAE
FRBAR
ARARA ARG
ElZEll 5

I
AHREEE

ARRHEEARIGEER
RS REER

AERERE

ARARA ARG 2 EA
FHEKE

FEIE BB R e (G 2 Eo At
FHEKE

Hfth 2 E

ARARAANEEZEE
Ween R

FEBREREE 2 2m
Wean AR

EEWEAR

KEEELHI R RAFE
KERDEH2RL RIS
KERALH AL RAFE
SNEEEZBTE

ER(FE)BRAT

29,866
375,371

43,117

242,621

119,499

(1,594)
(1,590)

(1,066)
(524)

(1,590)

(315)
(155)

(470)

(1381)
(679)
(2,060)

8711
611

25

8,125
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Summarised statement of financial position information of the RARRBEH R Z BB A AR ER
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ZEE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG S _
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BEKEE -
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - Ee Kk 60
H h JEULBR R
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGBS 2,322,558
Bank balances and cash wITHAR RS 4,424
2,327,042
Assets classified as hold for sale TEBEEBEEHEEE 30,262
2,357,304
Current liabilities pEIN=NE
Amounts due to subsidiaries R IENGIE S -
Other payables and accruals HiEMEBRR R ETE D 6,974
Convertible bonds AR RES 234,287
241,261
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AE)FE 2,116,043
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 2,116,043
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital [N 1,585,923
Reserves E 530,120
2,116,043
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BB e RN —_ZE—hLE~A-++H
the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by: KREFESH AW FRETZE - E T A
THRERBZBHRTE :
Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
ZEEEE 2R EE
Director Director
- EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IR AR A

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE —ZE—NF=A=+—HILtFE

43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 43. 0 B 2 B FE R OR 2 B
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF = ()

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Convertible Share-base
Share Share notes  Capital payment Exchange  General Accumulated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
8RR R

Bx  RfEE FERE KIEE NBE ENBR B8R ZRER #E
HK$000  HKS00D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKP00D  HKS000  HK$000

Thr Thr TEr TEr  TEr Thr AT TEr  TEn

At | April 2017 R-E2-tFMA-H 1335923 1597179 72561 198350 71331 2 180030 (3593519)  (132118)
Profit for the year RERE = = = - - - ~ 199816l 19%,16]
Total comprehensive income AEERANEEE

for the year - - - - - - - 199161 1998161
Lapse of share options BIRELH - - - - (14679 - - 146 -
Transactions with owners in HEBREATHOEEA

their capacity as owners: E1RS:

Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 250,000 - - - - - - - 250000
At 31 March 2018 and RZF-NFZR=1-R

| April 2018 “3-)\EmA-H 1585923 1597179 7256 198,350 62,656 2 180030 (1,580,683) 2116043
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - - (1929 (1929)
Total comprefensive income REERANG

fo the year ¥ - - - - - - S8 (192)
Lapse of share options BIRELH - - - - (4708) - - 46,708 -
Redemption of convertible bonds BB ] R {E% - - (7250 - - - - T8 -
Capital Reorganisation 2018 “F-\E%EH (1.826,806) = - 1826806 - - - - -
Transactions with owners in HEEEEATNOEEA

their capacity as owners: #O%5

Issue of ordinary shares BEER 317,000 N - - - - - - 317,000
At 31 March 2019 RZE-N¥=A=1-A 16117 1597179 - 200515 5,948 2 180030 (1,480643) 2413814
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & =&

—NF=ZA=t—HLEE

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

(@)

(b)

On 4 April 2019, Beijing Qiaofeng Commercial Trading
BHEMRAA) (“the

Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and

Company Limited* (L RELRE

Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong Beverages Company Limited*
(BASKITBRBERA

the Company, entered into the agreement pursuant to which

ET) (“the Supplier”), an associate of

the Supplier has agreed to supply and the Purchaser has agreed
to procure the Bottled Water Products. Details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2019.

In mid-April 2019, Asiaciti Investment Limited (B ik % & &
FR 2 8]) (“the Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received a notice from EEREZ E X B R A A
("the Vendor”) that it is anticipated that they would not be able
to complete the construction of the Shenyang Properties and
deliver the same to the Purchaser in accordance with the agreed
terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement on |12 October
2017. The Vendor proposed to terminate the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. On 24 April 2019, after arm’s length negotiations
between the Vendor and the Purchaser, the parties entered into
a termination agreement. Details of which are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2019.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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=S+ —BLEFEZEAKRE(ZZE—N
FfE)-

(a) Z-NFHEAMNA - ARF

(b)

HEMBBREDIR T —

BB AR REERMEARA

(TER D RAR TW““TFEE
KT R AR DA ([ HER )R]
Mk Bt HEAREHER

BT RBRBREKER - FBH
RARRBHAR-Z—-NFNAMN
SN

Z-NFNATE  ARAE
BEMBARBKRIRERERAR(NE
TR EEREEXERQA
(TER)zBA  RREHRER
B_E—tFtAT-BRIZE
B 5 2 RN BT RO RB S )
X UWHEEWEXTES - BTSN
BERIEEEHS R-_T—NF
MA-+HA  KEHEBH QT
FERR - ERETRETR W -
HBRENRARBEHAR/ T —NF
MA-—+ImAZ M -

NEXHA
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For the year ended 3| March 2019 HE—E—NF=A=+—HLFE

Results

Revenue

Loss before taxation

Tax (charge)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations
Loss for the year from discontinued

operations
Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

BR 7 AT & 1R
REFEX),/ 2

RERFELE
XB2ER

AEREKLE
*B2ER

AEFER

JE1h
ARAEREFEA
DB R

(3.560)

(209,686)
(368)

(210,054)

(35,248)

(245,302)

(157,152)
(88,150)

(245,302)

4454

(141211
(1,664)

(142,875)

(50,111)

(92,764)

(76,205)
(16,559)

(92,764)

6,651

(90,321)
317

(90,004)

(3,800)

(93,804)

(92.794)
(1,010)

(93,804)

(132,720)
8,576

(124,144)

(1,454)

(125,598)
(123.989)

(1,609)

(125,598)
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For the year ended 31 March 019 HHE—E—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

Assets and liabilities EENRERE

Total assets BERE 1,663,281 2,560,721

Total liabilities BEGE (573.910) (520,853)
Shareholders’ funds BEES 1,089,371 2,039,868
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2433016
(557,950)

1,875,066

2,860,646
(606,082)

2,254,564



Asia Resources Holdings Limited
THERERERAR

* For identification purpose only &z 5! .I
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